
1 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION  

AGENDA 
 

September 23, 2020 at 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

  
ROBIN ASPINALL, CHAIR 

GARY SCHWARY, VICE CHAIR 
CAROLYN ANDERSON, COMMISSIONER 

CHRISTINE S. CALDWELL, COMMISSIONER 
THOMAS GRAHN, COMMISSIONER 
SERGE MAYER, COMMISSIONER 

PATRICK Y. SHIM, COMMISSIONER 
 

ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
ISRA SHAH, DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY 

 
DISRUPTION OF MEETINGS 

Individuals who demonstrate disruptive conduct during Planning Commission Meetings that 
prevent the Planning Commission from conducting its meeting in an orderly manner are guilty of 
a misdemeanor as stated in PC403, disrupting a public meeting, and are subject to removal from 
the chamber or arrest. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL     Chair Aspinall   ____ 

Vice Chair Schwary  ____ 
Commissioner  Anderson ____ 
Commissioner  Caldwell ____ 
Commissioner Grahn  ____ 
Commissioner Mayer  ____ 
Commissioner Shim  ____ 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
 

Approve the Special Meeting Minutes of August 12, 2020. (Staff Person: Jamie Davidson) 
 



2 

5. COUNCIL ACTIONS  
 

Presentation of City Council actions from the Regular Meeting of September 14, 2020. (Staff 
Person: Robert D. Dalquest)  

 
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Presentation of future Planning Commission Agenda Items. (Staff Person: Mike Poland) 
  

7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

This is the time for any citizen to comment on any items that are not listed on the agenda 
under “Public Hearings” but within the Planning Commission’s purview. Anyone wishing to 
address the Planning Commission should submit a speaker card to the Planning Secretary prior 
to speaking. The speakers are requested to keep their comments to five (5) minutes. The use 
of visual aids will be included in the time limit. Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the 
Planning Commission is prohibited from taking action on items not listed on the agenda. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

At a meeting when multiple public hearings are scheduled, the Chairperson, with the 
concurrence of the Commission, may re-order the items within this portion of the agenda in 
order to benefit the public or to provide efficient hearing of the scheduled items. 

  
A. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-07.  

(Continued from August 12, 2020) 
 

Project Description: Request to allow a daycare/pre-school facility within a 5,040 
square foot tenant space in an existing shopping center. The 
property is located within the Commercial/Office Mixed-Use (C/O-
MU) General Plan Designation and the Commercial/Office Mixed-
Use (C/O-MU) Zoning District. 

 
Note: This Public Hearing item was continued by the Planning 
Commission from their Special Meeting on August 12, 2020 to 
their Regular Meeting on October 28, 2020 to allow the Applicant 
additional time to address the Planning Commission’s concerns 
related to the site plan. Recently the Applicant has requested that 
the Public Hearing be moved to September 23, 2020. Therefore, 
Staff has re-noticed the Public Hearing in accordance with Upland 
Municipal Code Section 17.46. 

 
Project Location: Property is located at 710 E. Foothill Boulevard, further described 

as Assessor’s Parcel Number 1046-101-08. 
 

Staff:  Joshua Winter, Associate Planner 

Applicant:  
Wei Zhao 
4996 Aldine Street 
Montclair, CA 91763 



3 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 
 

1. Receive staff’s presentation; and 
 

2. Open public hearing and receive testimony from the 
public; and 

 

3. Close public hearing and have Commission discussion; and  
 

4. Find that this project is Categorically Exempt from 
environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 19, Section 
15301, Existing Facilities, Class 1 (a), of the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, since the proposed 
project consists of a negligible change in use within an 
existing structure; and 

 

5. Move to adopt a Resolution for approval of Conditional Use 
Permit No. 19-07, based upon the findings and subject to 
conditions of approval as set forth in the Resolution dated 
September 23, 2020. 

Council Hearing 
Required: 

The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless the request 
is appealed to the City Council. UMC Section 17.47.040. 

Appeal Period: September 24, 2020 – October 5, 2020. 

 
B. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ZONING CODE AMENDMENT NO. 20-0001.  

(Continued from August 12, 2020) 
 

Project Description: Consideration of an Ordinance revising Chapter 17.37 concerning 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) and Junior Accessory Dwelling 
Units (JADU) in order to conform to the changes to Government 
Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 that went into effect on 
January 1, 2020.  

 
Project Location: Citywide. 

 

Staff: Robert D. Dalquest, Development Services Director 

Applicant: City of Upland 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff’s presentation; and 
 

2. Open public hearing and receive testimony from the public; 
and 

 

3. Close public hearing and have Commission discussion;  
 

4. Find this project statutorily exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15282(h) of the CEQA Guidelines, which states that the 
adoption of an ordinance regarding second units to 
implement the provisions of Sections 65852.1 and 65852.2 
of the Government Code are exempt from the requirements 
of CEQA; and 

 

5. Move to adopt a Resolution recommending that the City 
Council approve an Ordinance revising the City’s 
regulations pertaining to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) 



4 

and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (JADU) to conform to 
the revisions of Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 
65852.22 that went into effect on January 1, 2020. 

Council Hearing 
Required: This item will be forwarded to City Council for final action. 

Appeal Period: NA. 

 
C. PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOCAL REGISTER NO. LR-20-0001. 
 

Project Description: Request to designate 843 N. 2nd Avenue to the local register of 
historic places. The property is located within the Residential 
Single-Family Medium (RS-7.5) General Plan Designation and the 
Residential Single-Family Medium (RS-7.5) Zoning District. 

 
Project Location: Property is located at 843 N. 2nd Avenue, further described as 

Assessor’s Parcel Number 1046-061-16.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

D. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-10, SITE PLAN NO. 
19-07, DESIGN REVIEW NO. 19-13, AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
REVIEW NO. 0084.  

 
Project Description: Request to allow a gas station, automated drive-thru car wash, a 

4,565 square foot convenience store, and a 1,515 square foot 
quick service restaurant. The property is located within the 
Highway Commercial (CH) Designation of The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan. 

Staff:  Jacqueline Hong, Assistant Planner 

Applicant:  
Jeffrey and Kellene Johnson  
843 N. 2nd Avenue 
Upland, CA 91784 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff’s presentation; and 
 
2. Open public hearing and receive testimony from the public; 

and 
 

3. Close public hearing and have Commission discussion; and  
 
4. Find that the project is Categorically Exempt from further 

environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 5, Section 
15061(b)(3). The activity is covered by the general rule 
that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential 
for causing a significant effect on the environment; and 

 
5. Move to adopt a Resolution approving Local Register No. 

20-0001, based upon the findings and subject to conditions 
of approval as set forth in the Resolution dated September 
23, 2020. 

Council Hearing 
Required: 

The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless the request 
is appealed to the City Council. UMC Section 17.47.040. 

Appeal Period: September 24, 2020 – October 5, 2020. 



5 

Project Location: Property is located on the south side of East 20th Street, 
approximately 330 feet east of Campus Avenue, further described 
as Assessor’s Parcel Number 1044-111-49. 

Staff:  Mike Poland, Contract Planning Manager 

Applicant:  
Ash Etemadian 
1138 E. 20th Street 
Upland, CA 91784 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff’s presentation; and 
 

2. Open public hearing and receive testimony from the public; 
and 

 

3. Close public hearing and have Commission discussion; and  
 

4. Find that pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) a Final Environmental 
Impact Report was previously certified by the City of 
Upland in connection with the approval of The Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan and that the City has determined 
that the Project does not trigger any of the conditions 
described in Sections 15162 of CEQA Guidelines which 
would require the preparation of a subsequent or 
supplemental environmental document; and 

 

5. Move to adopt a Resolution for approval of Conditional Use 
Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-07, and Design Review 
No. 19-13, based upon the findings and subject to 
conditions of approval as set forth in the Resolution dated 
September 23, 2020. 

Council Hearing 
Required: 

The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless the request 
is appealed to the City Council. UMC Section 17.47.040. 

Appeal Period: September 24, 2020 – October 5, 2020. 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-11, SITE PLAN NO. 
19-08, DESIGN REVIEW NO. 19-14, AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
REVIEW NO. 0085.  

 
Project Description: Request to allow an 8,825 square foot mixed-use (retail/food) 

building with a single drive-thru. The property is located within 
the Highway Commercial (CH) Designation of The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan. 

Project Location: Property is located on the south side of East 20th Street, 
approximately 550 feet east of Campus Avenue, further described 
as Assessor’s Parcel Number 1044-111-50. 

Staff:  Mike Poland, Contract Planning Manager 

Applicant:  
Ash Etemadian 
1138 E. 20th Street 
Upland, CA 91784 



6 

Recommendation: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff’s presentation; and 
 

2. Open public hearing and receive testimony from the public; 
and 

 

3. Close public hearing and have Commission discussion; and  
 

4. Find that pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) a Final Environmental 
Impact Report was previously certified by the City of 
Upland in connection with the approval of The Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan and that the City has determined 
that the Project does not trigger any of the conditions 
described in Sections 15162 of CEQA Guidelines which 
would require the preparation of a subsequent or 
supplemental environmental document; and 

 

5. Move to adopt a Resolution for approval of Conditional Use 
Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08, and Design Review 
No. 19-14, based upon the findings and subject to 
conditions of approval as set forth in the Resolution dated 
September 23, 2020. 

Council Hearing 
Required: 

The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless the request 
is appealed to the City Council. UMC Section 17.47.040. 

Appeal Period: September 24, 2020 – October 5, 2020. 

 
9. BUSINESS ITEMS  

 
None 

  
10. COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Adjourn to the next regular scheduled Planning Commission meeting on October 28, 2020. 

 
NOTICE TO PUBLIC: All maps, environmental information, and other pertinent data is on file in the City of Upland 
Development Services Department and will be available for public inspection by appointment prior to the meeting at 
460 North Euclid Avenue during normal business hours. To schedule an appointment, please call 931-4305. 
 

If you wish to appeal a decision of the Planning Commission, you must do so within ten (10) calendar days following the 
meeting. Please contact the Planning Division for information regarding the appeal procedure.  
 

If you challenge the public hearing(s) or the related environmental determinations, in court, you may be limited to 
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Upland, at or prior to, the public hearing.  
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the Planning Division at 931-4305. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II] 

POSTING STATEMENT:  I, Jamie Davidson, Senior Administrative Assistant for the City of Upland, hereby certify that 
a true accurate copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on September 18, 2020, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting 
on the bulletin boards at 460 N. Euclid Avenue (Upland City Hall), 450 N. Euclid Avenue (Upland Public Library), and the 
City’s website at www.uplandca.gov per Government Code Section 54954.2. 

 



GUIDELINES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN CITY COUNCIL AND 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS DURING THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY 

(UPDATED JUNE 17, 2020) 
 

PURSUANT TO THE LOCAL EMERGENCY CONCERNING THE COVID-19 VIRUS DECLARED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF UPLAND ON MARCH 13, 2020, GUIDANCE ISSUED BY THE SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO 
AVOID GATHERINGS OF MORE THAN 50 PERSONS, AND EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 
NEWSOM ON MARCH 18, 2020, THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES WILL APPLY TO PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT ALL CITY COUNCIL 
AND PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS FOR THE DURATION OF THE EMERGENCY. 

These guidelines may be updated as needed up to and during a meeting to implement guidance and direction from 
the San Bernardino County Department of Health and other government authorities. 

Public attendance at City Council and Planning Commission meetings will be limited to establish appropriate “social 
distancing”. A live audio broadcast of the meeting will be provided in the City Hall Courtyard to accommodate attendance. 
To ensure public participation, public comments will be accepted through remote and in person participation subject to 
the accommodations and limitations below. The public may view the City Council meeting and Planning Commission live 
on the City’s website at www.uplandca.gov or on Spectrum Cable TV channel 3, and Frontier Cable TV channel 26. 

Remote Public Comment: Remote public participation is strongly encouraged at this time. Remote public comment during 
City Council and Planning Commission  meetings will be received by telephone and will only be allowed if arrangements 
are made in advance as follows: At least two (2) hours before the scheduled start of the meeting you must send an email 
to uplandcityclerk@ci.upland.ca.us with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the meeting date, include the following 
information: (1) your name; (2) the telephone number where you can be reached during the meeting; and (3) the agenda 
item(s) or subject matters you wish to comment on. (Please refer to the agenda, which is at least 72 hours before any 
regular meeting and at least 24 hours before any special meeting.) You may also provide this information by calling the 
City Clerk’s office at 909-931-4120, subject to staff availability to take your call.  If you have not received confirmation 
that the City Clerk’s office has received your request please call our office at 909-931-4120 at least one (1) hour before 
the scheduled start of the meeting. 

During the meeting, a City staff member will call you at the number provided as your turn to speak approaches. Staff will 
make only two attempts to reach a caller and cannot be responsible for a poor connection or weak cell signal. When your 
call is connected to the meeting, please remember to turn down the volume on any device you are using to view the 
meeting, and state your name for the record before proceeding with comments. Time limits will be enforced equally as to 
both remote and in person speakers. 

In Person Attendance & Public Comments: Remote participation is strongly encouraged at this time, but meetings will be 
open to the public subject to social distancing measures. A six-foot separation will be required between all members of 
the public and no members of the public will be permitted to stand in the aisles, entryways, or other public spaces inside 
of City Hall. A live audio broadcast of the meeting will be provided in the City Hall Courtyard to accommodate attendance. 
Persons in the area will also be allowed to speak during the meeting. 

All persons wishing to speak must submit a speaker card before the start of the meeting. Speakers will be called in groups 
of three. Speakers are asked to exit the Council Chamber at the conclusion of their comments. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the City Clerk's Office, 931-4120. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II] 

Any questions about these guidelines should be directed to the City Clerk’s office at 909-931-4120 or 
uplandcityclerk@ci.upland.ca.us. 

http://www.uplandca.gov/
mailto:uplandcityclerk@ci.upland.ca.us
mailto:uplandcityclerk@ci.upland.ca.us


Page 1 

 

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION HELD 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 12, 2020 
AT 6:30 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING  
 
Chair Aspinall called the Special Meeting of the Upland Planning Commission to order in the Council Chambers of 
the Upland City Hall at 6:30 P.M. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Grahn.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Anderson, Caldwell, 

Grahn, Mayer, and Shim. 
  
MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Development Services Director and Planning Commission Secretary Dalquest, 

Contract Planning Manager Poland, Associate Planner Winter, Deputy City 
Attorney Shah, Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson. 

 
Chair Aspinall welcomed Commissioner Caldwell to the Planning Commission.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Grahn requested the minutes for July 8, 2020 be corrected to reflect he was not on the Planning 
Commission when the May 27, 2020 minutes were approved. 
 
Moved by Vice Chair Schwary, to approve of the minutes of the Planning Commission Special meeting of July 8, 
2020, as amended. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mayer. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote (4-0-3): 
 
AYES:    Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Grahn and Mayer. 
 
NAYS:      None      ABSTAINED:      Commissioners Anderson, Caldwell, and Shim. 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
Moved by Commissioner Anderson, to approve of the minutes of the Planning Commission Regular meeting of July 
22, 2020. 
 
The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Schwary.  
 
The motion carried by the following vote (6-0-1): 
 
AYES:    Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Anderson, Grahn, Mayer, and Shim. 
 
NAYS:      None      ABSTAINED:      Commissioner Caldwell. 
 
ABSENT: None 



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 2 

COUNCIL ACTIONS  
 
Development Services Director Dalquest provided a brief follow up on the July 13th, July 27th and August 10th City 
Council Meetings, reported Kosmont Companies provided a presentation of the results of a Hotel Market Demand 
Study to Council, Council discussion of policy regarding modifications to the development standards to allow for 
non-historic art murals within the Downtown Specific Plan, and Council ratified an Executive Order from the 
Director of Emergency Services to allow retailers to display items outdoors during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Development Services Director Dalquest reported there were three (3) Public Hearings at the August 10th City 
Council meeting noting the first was to adopt a threshold of significance for “vehicle miles traveled” as well as 
guidelines, the second was to adopt comprehensive wireless regulations, and the third was to adopt a Short-Term 
Rental (STR) Ordinance of which all were approved. Additionally, he reported Council approved the sale of City-
owned property on Euclid and Laurel off the 210 Freeway, which was originally purchased for a water facility but 
later deemed unnecessary. Additionally, he indicated the City entered Escrow with Crestwood Communities who is 
proposing to build four (4) semi-custom for-sale homes on the site. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Contract Planning Manager Poland reported the Commission will hear four (4) Public Hearing items at the 
September 23rd meeting which include Council consideration of an Ordinance revising the City’s regulations on 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU), Zoning Code amendments to consider allowing and providing regulation for 
digital electronic programmable displays within the Public Institutional Zoning District, and two (2) adjacent 
development projects for a Shell gas station and a mixed-use building with five (5) suites.  
 
PRESENTATION TO OUTGOING COMMISSIONERS 
 
Chair Aspinall presented Alexander Novikov with a plaque in appreciation of his dedicated service and diligence to 
the community as an Upland Planning Commissioner and Airport Land Use Committee Member from April 2019 
through July 2020.  
 
Vice Chair Schwary and Commissioner Anderson thanked Mr. Novikov for his service. 
 
Former Commissioner Novikov thanked staff and the Planning Commission for allowing him to serve the City of 
Upland and thanked his family for their support.  
 
Chair Aspinall presented Yvette Walker with a plaque in appreciation of her dedicated service and diligence to the 
community as an Upland Planning Commissioner and Airport Land Use Committee Member from July 2016 through 
June 2020. 
 
Vice Chair Schwary and Commissioner Anderson thanked Mrs. Walker for her service.   
 
Former Commissioner Walker thanked her family, staff, and the Planning Commission for allowing her to serve the 
City of Upland.  
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Chair Aspinall stated this is the time for any citizen to comment on any items that are not listed on the agenda under 
“Public Hearings” but within the Planning Commission’s purview.  Anyone wishing to address the Planning 
Commission should submit a speaker card to the Planning Secretary prior to speaking. The speakers are requested to 
keep their comments to five (5) minutes. The use of visual aids will be included in the time limit. Under the provisions 
of the Brown Act, the Planning Commission is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.   
 
Chair Aspinall announced she was moving the Study Session after Business Items and the Planning Commission 
would pause halfway through the Study Session to determine whether they could finish or continue the second half 
to the next meeting.  
 
Jeff Walker addressed the Planning Commission and provided a brief history of his wife, Yvette Walker’s 
accomplishments while she was a Planning Commissioner and Airport Land Use Committee Member for the City 



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 3 

and thanked her for her service. 
 
Chair Aspinall closed oral communications.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-07. 

 
Project Description: Request for a conditional use permit to allow a daycare/pre-school facility for up to 94 

children within a 5,040 square foot tenant space in an existing shopping center. 
 
Project Location: Property is located at 710 E. Foothill Boulevard, further described as Assessor’s Parcel 

Number 1046-101-08, and zoned Commercial/Office Mixed-Use (C/O-MU). 
 

STAFF:       Joshua Winter, Associate Planner 

APPLICANT:  
     Wei Zhao 
     4996 Aldine Street 
     Montclair, CA 91763 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Planning Commission: 
1. Receive staff’s presentation; and 

 

2. Hold a public hearing and receive testimony from the public; and 
 

3. Find that this project is Categorically Exempt from environmental 
proceedings pursuant to Article 19, Section 15301, Existing 
Facilities, Class 1 (a), of the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines, since the proposed project consists of a negligible 
change in use within an existing structure; and 
 

4. Move to adopt a Resolution for approval of Conditional Use 
Permit No. 19-07, based upon the findings and subject to 
conditions of approval as set forth in the Resolution. 

COUNCIL HEARING 
REQUIRED: No 

APPEAL PERIOD: August 13, 2020 - August 24, 2020. 

 
Associate Planner Winter provided a presentation on the details of the report, including request, proposal, and 
application; location; building history; project layout and tenant improvements; site plan; architecture style and 
elements; floor plan options; landscaping and open space areas; traffic analysis and level of service; State of 
California Title 22 and Health and Safety Code 3.5 regulations and requirements; CEQA exemptions; and staff 
recommendations.   
 
Vice Chair Schwary inquired about left-turns being prohibited heading eastbound out of the project site onto Campus 
Avenue.  
 
In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter reported left-turns will be prohibited during 
peak hours. Vice Chair Schwary expressed concern regarding the amount of existing traffic in the area. Associate 
Planner Winter advised the Traffic Study considered the left-turn. 
 
Vice Chair Schwary expressed concerns with traffic and children and inquired about the Police Department’s 
conditions of approval. 
 
In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter reported the Police Department’s conditions 
of approval included outdoor cameras and no loitering signs.  
 
Commissioner Shim inquired about the daycare’s licensing.  
In response to Commissioner Shim’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter reported they have not received their license 



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 4 

through the California Department of Social Services (CDSS) and provided a brief overview of the CDSS licensing 
process.  
 
Commissioner Anderson inquired about Condition of Approval 20.9. 
 
In response to Commissioner Anderson’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter confirmed authorized individuals can 
pick up the children from daycare if approved by the parent or legal guardian.  
 
Commissioner Mayer inquired about property ownership.   
 
In response to Commissioner Mayer’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter confirmed the entire property is owned by 
the same property owner except for the 7-11 and it is the tenant’s decision to invoke the limitation of the left-turn 
lane.   
 
Chair Aspinall inquired about signs and citations associated with left-turn restrictions. 
 
In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter indicated he will follow up with the Police 
Department whether a fine can be imposed.  
 
Chair Aspinall noted traditionally parking lots around daycare areas are dangerous for small children and inquired 
whether the parking lot will be fenced and whether the Police Department had concerns or recommendations.  
 
In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter advised the parking lot will not be fenced, however 
the play area will be.  He noted the Police Department did not express concerns regarding the safety of the parking 
lot, and further clarified children will be escorted to and from the facility by a parent/guardian. 
 
Vice Chair Schwary echoed Chair Aspinall’s concern regarding parking lot safety for the children and feels the signs 
will not help with the amount of traffic. He also indicated he was surprised at the leniency of the Traffic Study for 
this business.  
 
Associate Planner Winter explained the Traffic Study does not look at the safety of the area but rather the amount of 
traffic the project may generate.  He recommended traffic calming measures could be employed in the parking lot as 
a condition of approval, such as speed bumps or cross walks. 
 
Commissioner Grahn inquired about the 268 parking spaces and the removal of nine (9) spaces.  
 
In response to Commissioner Grahn’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter confirmed the spaces on the Foothill right-
of-way are included and the property owner has an Encroachment Agreement with the City.  
 
Chair Aspinall opened the public hearing.  
 
Zoe Chen, spoke on behalf of the applicant, Wei Zhao.  She commented Upland is in need of quality preschool and 
this project will serve 94 students and provide 15 to 20 job opportunities for early educators in the area. She confirmed 
parents and or legal guardians could authorize representatives to pick up the children such as grandparents and 
acknowledged identification will be checked regularly for safety.  She provided a brief background on the Title 22 
licensing requirements which is very stringent.  
 
Chair Aspinall commented the project location is good except for the parking.  Zoe Chen confirmed there will be 
staff, parent and student training regarding parking lot procedures and safety.  
 
Vice Chair Schwary inquired if other locations were considered. 
 
In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Zoe Chen confirmed they investigated approximately 30 buildings.   
 
Vice Chair Schwary expressed concern regarding safety in the parking lot.  To which Zoe Chen expressed her 
openness to discuss a fenced-in parking lot with the property owner.  
 
Chair Aspinall suggested staggered drop-off and pick-up times for the students to promote safety and encouraged the 



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 5 

applicant to explore the options.  
 
Commissioner Mayer inquired about the parking for staff and designated drop off areas.   
 
In response to Commissioner Mayer’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter advised the parking lot for the daycare 
center is based on gross square footage as required by the Municipal Code.   
 
Chair Aspinall and Commissioner Mayer suggested alternative parking for staff in another area to promote safety.   
 
Zoe Chen noted the property owner also recommended the same parking scenario for staff.  
 
Commissioner Anderson inquired about drop-off procedures.  
 
In response to Commissioner Anderson’s inquiry, Zoe Chen confirmed all parents and/or legal guardians will be 
required to walk the students into the building.   
 
Commissioner Anderson suggested some walking path stripping that may help show parents and students how to 
navigate the parking lot and would like to see a proposal before the project is approved.  
 
Chair Aspinall inquired about the age range of the students.  
 
In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Zoe Chen confirmed the age for the daycare center is two (2) to six (6) years 
old which provides flexibility for students who are not developmentally ready for kindergarten.   
 
Chair Aspinall suggested the applicant clear up inconsistencies within the handbook and inquired about catering.  
 
In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Zoe Chen confirmed there will not be a kitchen in the facility but the parents 
will have the option to order food from their vendor or to pack a lunch for their child. She also mentioned that each 
classroom will have a microwave and a sink. 
 
Commissioner Mayer inquired about the six-foot-high wrought iron fence that encloses the play area, and indicated 
the site plan is not clear as to whether parents need to enter the play area for drop off.  
 
In response to Commissioner Mayer’s inquiry, Associate Planner Winter explained there is a condition of approval 
for the project to adjust the fence because it is located in the primary ingress and egress of the building. 
 
Chair Aspinall inquired whether the fence change impacted the number of students who could be on the playground 
at a time.  Associate Planner Winter explained it may impact the playground, but the applicant has the option to 
extend the playground to the south.  
 
Vice Chair Schwary expressed concern regarding the current parking lot configuration and encouraged the applicant 
to create a new layout based on the input received from the Planning Commission so it is safer for the students. He 
suggested ingress and egress be located on the east side and the playground be located towards the north or possibly 
reconfigured.   
 
Commissioner Grahn agreed with Vice Chair Schwary’s recommendation and also expressed concern regarding 
traffic flow north of the building.  
 
Commissioner Mayer would like to see a redesign that clearly shows the traffic circulation and pedestrian routes of 
travel once they park.  
 
Deputy City Attorney Shah explained the process for continuing the item for Vice Chair Schwary.  
 
Seeing no further members of the public wishing to address the Commission, Chair Aspinall closed the public 
hearing.   
 
Vice Chair Schwary recommended the item be continued so the applicant can come back with a redesigned site plan 
to address parking and traffic flow.  



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 6 

Zoe Chen noted the applicant felt comfortable coming back to the Planning Commission in October with a redesigned 
site plan.  
 
Vice Chair Schwary moved to continue the public hearing for Conditional Use Permit No. 19-07 to the regularly 
scheduled Planning Commission meeting on October 28th.  
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Anderson.     
 
The motion carried by the following vote: (7-0):  
 
AYES:    Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Anderson, Caldwell, Grahn, Mayer, and Shim. 
 
NAYS:      None      ABSTAINED:      None 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
2. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ZONE CODE AMENDMENT NO. 20-0001. 

(Requested to be continued to September 23, 2020) 
 

Project Description: Consideration of an Ordinance revising the City’s regulations pertaining to Accessory 
Dwelling Units (ADU) and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (JADU) to conform to 
the revisions to Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 that went into 
effect on January 1, 2020.  

 
Project Location: Citywide. 

 
STAFF:       Robert D. Dalquest, Development Services Director 

APPLICANT:  
     City of Upland 
 460 N. Euclid Avenue 
 Upland, CA 91786 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Planning Commission: 
1. Move to continue the public hearing for Zone Amendment No. 20-

0001 (Accessory Dwelling Units) to the next regularly scheduled 
Planning Commission meeting on September 23, 2020. 

COUNCIL HEARING 
REQUIRED:  Yes 

APPEAL PERIOD:  NA 

 
Development Services Director Dalquest requested the public hearing on Zone Code Amendment No. 20-0001 be 
continued to the September 23rd Planning Commission meeting since Assembly Bill 68, Assembly Bill 881, and 
Senate Bill 13 has become State law.  He noted staff will need additional time to work with the Deputy City Attorney 
to make revisions to the ordinance and bring it back to the Planning Commission.  
 
Vice Chair Schwary moved to continue public hearing on Zone Code Amendment No. 20-0001 to the regularly 
scheduled meeting of September 23, 2020. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Grahn.     
 
The motion carried by the following vote: (7-0):  
 
AYES:    Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Anderson, Caldwell, Grahn, Mayer, and Shim. 
 
NAYS:      None      ABSTAINED:      None 
 
ABSENT: None 
 



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 7 

BUSINESS ITEMS  
 
1. Resolution amending the Rules and Procedures of the Upland Planning Commission. 
 
Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson provided a brief history of the annual review and reported the Planning 
Commission adopted Resolution No. 4904 in August 2019 which amended the rules and procedures.  She noted 
provisions included updating the resolution numbers per City Council Resolution No. 6504, clarified the election 
process and terms for the Chair and Vice Chair, added Commission Communications to the agenda and, added a 
certification language consistent with the Planning Commissions resolutions. 
 
Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson reported staff is proposing a minor change to Section F.1, identified as 
General Rules for Public Hearing, which clarifies speakers are requested, but not required, to provide their name and 
address for the record. She also noted it is always the City’s preference to collect this information so the City can 
respond to concerns however it is not required. This will provide speakers an option to address the Planning 
Commission anonymously within their First Amendment rights. She noted staff recommends approval of the draft 
resolution dated August 12, 2020 amending the Rules and Procedures of the Planning Commission. 
 
Vice Chair Schwary inquired regarding the legality of not providing a name before addressing the Planning 
Commission. 
 
In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson reported it is requested but 
not required.  Deputy City Attorney Shah explained that legally speakers are not required to submit a name or an 
address when providing public comment although most speakers feel comfortable with providing the information to 
obtain a response regarding their concerns. 
 
Commissioner Mayer requested a reading of the verbiage of the change. Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson 
commented Section F.1 currently reads “persons presenting testimony to the Commission are requested to give their 
name and address for the record and to present the Commission Secretary with a speaker card stating their name and 
address.  In the event the speaker does not complete a card before presenting testimony, the speaker may fill out this 
card subsequent to giving the testimony”.  She explained the only addition is “persons presenting testimony to the 
Commission are requested but not required to give their name and address for the record and to present the 
Commission Secretary with a speaker card stating their name and address”. 
 
Vice Chair Schwary moved to adopt and approve the Resolution amending the Rules and Procedures of the Upland 
Planning Commission. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Anderson. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: (7-0):  
 
AYES:    Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Anderson, Caldwell, Grahn, Mayer, and Shim. 
 
NAYS:      None      ABSTAINED:      None 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
2. Holiday Schedule. 
 
Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson explained the change is required as a result of City Council Resolution No. 
6504 which regularly schedules the Planning Commission meetings on the fourth Wednesday of every month. She 
presented the Holiday Meeting Schedule for 2020 which includes alternative dates for the Thanksgiving and 
Christmas holidays.  She noted the regularly scheduled meetings are scheduled this year on November 25th and 
December 23rd and staff is recommending they be rescheduled to November 18th and December 9th.  
 
Commissioner Anderson inquired why the dates are not permanently changed for the November and December 
meetings.   
  



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                    AUGUST 12, 2020 
 

Page 8 

In response to Commissioner Anderson’s inquiry, Senior Administrative Assistant Davidson explained the parameters 
would need to be changed by the City Council in order to have the November and December dates changed 
permanently. She also mentioned there being talk in the past regarding scheduling this as a business item annually in 
January as opposed to August. 
 
Vice Chair Schwary moved to adopt the changes for the regularly scheduled meeting in November and December 
and set an item on the agenda annually in January to discuss the annual Planning Commission calendar. 
 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Anderson. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: (7-0):  
 
AYES:      Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners Anderson, Caldwell, Grahn, Mayer, and Shim. 
 
NAYS:      None      ABSTAINED:      None 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
STUDY SESSION 
 
Deputy City Attorney Shah led Planning Commissioner Training which provided an overview of land use laws as 
well as CEQA, meeting procedures, Brown Act, and Conflicts of Interest.   
 
COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
Commissioner Anderson suggested the Planning Commission be added to the e-alert from RWG regarding legislative 
updates.  Deputy City Attorney Shah noted she will add the Planning Commission to the email list upon request.  
 
Vice Chair Schwary welcomed Commissioner Caldwell to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Chair Aspinall adjourned the meeting at 
8:59 P.M., to the regular meeting of the Planning Commission on September 23, 2020, at 6:30 P.M. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
        Robert D. Dalquest, Secretary  
        Upland Planning Commission 
 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

 
ITEM NO. 8A 

 
 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 23, 2020  
  
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
  
FROM:  ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
  
PREPARED BY:  JOSHUA WINTER, ASSOCIATE PLANNER  
 
SUBJECT: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-19-07 FOR THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILD CARE/PRESCHOOL FACILITY 
FOR UP TO 94 CHILDREN WITHIN AN EXISTING 5,040 
SQUARE FOOT TENANT SPACE IN A COMMERCIAL CENTER, 
INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN OUTDOOR PLAY 
AREA WITHIN THE COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-
MU) GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION AND 
COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-MU) ZONE 
LOCATED AT 710 E. FOOTHILL BOULEVARD (APN: 1046-101-
08) (CONTINUED FROM AUGUST 12, 2020) 

 
 

 
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND 
 
The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing regarding this project on August 12, 
2020. During the Public Hearing, the Commission engaged in discussion concerning 
the layout of the proposed project, specifically the safety of children entering and 
exiting the facility as the original layout of the project included the primary entrance 
on the north side of the building, adjacent to the drive aisle, and close to Campus 
Avenue.  After discussing the issues with the project applicant, and the applicant 
agreeing to modify the plans, the Planning Commission moved to continue the item 
so that the applicant could revise the site plan.   
 
Please note that the Commission continued the item to a date certain, October 28, 
2020, but, the applicant was able to modify the plans quickly, so staff found it 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Fairytale Castle Child Care Center  

September 23, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

appropriate to re-notice the project for the September 23, 2020 meeting for Planning 
Commission consideration. Additionally, for Planning Commission consideration, staff 
has prepared a revised Resolution recommending approval of the project. (See 
Exhibit A – Revised Draft Resolution).  Finally, the revised plans are included as 
Exhibit B – Revised Project Plans, and the original staff report, resolution and all 
exhibits are included as Exhibit C – Planning Commission Staff Report for CUP-19-07 
– August 12, 2020.    
 
SITE PLAN CHANGES 
 
The applicant has made two (2) primary modifications to the site plan, which include 
moving the building entrance to the east side of the building and moving the outdoor 
play area to the south side of the site.   
 
Building Entrance 
 
The building entrance was moved to the east side of the building, as directed by the 
Planning Commission, to provide a point of entry that is safer for children as the 
entrance provides further separation from Campus Avenue and the main drive aisle.  
Additional safety enhancements include a four (4) foot tall wrought iron fence 
adjacent to the primary entrance that will prevent children from accessing the north 
side of the building while exiting or entering the facility.  Additionally, the applicant 
will provide striping and raised pavement reflectors and a “Children Crossing” sign to 
clearly indicate the primary ingress/egress point to motorists.   
 
Outdoor Play Area 
 
The outdoor play area was moved further south on the site, and extended further 
into the parking lot. This change resulted in the playground being expanded by 
approximately 800 square feet, to a total of 4,300 square feet. This modification will 
allow for a total of 57 children within the play area at one time. Although the outdoor 
play area will be larger, the child care center will continue to have a maximum 
capacity of 94 children.  
 
Other Changes 

The primary modifications to the site plan resulted in a few minor changes to the 
plans, including floor plan modifications, relocation of the existing trash enclosure to 
the east of the playground, and a loss of seven (7) additional parking spaces. With 
the reduction in on-site parking, the shopping center continues to provide 261 
parking spaces, which is adequate for all uses on-site.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Planning Division recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a Resolution 
entitled: 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Fairytale Castle Child Care Center  

September 23, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UPLAND, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-19-07 FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILD CARE/PRESCHOOL FACILITY WITHIN AN EXISTING 
5,040 SQUARE FOOT COMMERCIAL BUILDING INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
AN OUTDOOR PLAY AREA WITHIN A THE COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-
MU) GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION AND COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-
USE (C/O-MU) ZONE LOCATED AT 710 E. FOOTHILL BOULEVARD (APN: 1046-101-
08). 
 
MOTION 
 
• Move to find the project is Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 19, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, Class 
1 (a), of the CEQA Guidelines, since the proposed project consists of a negligible 
change in use within an existing structure. 

 
• Move to approve Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-19-07 for the establishment of 

a child care/preschool facility, based on the findings and subject to the conditions 
of approval, as set for in the Resolution.   

 
EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A: Revised Draft Resolution 
Exhibit B: Revised Project Plans 
Exhibit C: Planning Commission Staff Report for CUP-19-07 – August 12, 2020.    
 



 

 

Exhibit A – Revised Draft Resolution 

 



EXHIBIT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF UPLAND APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-
19-07 FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILD 
CARE/PRESCHOOL FACILITY WITHIN AN EXISTING 5,040 
SQUARE FOOT COMMERCIAL BUILDING INCLUDING THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF AN OUTDOOR PLAY AREA WITHIN A 
COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-MU) GENERAL PLAN 
LAND USE DESIGNATION AND COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-
USE (C/O-MU) ZONE LOCATED AT 710 E. FOOTHILL 
BOULEVARD (APN: 1046-101-08) 

 
Intent of the Parties and Findings 
 

WHEREAS, Wei Zhao (Applicant) has filed an application requesting approval 
of the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Project is considered a project as defined by the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Development Services Director determined that the Project 

qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from the provisions of CEQA per Section 15301, 
Existing Facilities, of the CEQA Guidelines in that a Class 1 exemption consists of the 
operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of 
the existing private structure, and involves no expansion of use beyond that existing 
at the time of the lead agency's determination; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on July 30, 2020 and 

September 10, 2020, posted two (2) true and correct copies of the legal notice at the 
Upland City Hall Bulletin Board and at the Upland Public Library in accordance with 
the Upland Municipal Code Section 17.46.020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on July 28, 2020 and 

September 10, 2020, mailed the public hearing notice to each property owner within 
a 300-foot radius of the project site indicating the date and time of the public hearing 
in compliance with state  law concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on July 31, 2020 and 

September 11, 2020, published a legal notice in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, a 
local paper of general circulation, indicating the date and time of the public hearing 
in compliance with state law concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed 

public hearing on August 12, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. and September 23, 2020, at 6:30 
p.m. at which time it received public testimony concerning the Project, and 
considered the CEQA Exemption for the proposed Project and the project itself. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Upland hereby 

finds, determines and resolves as follows:  



CUP-19-07 
Page 2 of 13  

 
 

Section 1. FINDINGS. The Planning Commission hereby makes the following 
findings and determinations in connection with the approval of the Project:   

 
A. The above Recitals are true and correct. 

 
B. The project is consistent with the following General Plan Policies:  

 
1. Policy LU-1.4 Complete and Balanced Community. Foster new land uses 

and building types that contribute to City revenues and increase 
employment while also ensuring the provision of sufficient housing, 
shopping, civic, cultural, open space, and recreational opportunities. 
 
Fact: The business owner provides a new business that will cater to 
Upland residents and provides a valuable service for workers child care 
needs, as well as employment opportunities.  Additionally, the use will 
draw people to a center that is experiencing a high vacancy rate.  
 

2. Goal ES-1 A sustainable business environment that supports local 
entrepreneurial growth and attracts commercial and industrial 
investment and revitalization. 
 
Fact: The action supports entrepreneurial growth by supporting new 
business investment and supports Upland residents and workers by 
allowing for needed support services. The project also provides new 
investments into a currently vacant building. 

 
C. In accordance with Upland Municipal Code Section 17.44.040 F, the Planning 

Commission may approve an application for a Conditional Use Permit only if 
the proposed project complies with applicable standards in the Zoning 
Ordinance, other City ordinances, the General Plan, and any other applicable 
community or specific plans, and as supported by all of the following findings: 
 

1. Finding: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the 
proposed use will be compatible with the existing and future land uses 
near the subject property.  
 
Evidence: The site is located within an existing commercial development 
with nearby commercial and residential uses and adjacent to the 
Campus Avenue and Foothill Boulevard commercial corridor.  The 
proposed tenant space would be large enough to accommodate the 
number of children the applicant has requested.  The traffic analysis 
shows the operation would not result in traffic impacts, and the 
staggered drop off would reduce potential traffic impacts from students 
arriving or departing the site.  There is sufficient parking on-site to 
accommodate the existing and proposed use for the site under the 
Upland Zoning Code. 

 



CUP-19-07 
Page 3 of 13  

 
2. Finding: The site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, 

shape, size, operating characteristics, and the provision of public and 
emergency vehicle (e.g. fire and medical) access and public services and 
utilities. 
 
Evidence:  The use is located within an existing commercial site, 
primarily surrounded by commercial uses with multi-family residential 
uses to the south. The design of the project will utilize the existing 
parking and circulation, which is adequate.  The design of the outdoor 
play ground a 6-foot high decorative tubular steel fence and 5 foot 
landscaping planter will surround the playground area to further buffer 
the playground from the drive aisle. The size and shape of the existing 
site and building provide sufficient space to accommodate the proposed 
use, including classrooms, required restrooms and outdoor space.  The 
center’s parking lot would allow child drop offs and pick-ups to occur 
away from the public right of way and would not conflict with existing 
uses.  The existing circulation is adequate for public access, including 
public service and emergency vehicles.  

 
3. Finding: The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, 

safety, and welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of the proposed use. 
 
Evidence: The proposed use would be located within an existing 
commercial office development with operation occurring during normal 
business hours. The proposed use would operate indoors with a 
proposed outdoor playground. Parents will be required to sign in their 
children at arrival times and again sign out their child upon picking up 
their children.  The project is consistent with the development standards 
of the Commercial/Residential Mixed-Use (C/R-MU) zone intended to 
protect the public health, safety and welfare.  The use is appropriately 
conditioned to ensure the public health, safety, and welfare are 
protected.  Conditions include limitations of hours of operations as well 
as security and maintenance requirements.  
 

Section 2. DETERMINATION. In light of the evidence presented at the public 
hearing and based on the findings set forth above, the Planning Commission hereby 
finds that the requirements necessary for the approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 
CUP-19-07 have been met, subject to all applicable provisions of the Upland Municipal 
Code, and the following conditions of approval: 
 
10.0 General Conditions 
 

10.1 The approved project includes a Child Care Center/Preschool for 2 to 6 
year olds within an existing 5,040 square foot building; including a 4,300 
square foot outdoor playground. Expansion of project beyond the scope 
and nature of the project, which would increase the projected scale of 



CUP-19-07 
Page 4 of 13  

 
the project, shall not be permitted except upon application for and 
approval of modification to this approval. 
 

10.2 All Ordinances, Policy Resolutions, and Standards of the City in effect at 
the time this project is approved shall be complied with as a condition 
of this approval. 

 
10.3 Development of the project shall be consistent with the stamped 

approved plans on file with the City of Upland Planning Division. 
 

10.4 Prior to issuance of permits, all tenant improvements shall be subject to 
plan check with the Planning Division, Building Division, Engineering 
Division, Public Works Department and Fire Department. 

 
10.5 All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy and thriving 

condition, free from weeds, trash, and debris at all times.  Dead, 
damaged, and/or missing landscaping shall be replaced/replanted, 
subject to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

 
10.6 To the maximum extent permitted by law, Applicant must defend, 

indemnify, and hold City and its elected officials, officers, contractors 
serving as City officials, agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) 
harmless from liability for damage and/or claims for damage for 
personal injuries, including death, and claims for property damage, and 
with respect to all other actions and liabilities for damages caused or 
alleged to have been caused by reason of the Applicant’s activities in 
connection with Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-19-07(“Project”) on the 
Project site, and which may arise from the direct or indirect operations 
of the Applicant or those of the Applicant’s contractors, agents, tenants, 
employees or any other persons acting on Applicant’s behalf, which 
relate to the development and/or construction of the Project. This 
indemnity provision applies to all damages and claims for damage, as 
described above, regardless of whether or not the City prepared, 
supplied, or approved the plans, specifications, or other documents for 
the Project. 

 
In the event of any legal action challenging the validity, applicability, or 
interpretation of any provision of this approval, or any other supporting 
document relating to the Project, the Applicant must indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless the Indemnitees, and each of them, with respect to 
all liability, costs and expenses incurred by, and/or awarded against, the 
City or any of the Indemnitees in relation to such action. The City shall 
have the right to select counsel of its choice that the Applicant 
reasonably approves. The parties hereby agree to cooperate in 
defending such action. The City will not voluntarily assist in any such 
third-party challenge or take any position adverse to the Applicant in 
connection with such third-party challenge.   
 



CUP-19-07 
Page 5 of 13  

 
10.7 Within 15 calendar days of this approval, the Property Owner or Project 

Applicant, shall submit to the Development Services Department written 
evidence of agreement with all conditions of this approval before the 
approval becomes effective. (UMC 17.45.030) 

   
10.8 The applicant shall not engage in any construction activities other than 

between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, except in 
case of urgent necessity in the interest of public health and safety or as 
otherwise approved by the Development Services Director. 

 
10.9 Termination of approval if either: (1) development has not been 

diligently commenced and actively pursued to completion thereafter 
within a two (2) year period from the date of approval (i.e. September 
23, 2022); or, (2) if the use approved hereunder is discontinued for a 
period of one hundred and eighty days or longer; or, (3) non-compliance 
with any provision of the Upland Municipal (UMC) not specifically waived 
in compliance with City procedures. 

 
20.0 Planning Division Conditions  
 

20.1 Child Care hours of operation are limited from 6:00 am to 6:30 pm, 
Monday through Friday. This limitation excludes administrative 
operations.  
 

20.2 The child care facility is limited to a maximum of 94 children.  
 

20.3 The operator shall ensure the ratio of 75 square foot per child is 
maintained while the outdoor playground is in use.  Currently, due to 
the size of the outdoor playground, the total number of children allowed 
within the outdoor playground at any given time shall not exceed 57.  If 
the applicant desires to expand the outdoor play area, the applicant shall 
submit plans and applications, as required by the Development Services 
Director, for review and approval by the Development Services Director  
 

20.4 If traffic or circulation issues occur as a result of this use the operator is 
required to make any modifications to operation of the school, up to and 
including suspending the use, necessary to resolve the issues, to the 
satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

 
20.5 The project shall be operated in accordance with all local, state and 

federal regulations. 
 
20.6 Curbside drop-offs in front of the building shall be prohibited at all times.  

Each child shall be walked into the building upon arrival and picked-up 
inside the building upon departure.  No idling, double parking or blocking 
of the drive aisles shall be allowed.  The applicant shall ensure that all 
parents are provided with a written copy of this policy upon enrollment 
and as a reminder in any regularly published newsletters. 



CUP-19-07 
Page 6 of 13  

 
 
20.7 The applicant shall provide parents/guardians with a written advisory 

and diagram that details the protocols for entering, parking, and exiting 
the site. The applicant shall require parents/guardians to acknowledge 
(in writing) that they have read and will abide by the provisions of the 
advisory.  

 
20.8 The applicant shall monitor the queues in front of the building. Should 

the vehicle queues extend onto the drive aisles, modifications to the size 
of individual classes, the class schedule, or additional assistance during 
loading/unloading time will be required. Such modifications shall be 
subject to the approval of the Development Services Director. 

 
20.9 Applicant shall utilize non-toxic and age appropriate play equipment and 

plant materials.  
 
20.10 The proposed playground equipment shall conform to the standards set 

forth by the American Society for Testing and Materials.   
 

20.11 Prior to the issuance of building permits for tenant improvements, the 
applicant shall provide cut sheets for the proposed fencing/wall 
materials surrounding the outdoor play area.  Fencing/walls shall be 
constructed out of decorative tubular steel/wrought iron and a stuccoed 
concrete wall to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director 
or designee.   

 
20.12 The tenant improvement plans submitted for plan check shall include 

the following: 
 

a. A detailed site plan for the outdoor playground area, including 
manufacturers cut sheet (spec sheet) and specific playground 
equipment and furniture.  

b. The plan shall identify all outdoor playground materials, including 
but not limited to, ground covers, sand boxes and equipment, 
furniture, etc.  

c. The plans shall also include a landscape plan for the new proposed 
landscape planters surrounding the outdoor play area.  

d. The plan shall reorient the outdoor playground so the fencing does 
not block the primary entrance to the satisfaction of the Building 
Official and Development Services Director.    

 
30.0    Police Department 

30.1 The approved conditions shall be retained on the premises at all times 
and produced immediately upon request of the Upland Police 
Department and City Planning. 
 

30.2 A 6-month review/inspection shall be conducted to ensure permittee's 
compliance with all operating conditions. 



CUP-19-07 
Page 7 of 13  

 
 

30.3 Public access shall be restricted to a single point of entry which may 
include double doors.  
 

30.4 All doors shall be alarmed so as to notify staff when someone is entering 
or exiting through any point of the business. 
 

30.5 All exterior doors shall be equipped with a lighting device capable of 
providing a minimum of two foot-candle of light at ground level. 

 
30.6 Lighting is required in all areas of public access.  

 
30.7 All exterior lighting shall be oriented inward into the project so as not to 

interfere with adjacent residential areas or vehicular traffic on adjacent 
public streets. 
 

30.8 At a minimum, internally illuminated address signs/numbers are 
required for each building, to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal 
and the Chief of Police. 
 

30.9 A digital video surveillance system is required at the premise. It is 
recommended to have a surveillance video/visual media that shall be 
maintained for a minimum of sixty (60) days and upon request, shall be 
accessible to law enforcement personnel for viewing, copying and 
collection purposes during regular business hours. The system shall be 
able to make license plates discernable. The video system shall cover all 
ingress and egress points of the parking lots, the building, and inside of 
the premises. 

 
30.10 Provide UPD with contact information of person responsible for 

maintaining video equipment/system and who has access to retrieve 
and copy surveillance video. The surveillance video/visual media shall 
be remotely accessible to the Upland Police Department. 
 

30.11 Signs shall comply with all City of Upland sign requirements (UMC 17.15 
et seq.). No more than 25% of the total window area and clear doors 
shall bear advertising or signs of any sort. Window signs shall be placed 
and maintained in a manner so that there is a clear and unobstructed 
view of the interior of the premises from the public sidewalk or entrance 
to the premises (this applies to all windows of this location). 
 

30.12 Signs prohibiting loitering shall be installed to the satisfaction of the 
Chief of Police. They shall be mounted between six and ten feet above 
ground. The following must be printed on the sign in letters at least two 
inches tall: "PC647 (h), UMC l 0.72.010." and "NO LOITERING IS 
ALLOWED ON OR IN FRONT OF THESE PREMISES." The signs shall be 
posted on the front, rear, and sides of the building, and shall be clearly 
visible to patrons of the licensee. 



CUP-19-07 
Page 8 of 13  

 
 

30.13 Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee shall be immediate 
and ongoing on the licensed premises, but in no event shall graffiti be 
allowed unabated on the premises for more than 48 hours. Abatement 
shall take the form of removal or shall be covered/painted over with a 
color reasonably matching the color of the existing building, structure, 
or other surface being abated. Additionally, the business owner/licensee 
shall notify the City within 24 hours of any graffiti elsewhere on the 
property not under the business owner/licensee's control so that it may 
be abated by the property owner. 

 
30.14 All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy and thriving 

condition, free from weeds, trash, and debris at all times. 
 

30.15 The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining the area adjacent to 
the premises over which they have control free of litter. 

 
30.16 If any community issues arise, such as noise, odors, parking, crime, 

etc., the owner/operator shall be responsible for immediate 
implementation of measures to address the issues, including additional 
restrictions on the intensity of the use, to the satisfaction of the 
Development Services Director and/or the Chief of Police. 

  
30.17 Violation of any of the aforementioned conditions, may result in 

revocation of the CUP, consistent the process established in UMC Section 
17.45.100, Permit Revocation or Modification. 

 
40.0 Building and Safety  
 

40.1 The applicant shall obtain building permits for all tenant improvements, 
receive a final inspection for said permits and a Certificate of Occupancy 
prior to the issuance of a Business License. 
  

40.2 All tenant improvements shall be in compliance with the 2019 California 
Building Code.  

 
40.3 The fencing around the outdoor play area shall include an exit with panic 

hardware adjacent to the buildings primary entrance. 
 

40.4 The Fencing adjacent to the primary entrance of the day care shall 
include a gate for ADA accessibility to the satisfaction of the Building 
Official.     
 

50.0 San Bernardino County Fire Protection District (SBCoFD) 
 

50.1 The development shall have a minimum of 2 points of vehicular access. 
These are for fire/emergency equipment access and for evacuation 
routes. a. Single Story Road Access Width. All buildings shall have 



CUP-19-07 
Page 9 of 13  

 
access provided by approved roads, alleys and private drives with a 
minimum twenty-six (26) foot unobstructed width and vertically to 
fourteen (14) feet six (6) inches in height.  Other recognized standards 
may be more restrictive by requiring wider access provisions. b. Multi-
Story Road Access Width. Buildings three (3) stories in height or more 
shall have a minimum access of thirty (30) feet unobstructed width and 
vertically to fourteen (14) feet six (6) inches in height. 

 
50.2 Prior to the issuance of building permits, building plans shall be 

submitted to the Fire Department for review and approval. 
 
50.3 The required fire fees shall be paid to the San Bernardino County Fire 

Department/Community Safety Division. 
 

50.4 An automatic fire sprinkler monitoring fire alarm system complying with 
the California Fire Code, NFPA and all applicable codes is required. The 
applicant shall hire a Fire Department approved fire alarm contractor.  
The fire alarm contractor shall submit detailed plans to the Fire 
Department for review and approval.  The required fees shall be paid at 
the time of plan submittal. 

 
50.5 Hand portable fire extinguishers are required.  The location, type, and 

cabinet design shall be approved by the Fire Department. 
 

50.6 An automatic fire sprinkler system complying with NFPA Pamphlet #13 
and the Fire Department standards is required. The applicant shall hire 
a Fire Department approved fire sprinkler contractor.  The fire sprinkler 
contractor shall submit plans to the with hydraulic calculation and 
manufacturers specification sheets to the Fire Department for approval 
and approval. The contractor shall submit plans showing type of storage 
and use with the applicable protection system.  The required fees shall 
be paid at the time of plan submittal. 

 
50.7 An approved Fire Department key box is required.  In commercial, 

industrial and multi-family complexes, all swing gates shall have an 
approved fire department Knox Lock. 

 
50.8 Permission to occupy or use the building (certificate of Occupancy or 

shell release) will not be granted until the Fire Department inspects, 
approves and signs off on the Building and Safety job card for Fire Final. 

 
50.9 In addition to the Fire requirements stated herein, other onsite and 

offsite improvements may be required which cannot be determined from 
tentative plans at this time and would have to be reviewed after more 
complete improvement plans and profiles have been submitted to this 
office. Deferred Submittal required for Alarms, Sprinklers and 
Underground Fire water. 

 



CUP-19-07 
Page 10 of 13  

 
50.10 This standard, in conjunction with the latest edition of NFPA 13, NFPA 

13R and NFPA 24, shall apply to the design and installation of, and the 
modification to, all new and existing fire sprinkler systems in commercial 
and industrial buildings and multi-family dwellings. This standard and 
its interpretation shall take NOT precedent where there is any conflict 
with NFPA standards. 

 
60.0   Review/Compliance 
 

60.1 If the Development Services Director finds evidence that the conditions 
of approval have not been fulfilled or the use has or have resulted in a 
substantial adverse effect to the health, and/or general welfare of users 
of adjacent or proximate property, or have a substantial adverse impact 
on public facilities or services, the Development Services Director may 
refer the conditional use permit back to the Planning Commission for 
review.  If, upon such item the Commission finds that any of the results 
above have occurred the Commission may modify or revoke the 
conditional use permit.  
 

60.2 The Planning Commission may review the use 90 days, 180 days, and 
on an annual basis following the date of final inspection, or as needed 
at the discretion of the Development Services Director, to determine 
whether the applicant and operators are operating the use in a manner 
that is compatible with the community.  The Planning Commission may 
establish additional conditions of approval that are necessary to 
eliminate any issues that arise from the operation of the use that 
adversely impact the public health, welfare, and safety, or may direct 
staff to initiate revocation proceedings.  The conditional use permit may 
be revoked if the permittee, his agents or assigns, or employee(s) of 
the establishment, or any other person connected or associated with the 
permittee or his business establishment, or any person who is exercising 
managerial authority of the business establishment has: 

 
a. Violated any rule, regulation, or condition of approval adopted by the 

Planning Commission relating to the conditional use permit or 
contained in the Upland Municipal Code, or state or federal 
regulations. Violation of any provision of the Upland Municipal Code 
(UMC) or the conditions of approval set forth in this resolution, shall 
be deemed to constitute an infraction of the Upland Municipal Code, 
and shall be subject to the applicable fines and penalties, including 
the possibility of revocation of this permit.  

 
b. Conducted the operation permitted hereunder in a manner contrary 

to the peace, health, safety, and general welfare of the public, or in 
a manner which either generates or contributes to noise and/or 
health/sanitation nuisances, or which results in undesirable activities 
that negatively affects adjacent properties or creates an increased 
demand for public services. 



CUP-19-07 
Page 11 of 13  

 
 

Section 3. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA). The project 
is Categorically Exempt from environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 19, 
Section 15301, Existing Facilities, Class 1 (a), of the California Environmental Quality 
Act Guidelines, since the proposed project consists of a negligible change in use within 
an existing structure. 
 

Section 4.  APPEAL.  Pursuant to Upland Municipal Code Section 17.47.040, 
the decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council provided 
that written notice of the appeal is filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
following the date the decision was rendered, unless a longer appeal period is 
specified as part of the project approval.  Failure to file a timely appeal shall constitute 
a waiver of the right of appeal, and the decision of the Planning Commission shall be 
final. 
 

Section 5.  INCONSISTENCY.  If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase 
or portion of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CUP-19-07 
Page 12 of 13  

 
Section 6.  CERTIFICATION.  The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall certify 
to the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and their certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of September, 2020. 
 
              
        

_________________________________ 
Robin Aspinall, CHAIR 

 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CUP-19-07 
Page 13 of 13  

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 

_________________________________ 

Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of September, 2020, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:     
NAYS:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    
 
 

______________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Exhibit B – Revised Project Plans 

 













 

 

Exhibit C – Planning Commission Staff Report 

for CUP-19-07, August 12, 2020 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

ITEM NO. 1 

DATE: AUGUST 12, 2020 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PREPARED BY: JOSHUA WINTER, ASSOCIATE PLANNER  

SUBJECT: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-19-07 FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILD CARE/PRESCHOOL FACILITY 
FOR UP TO 94 CHILDREN WITHIN AN EXISTING 5,040 
SQUARE FOOT TENANT SPACE IN A COMMERCIAL CENTER, 
INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN OUTDOOR PLAY 
AREA WITHIN THE COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-
MU) GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION AND 
COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-MU) ZONE 
LOCATED AT 710 E. FOOTHILL BOULEVARD (APN: 1046-101-
08) 

REQUEST 

The applicant is seeking approval of a Conditional Use Permit to establish a child 
care/preschool facility within an existing 5,040 square foot tenant space in a 
commercial center and a new outdoor play area (See Exhibit A – Draft Resolution).  
The application for the project includes: 

Conditional Use Permit No. 19-07. A Conditional Use Permit is required for a child 
care center within the Commercial/Office Mixed-Use (C/O-MU) zone. 

SYNOPSIS 

Applicant: Wei Zhao 
Representative: Same as Applicant 
Property Owner: Manco International c/o Manny Borookhim 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 2 of 7 

 
 

Property Location: 710 E. Foothill Blvd. (1046-101-08) 
Existing General Plan 
Land Use Designation: Commercial/Office Mixed-Use (C/O-MU) 

Existing Zoning 
Classification: Commercial/Office Mixed-Use (C/O-MU) 

Site Size:  20,975 square feet 
Building/Suite Size: 5,040 square feet 
Access: Driveway off North Campus and two driveways off of 

East Foothill Boulevard.   
Existing Conditions: Existing building and parking. 
Surrounding Land Uses: 

 
See Exhibit B – Vicinity Map 

Direction  Land Use  General 
Plan  

Zone  

North  7/11 and Vehicle 
Repair Shop 

C/R-MU C/R-MU 

East  CVS store and 
Carl’s Jr. 
restaurant 

C/R-MU C/R-MU 

South  Single-family 
Residential.  

SFR-M RS-7.5 

West  Commercial/ 
Restaurant  

C/R-MU C/R-MU 

Previous 
Applications/Entitlement: 
 

N/A 

 
AUTHORIZATION/GUIDELINES 
 
Section 17.44.040(C) of the Upland Municipal Code requires the Planning Commission 
to approve, conditionally approve, or deny all conditional use permit applications. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
This project included the following types of notification to the public, in accordance 
with Upland Municipal Code (UMC) Section 17.46.020. 

 
1. On July 28, 2020, a Notice of Public Hearing was mailed to all property owners 

within 300 feet of the project site.  This resulted in a total of 12 property 
owners being noticed. 
 

2. On July 31, 2020, the Public Hearing Notice was published in the Inland Valley 
Daily Bulletin, as well as posted in two physical locations (Upland City Hall and 
Upland Library). 

  

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
According to building permit records, the existing commercial building was originally 
constructed in 1985. The building is located in the Upland Country Village shopping 
center which was also constructed between 1984 and 1985.  The building has 
contained multiple tenants throughout its history.  Most recently, the building was 
divided into 3 units, and contained a chiropractor’s office and salon & day spa. 
Currently, the building is completely vacant. No previous land use entitlements were 
found for the building. Neighboring uses within the shopping center include Goodwill, 
El Pollo Loco, Round Table Pizza and Brandon’s Diner among other commercial uses. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan 
 
The project site has a “Commercial/Office Mixed-Use” General Plan Land Use 
Designation. The designation is intended to accommodate for mixed office and 
commercial uses along Foothill Boulevard near San Antonio Hospital in order to 
support regional employment opportunities. Commercial uses are also supported 
within this designation, including the proposed child care center, which will provide 
employment opportunities and necessary services for local workers. The business is 
consistent with the General Plan goals and/or policies as shown in Table 1 below. 
  
Table 1 
Goal/Policy  Consistency 
Policy LU-1.4 Complete and Balanced 
Community. Foster new land uses and 
building types that contribute to City 
revenues and increase employment 
while also ensuring the provision of 
sufficient housing, shopping, civic, 
cultural, open space, and recreational 
opportunities. 

The business owner provides a new 
business that will cater to Upland 
residents and provides a valuable service 
for workers child care needs, as well as 
employment opportunities.  Additionally, 
the use will draw people to a center that 
is experiencing a high vacancy rate. 

Goal ES-1 A sustainable business 
environment that supports local 
entrepreneurial growth and attracts 
commercial and industrial investment 
and revitalization. 

The action supports entrepreneurial 
growth by supporting a new business 
investment. The project also provides 
new investments into a currently vacant 
building.  

 
Zoning  
 
The C/O-MU Zone is situated along Foothill Boulevard near San Antonio Hospital and 
along Mountain Avenue near the I-10 Freeway.  The zone is intended to support 
mixed office and commercial uses in support of regional employment opportunities.  
The zoning designation allows for a variety of retail, service, and office users, and 
specifically requires the approval of a Conditional Use Permit for a child care center. 
(See Exhibit D – General Plan and Zoning Map) 
 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 4 of 7 

 
 

Project Description  
 
The applicant requests approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a child care 
center/preschool facility for up to 94 children within a 5,040 square square-foot 
building, and including a new 3,526 square-foot outdoor playground (see Exhibit D – 
Project Plans). The proposed child care center/preschool would be available to 
children between the ages of two years and six years old. The facility would include 
1 teacher for every 12 children, or 1 teacher and 1 teacher aid for up to 15 children 
plus additional administrative staff, with the applicant anticipating approximately 21 
employees. 

The proposed age group breakdown is provided in the Table 2 below.  
 
Table 2 

Age Number 

2/3 years 30 

3/4 years 30 

5/6 years 34 

Total 94 

 
Operations 
 
The proposed use will operate between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Children 
will leave and arrive at various times during the day according to each family’s needs. 
The preschool will cater in meals for children, with breakfast served from 7:30 am to 
8:30 am, Lunch service from 12:00 pm to 1:00 pm and a snack will be served from 
2:30 pm to 3:30 pm. Children of every age will be required to be walked into the 
facility and signed-in and -out by a parent or guardian each day. There will be no 
designated drop off and pickup areas; parents must park and enter the facility to 
drop off and pick up their child. Outside playtime will be staggered between age 
groups. The use will also include various special activities throughout the year, for 
example, a Halloween parade will occur during the Halloween season.  For additional 
operational details, please see Exhibit E – “Fairytale Castle Parent Handbook”.  
 
Site and Floor Plan   
 
The proposed facility will occupy the entirety of the existing 5,040 square foot 
building. The floor plan includes space for the reception area, classrooms, bathrooms, 
and employee break space. (See Exhibit D) 
 
The project proposes no exterior changes to the building and maintains the existing 
building setbacks, floor area, lot coverage, and height.  The project will include 
interior tenant improvements, which will consists of offices, breakrooms, storage 
rooms, a utility room, classrooms, and the remainder of the space will be used for 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 5 of 7 

 
 

restroom facilities and corridor space. The size and use of the classrooms and building 
are broken down as shown below in Table 3: 
 
Table 3 
Classroom 1 - 2/3 years 421 square feet 
Classroom 2 - 2/3 years 425 square feet 
Classroom 3 - 3/4 years 555 square feet 
Classroom 4 - 3/4 years 517 square feet 
Classroom 5 - 5/6 years 695 square feet 
Classroom 6 - 5/6 years 692 square feet 
Remainder square footage devoted to 
office/reception/lobby/hallways 

1735 square feet  

  
Total Square Footage 5,040  Square Feet 

 
Outdoor Playground 
 
State Law (State of California, Title 22, Division 12, Chapter 1 of the Manual of 
Policies and Procedures for Community Care Licensing, Section 101238.2, Outdoor 
Activity Space), requires the following for infants, toddlers and preschoolers (6 weeks 
– 6 years): 
 

• There shall be at least 75 square feet per child of outdoor activity space.  
• The outdoor space shall provide a shaded rest area and permit children to 

reach the activity space safely. 
• The surface of the activity space shall be in a safe condition and free of 

hazards. 
• The areas around and under climbing equipment, swings slides and similar 

equipment shall be cushioned with material that absorbs falls. 
• Sandboxes shall be inspected daily and kept free of foreign materials. 
• The playground shall be enclosed by a fence at least four feet high. 

 
The applicant is providing a 3,526 square foot outdoor play area at the east side of 
the building, built over 9 existing parking stalls.  There will be a total of 94 children 
permitted to be at the facility, therefore, 7,050 square feet (94 children x 75 square 
feet) of outdoor activity space is required. Because the applicant’s outdoor space is 
not large enough to meet the State requirement, the applicant is required to stagger 
outdoor playtime by age group in order to ensure the children are provided adequate 
outdoor area. Conditions of approval have been included on the project to ensure the 
ratio of 75 square foot per child is maintained while the outdoor playground is in use.   
 
The outdoor play area will be improved with a rubber play surface, various playground 
equipment and bench seating.  The applicant has proposed a 6 foot high decorative 
fence, consisting of 3 feet of decorative wrought iron and 3 feet of concrete wall.   In 
addition, a 5 foot landscaping planter will surround the playground area to further 
buffer the playground from the drive aisle. Finally, the plans currently show the 
fencing going in front of the primary entrance of the building, which is not permitted, 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 

therefore, a condition has been included required that access be maintained and the 
outdoor area be reoriented away from the front entrance.   
 
The project would introduce a new outdoor noise source, but the noise generation 
will be during the day, and, the noise of children playing is not anticipated to exceed 
the City of Upland’s allowed daytime noise levels of 65 dBA, found in Chapter 9.40 of 
the Municipal Code. 
 
Parking and Circulation 
 
Access to the project is provided by Foothill Boulevard to the north and Campus 
Avenue to the west. Both streets are designated as Major arterials.  In order to ensure 
traffic associated with the use will not result in any impacts, a Trip Generation 
Analysis was prepared for the project which determined that the number of trips 
generated by the project would not create a significant impact. Trip rates were 
calculated based on the Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual 
(10th Addition (ITE, 2017). It was determined that the project would generate 240 
total daily trips and 55 AM peak hour trips, and 56 PM peak hour trips.  Staff required 
the applicant to provide a Level of Service (LOS) Analysis for the intersection of 
Campus Avenue and Foothill Boulevard.  The LOS Analysis found that, with the new 
traffic generated by the project, the intersection will continue to operate at an LOS C 
during both a.m. and p.m. peak hours, and comply with the General Plan Goal of 
maintaining an LOS D (General Plan Policy CIR-1.1).  Therefore, the project will not 
result in a significant impact related to traffic. (See Exhibit F – Traffic Impact Analysis) 
 
While the analysis shows that the project will not result in a significant traffic impact, 
the project’s traffic engineer has noted the existing traffic at the intersection of 
Foothill Boulevard and Campus Avenue does back-up to the south, which blocks the 
project site’s driveway off of Campus Avenue, often blocking left turns from said 
driveway. Therefore, the traffic engineer has recommended a sign be placed at the 
intersection of the project site driveway onto Campus Avenue that prohibits left turns 
during peak hours.  A Condition of Approval has been added requiring this 
recommendation, for the Planning Commissions consideration. 
 
In accordance with Upland Municipal Code Section 17.11.030/Table 17.11-1(On-site 
Parking Requirements), the required parking for the proposed Child Care Center is 1 
parking space for every 350 square feet of gross floor area.  Therefore, at 5,040 
square feet, the use requires a total of 15 parking spaces.  
 
The shopping center currently has 268 parking spaces. Based on the existing uses in 
the shopping center, including the proposed Child Care Facility, the center requires a 
total of 193 parking spaces.  This results in a surplus of 75 parking spaces, therefore 
parking is adequate for the proposed child care facility, including the loss of 9 parking 
spaces for the outdoor play area, and all existing uses on site.   
 
 
 
 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 7 of 7 

 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 
The project has been determined to be Categorically Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 19, Section 15301, Existing 
Facilities, Class 1 (a), of the CEQA Guidelines as the project involves minor interior 
and exterior alterations to an existing building and site.  
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS 

According to Municipal Code Section 17.44.040, in order to approve a conditional use 
permit, the Planning Commission is required to make specific findings.  Section 1 of 
the Planning Commission Resolution contains the mandated findings for the Planning 
Commission’s consideration. 
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
The Technical Review Committee reviewed the project, and recommended approval, 
subject to conditions of approval that have been incorporated into the draft 
resolution. As part of this process, the application was reviewed by the Upland Police 
Department, who has provided conditions of approval that include requirements for 
a video surveillance system and the allowance for an inspection of the premises every 
six (6) months by the Upland Police Department.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Planning Division recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a Resolution 
entitled: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UPLAND, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-19-07 FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILD CARE/PRESCHOOL FACILITY WITHIN AN EXISTING 
5,040 SQUARE FOOT COMMERCIAL BUILDING INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
AN OUTDOOR PLAY AREA WITHIN A THE COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-
MU) GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION AND COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-
USE (C/O-MU) ZONE LOCATED AT 710 E. FOOTHILL BOULEVARD (APN: 1046-101-
08). 
 
MOTION 
 
• Move to find the project is Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 19, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, Class 
1 (a), of the CEQA Guidelines, since the proposed project consists of a negligible 
change in use within an existing structure. 

 
• Move to approve Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-19-07 for the establishment of 

a child care/preschool facility, based on the findings and subject to the conditions 
of approval, as set for in the Resolution.   

 
 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Planning Commission Staff Report 
CUP-19-07 

August 12, 2020 
Page 8 of 7 

 
 

EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A: Draft Resolution 
Exhibit B: Vicinity Map 
Exhibit C: General Plan and Zoning Map 
Exhibit D: Project Plans  
Exhibit E: Fairytale Castle Parent Handbook 
Exhibit F: Traffic Impact Analysis 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 

 

Exhibit A – Draft Resolution 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



EXHIBIT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF UPLAND APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-
19-07 FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHILD 
CARE/PRESCHOOL FACILITY WITHIN AN EXISTING 5,040 
SQUARE FOOT COMMERCIAL BUILDING INCLUDING THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF AN OUTDOOR PLAY AREA WITHIN A 
COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-USE (C/O-MU) GENERAL PLAN 
LAND USE DESIGNATION AND COMMERCIAL/OFFICE MIXED-
USE (C/O-MU) ZONE LOCATED AT 710 E. FOOTHILL 
BOULEVARD (APN: 1046-101-08) 

 
Intent of the Parties and Findings 
 

WHEREAS, Wei Zhao (Applicant) has filed an application requesting approval 
of the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Project is considered a project as defined by the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Development Services Director determined that the Project 

qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from the provisions of CEQA per Section 15301, 
Existing Facilities, of the CEQA Guidelines in that a Class 1 exemption consists of the 
operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of 
the existing private structure, and involves no expansion of use beyond that existing 
at the time of the lead agency's determination; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on July 30, 2020, posted two 

(2) true and correct copies of the legal notice at the Upland City Hall Bulletin Board 
and at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland Municipal Code Section 
17.46.020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on July 28, 2020, mailed the 

public hearing notice to each property owner within a 300-foot radius of the project 
site indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance with state  law 
concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on July 31, 2020, published a 

legal notice in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, a local paper of general circulation, 
indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance with state law 
concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed 

public hearing on August 12, 2020, at which time it received public testimony 
concerning the Project, and considered the CEQA Exemption for the proposed Project 
and the project itself. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Upland hereby 

finds, determines and resolves as follows:  

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 2 of 13  

 
Section 1. FINDINGS. The Planning Commission hereby makes the following 

findings and determinations in connection with the approval of the Project:   
 

A. The above Recitals are true and correct. 
 

B. The project is consistent with the following General Plan Policies:  
 

1. Policy LU-1.4 Complete and Balanced Community. Foster new land uses 
and building types that contribute to City revenues and increase 
employment while also ensuring the provision of sufficient housing, 
shopping, civic, cultural, open space, and recreational opportunities. 
 
Fact: The business owner provides a new business that will cater to 
Upland residents and provides a valuable service for workers child care 
needs, as well as employment opportunities.  Additionally, the use will 
draw people to a center that is experiencing a high vacancy rate.  
 

2. Goal ES-1 A sustainable business environment that supports local 
entrepreneurial growth and attracts commercial and industrial 
investment and revitalization. 
 
Fact: The action supports entrepreneurial growth by supporting new 
business investment and supports Upland residents and workers by 
allowing for needed support services. The project also provides new 
investments into a currently vacant building. 

 
C. In accordance with Upland Municipal Code Section 17.44.040 F, the Planning 

Commission may approve an application for a Conditional Use Permit only if 
the proposed project complies with applicable standards in the Zoning 
Ordinance, other City ordinances, the General Plan, and any other applicable 
community or specific plans, and as supported by all of the following findings: 
 

1. Finding: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the 
proposed use will be compatible with the existing and future land uses 
near the subject property.  
 
Evidence: The site is located within an existing commercial development 
with nearby commercial and residential uses and adjacent to the 
Campus Avenue and Foothill Boulevard commercial corridor.  The 
proposed tenant space would be large enough to accommodate the 
number of children the applicant has requested.  The traffic analysis 
shows the operation would not result in traffic impacts, and the 
staggered drop off would reduce potential traffic impacts from students 
arriving or departing the site.  There is sufficient parking on-site to 
accommodate the existing and proposed use for the site under the 
Upland Zoning Code. 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 3 of 13  

 
2. Finding: The site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, 

shape, size, operating characteristics, and the provision of public and 
emergency vehicle (e.g. fire and medical) access and public services and 
utilities. 
 
Evidence:  The use is located within an existing commercial site, 
primarily surrounded by commercial uses with multi-family residential 
uses to the south. The design of the project will utilize the existing 
parking and circulation, which is adequate.  The design of the outdoor 
play ground a 6-foot high decorative tubular steel fence and 5 foot 
landscaping planter will surround the playground area to further buffer 
the playground from the drive aisle. The size and shape of the existing 
site and building provide sufficient space to accommodate the proposed 
use, including classrooms, required restrooms and outdoor space.  The 
center’s parking lot would allow child drop offs and pick-ups to occur 
away from the public right of way and would not conflict with existing 
uses.  The existing circulation is adequate for public access, including 
public service and emergency vehicles.  

 
3. Finding: The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, 

safety, and welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of the proposed use. 
 
Evidence: The proposed use would be located within an existing 
commercial office development with operation occurring during normal 
business hours. The proposed use would operate indoors with a 
proposed outdoor playground. Parents will be required to sign in their 
children at arrival times and again sign out their child upon picking up 
their children.  The project is consistent with the development standards 
of the Commercial/Residential Mixed-Use (C/R-MU) zone intended to 
protect the public health, safety and welfare.  The use is appropriately 
conditioned to ensure the public health, safety, and welfare are 
protected.  Conditions include limitations of hours of operations as well 
as security and maintenance requirements.  
 

Section 2. DETERMINATION. In light of the evidence presented at the public 
hearing and based on the findings set forth above, the Planning Commission hereby 
finds that the requirements necessary for the approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 
CUP-19-07 have been met, subject to all applicable provisions of the Upland Municipal 
Code, and the following conditions of approval: 
 
10.0 General Conditions 
 

10.1 The approved project includes a Child Care Center/Preschool for 2 to 6 
year olds within an existing 5,040 square foot building; including a 3,526 
square foot outdoor playground. Expansion of project beyond the scope 
and nature of the project, which would increase the projected scale of 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 4 of 13  

 
the project, shall not be permitted except upon application for and 
approval of modification to this approval. 
 

10.2 All Ordinances, Policy Resolutions, and Standards of the City in effect at 
the time this project is approved shall be complied with as a condition 
of this approval. 

 
10.3 Development of the project shall be consistent with the stamped 

approved plans on file with the City of Upland Planning Division. 
 

10.4 Prior to issuance of permits, all tenant improvements shall be subject to 
plan check with the Planning Division, Building Division, Engineering 
Division, Public Works Department and Fire Department. 

 
10.5 All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy and thriving 

condition, free from weeds, trash, and debris at all times.  Dead, 
damaged, and/or missing landscaping shall be replaced/replanted, 
subject to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

 
10.6 To the maximum extent permitted by law, Applicant must defend, 

indemnify, and hold City and its elected officials, officers, contractors 
serving as City officials, agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) 
harmless from liability for damage and/or claims for damage for 
personal injuries, including death, and claims for property damage, and 
with respect to all other actions and liabilities for damages caused or 
alleged to have been caused by reason of the Applicant’s activities in 
connection with Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-19-07(“Project”) on the 
Project site, and which may arise from the direct or indirect operations 
of the Applicant or those of the Applicant’s contractors, agents, tenants, 
employees or any other persons acting on Applicant’s behalf, which 
relate to the development and/or construction of the Project. This 
indemnity provision applies to all damages and claims for damage, as 
described above, regardless of whether or not the City prepared, 
supplied, or approved the plans, specifications, or other documents for 
the Project. 

 
In the event of any legal action challenging the validity, applicability, or 
interpretation of any provision of this approval, or any other supporting 
document relating to the Project, the Applicant must indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless the Indemnitees, and each of them, with respect to 
all liability, costs and expenses incurred by, and/or awarded against, the 
City or any of the Indemnitees in relation to such action. The City shall 
have the right to select counsel of its choice that the Applicant 
reasonably approves. The parties hereby agree to cooperate in 
defending such action. The City will not voluntarily assist in any such 
third-party challenge or take any position adverse to the Applicant in 
connection with such third-party challenge.   
 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 5 of 13  

 
10.7 Within 15 calendar days of this approval, the Property Owner or Project 

Applicant, shall submit to the Development Services Department written 
evidence of agreement with all conditions of this approval before the 
approval becomes effective. (UMC 17.45.030) 

   
10.8 The applicant shall not engage in any construction activities other than 

between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, except in 
case of urgent necessity in the interest of public health and safety or as 
otherwise approved by the Development Services Director. 

 
10.9 Termination of approval if either: (1) development has not been 

diligently commenced and actively pursued to completion thereafter 
within a two (2) year period from the date of approval (i.e. August 12, 
2022); or, (2) if the use approved hereunder is discontinued for a period 
of one hundred and eighty days or longer; or, (3) non-compliance with 
any provision of the Upland Municipal (UMC) not specifically waived in 
compliance with City procedures. 

 
20.0 Planning Division Conditions  
 

20.1 Child Care hours of operation are limited from 6:00 am to 6:00 pm, 
Monday through Friday. This limitation excludes administrative 
operations.  
 

20.2 The child care facility is limited to a maximum of 94 children.  
 

20.3 The operator shall ensure the ratio of 75 square foot per child is 
maintained while the outdoor playground is in use.  Currently, due to 
the size of the outdoor playground, the total number of children allowed 
within the outdoor playground at any given time shall not exceed 47.  If 
the applicant desires to expand the outdoor play area, the applicant shall 
submit plans and applications, as required by the Development Services 
Director, for review and approval by the Development Services Director  
 

20.4 If traffic or circulation issues occur as a result of this use the operator is 
required to make any modifications to operation of the school, up to and 
including suspending the use, necessary to resolve the issues, to the 
satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

 
20.5 The project shall be operated in accordance with all local, state and 

federal regulations. 
 
20.6 Curbside drop-offs in front of the building shall be prohibited at all times.  

Each child shall be walked into the building upon arrival and picked-up 
inside the building upon departure.  No idling, double parking or blocking 
of the drive aisles shall be allowed.  The applicant shall ensure that all 
parents are provided with a written copy of this policy upon enrollment 
and as a reminder in any regularly published newsletters. 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 6 of 13  

 
20.7 The applicant shall provide parents/guardians with a written advisory 

and diagram that details the protocols for entering, parking, and exiting 
the site. The applicant shall require parents/guardians to acknowledge 
(in writing) that they have read and will abide by the provisions of the 
advisory.  

 
20.8 The applicant shall monitor the queues in front of the building. Should 

the vehicle queues extend onto the drive aisles, modifications to the size 
of individual classes, the class schedule, or additional assistance during 
loading/unloading time will be required. Such modifications shall be 
subject to the approval of the Development Services Director. 

 
20.9 All children shall be signed in by a parent upon arrival and signed out 

prior to departing the premises. 
 

20.10 Applicant shall utilize non-toxic and age appropriate play equipment and 
plant materials.  

 
20.11 The proposed playground equipment shall conform to the standards set 

forth by the American Society for Testing and Materials.   
 

20.12 Prior to the issuance of building permits for tenant improvements, the 
applicant shall provide cut sheets for the proposed fencing/wall 
materials.  Fencing shall be constructed out of decorative tubular 
steel/wrought iron and a stuccoed concrete wall to the satisfaction of 
the Development Services Director or designee.   

 
20.13 The tenant improvement plans submitted for plan check shall include 

the following: 
 

a. A detailed site plan for the outdoor playground area, including 
manufacturers cut sheet (spec sheet) and specific playground 
equipment and furniture.  

b. The plan shall identify all outdoor playground materials, including 
but not limited to, ground covers, sand boxes and equipment, 
furniture, etc.  

c. The plans shall also include a landscape plan for the new proposed 
landscape planters surrounding the outdoor play area.  

d. The plan shall reorient the outdoor playground so the fencing does 
not block the primary entrance to the satisfaction of the Building 
Official and Development Services Director.    

 
30.0    Police Department 

30.1 The approved conditions shall be retained on the premises at all times 
and produced immediately upon request of the Upland Police 
Department, and City Planning. 
 

30.2 A 6-month review/inspection shall be conducted to ensure permittee's 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 7 of 13  

 
compliance with all operating conditions. 
 

30.3 Public access shall be restricted to a single point of entry which may 
include double doors.  
 

30.4 All doors shall be alarmed so as to notify staff when someone is entering 
or exiting through any point of the business. 
 

30.5 All exterior doors shall be equipped with a lighting device capable of 
providing a minimum of two foot-candle of light at ground level. 

 
30.6 Lighting is required in all areas of public access.  

 
30.7 All exterior lighting shall be oriented inward into the project so as not to 

interfere with adjacent residential areas or vehicular traffic on adjacent 
public streets. 
 

30.8 At a minimum, internally illuminated address signs/numbers are 
required for each building, to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal 
and the Chief of Police. 
 

30.9 A digital video surveillance system is required at the premise. It is 
recommended to have a surveillance video/visual media that shall be 
maintained for a minimum of sixty (60) days and upon request, shall be 
accessible to law enforcement personnel for viewing, copying and 
collection purposes during regular business hours. The system shall be 
able to make license plates discernable. The video system shall cover all 
ingress and egress points of the parking lots, the building, and inside of 
the premises. 

 
30.10 Provide UPD with contact information of person responsible for 

maintaining video equipment/system and who has access to retrieve 
and copy surveillance video. The surveillance video/visual media shall 
be remotely accessible to the Upland Police Department. 
 

30.11 Signs shall comply with all City of Upland sign requirements (UMC 17.15 
et seq.). No more than 25% of the total window area and clear doors 
shall bear advertising or signs of any sort. Window signs shall be placed 
and maintained in a manner so that there is a clear and unobstructed 
view of the interior of the premises from the public sidewalk or entrance 
to the premises (this applies to all windows of this location). 
 

30.12 Signs prohibiting loitering shall be installed to the satisfaction of the 
Chief of Police. They shall be mounted between six and ten feet above 
ground. The following must be printed on the sign in letters at least two 
inches tall: "PC647 (h), UMC l 0.72.010." and "NO LOITERING IS 
ALLOWED ON OR IN FRONT OF THESE PREMISES." The signs shall be 
posted on the front, rear, and sides of the building, and shall be clearly 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 8 of 13  

 
visible to patrons of the licensee. 
 

30.13 Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee shall be immediate 
and ongoing on the licensed premises, but in no event shall graffiti be 
allowed unabated on the premises for more than 48 hours. Abatement 
shall take the form of removal or shall be covered/painted over with a 
color reasonably matching the color of the existing building, structure, 
or other surface being abated. Additionally, the business owner/licensee 
shall notify the City within 24 hours of any graffiti elsewhere on the 
property not under the business owner/licensee's control so that it may 
be abated by the property owner. 

 
30.14 All landscaped areas shall be maintained in a healthy and thriving 

condition, free from weeds, trash, and debris at all times. 
 

30.15 The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining the area adjacent to 
the premises over which they have control free of litter. 

 
30.16 If any community issues arise, such as noise, odors, parking, crime, 

etc., the owner/operator shall be responsible for immediate 
implementation of measures to address the issues, including additional 
restrictions on the intensity of the use, to the satisfaction of the 
Development Services Director and/or the Chief of Police. 

  
30.17 Violation of any of the aforementioned conditions, may result in 

revocation of the CUP, consistent the process established in UMC Section 
17.45.100, Permit Revocation or Modification. 

 
40.0 Building and Safety  
 

40.1 The applicant shall obtain building permits for all tenant improvements, 
receive a final inspection for said permits and a Certificate of Occupancy 
prior to the issuance of a Business License. 
  

40.2 All tenant improvements shall be in compliance with the 2019 California 
Building Code.  

 
40.3 The primary entrance shall not be blocked by any fencing.  

 
50.0 San Bernardino County Fire Protection District (SBCoFD) 

 
50.1 The development shall have a minimum of 2 points of vehicular access. 

These are for fire/emergency equipment access and for evacuation 
routes. a. Single Story Road Access Width. All buildings shall have 
access provided by approved roads, alleys and private drives with a 
minimum twenty-six (26) foot unobstructed width and vertically to 
fourteen (14) feet six (6) inches in height.  Other recognized standards 
may be more restrictive by requiring wider access provisions. b. Multi-

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 9 of 13  

 
Story Road Access Width. Buildings three (3) stories in height or more 
shall have a minimum access of thirty (30) feet unobstructed width and 
vertically to fourteen (14) feet six (6) inches in height. 

 
50.2 Prior to the issuance of building permits, building plans shall be 

submitted to the Fire Department for review and approval. 
 
50.3 The required fire fees shall be paid to the San Bernardino County Fire 

Department/Community Safety Division. 
 

50.4 An automatic fire sprinkler monitoring fire alarm system complying with 
the California Fire Code, NFPA and all applicable codes is required. The 
applicant shall hire a Fire Department approved fire alarm contractor.  
The fire alarm contractor shall submit detailed plans to the Fire 
Department for review and approval.  The required fees shall be paid at 
the time of plan submittal. 

 
50.5 Hand portable fire extinguishers are required.  The location, type, and 

cabinet design shall be approved by the Fire Department. 
 

50.6 An automatic fire sprinkler system complying with NFPA Pamphlet #13 
and the Fire Department standards is required. The applicant shall hire 
a Fire Department approved fire sprinkler contractor.  The fire sprinkler 
contractor shall submit plans to the with hydraulic calculation and 
manufacturers specification sheets to the Fire Department for approval 
and approval. The contractor shall submit plans showing type of storage 
and use with the applicable protection system.  The required fees shall 
be paid at the time of plan submittal. 

 
50.7 An approved Fire Department key box is required.  In commercial, 

industrial and multi-family complexes, all swing gates shall have an 
approved fire department Knox Lock. 

 
50.8 Permission to occupy or use the building (certificate of Occupancy or 

shell release) will not be granted until the Fire Department inspects, 
approves and signs off on the Building and Safety job card for Fire Final. 

 
50.9 In addition to the Fire requirements stated herein, other onsite and 

offsite improvements may be required which cannot be determined from 
tentative plans at this time and would have to be reviewed after more 
complete improvement plans and profiles have been submitted to this 
office. Deferred Submittal required for Alarms, Sprinklers and 
Underground Fire water. 

 
50.10 This standard, in conjunction with the latest edition of NFPA 13, NFPA 

13R and NFPA 24, shall apply to the design and installation of, and the 
modification to, all new and existing fire sprinkler systems in commercial 
and industrial buildings and multi-family dwellings. This standard and 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 10 of 13  

 
its interpretation shall take NOT precedent where there is any conflict 
with NFPA standards. 

 
60.0   Review/Compliance 
 

60.1 If the Development Services Director finds evidence that the conditions 
of approval have not been fulfilled or the use has or have resulted in a 
substantial adverse effect to the health, and/or general welfare of users 
of adjacent or proximate property, or have a substantial adverse impact 
on public facilities or services, the Development Services Director may 
refer the conditional use permit back to the Planning Commission for 
review.  If, upon such item the Commission finds that any of the results 
above have occurred the Commission may modify or revoke the 
conditional use permit.  
 

60.2 The Planning Commission may review the use 90 days, 180 days, and 
on an annual basis following the date of final inspection, or as needed 
at the discretion of the Development Services Director, to determine 
whether the applicant and operators are operating the use in a manner 
that is compatible with the community.  The Planning Commission may 
establish additional conditions of approval that are necessary to 
eliminate any issues that arise from the operation of the use that 
adversely impact the public health, welfare, and safety, or may direct 
staff to initiate revocation proceedings.  The conditional use permit may 
be revoked if the permittee, his agents or assigns, or employee(s) of 
the establishment, or any other person connected or associated with the 
permittee or his business establishment, or any person who is exercising 
managerial authority of the business establishment has: 

 
a. Violated any rule, regulation, or condition of approval adopted by the 

Planning Commission relating to the conditional use permit or 
contained in the Upland Municipal Code, or state or federal 
regulations. Violation of any provision of the Upland Municipal Code 
(UMC) or the conditions of approval set forth in this resolution, shall 
be deemed to constitute an infraction of the Upland Municipal Code, 
and shall be subject to the applicable fines and penalties, including 
the possibility of revocation of this permit.  

 
b. Conducted the operation permitted hereunder in a manner contrary 

to the peace, health, safety, and general welfare of the public, or in 
a manner which either generates or contributes to noise and/or 
health/sanitation nuisances, or which results in undesirable activities 
that negatively affects adjacent properties or creates an increased 
demand for public services. 

 
Section 3. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA). The project 

is Categorically Exempt from environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 19, 
Section 15301, Existing Facilities, Class 1 (a), of the California Environmental Quality 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 11 of 13  

 
Act Guidelines, since the proposed project consists of a negligible change in use within 
an existing structure. 
 

Section 4.  APPEAL.  Pursuant to Upland Municipal Code Section 17.47.040, 
the decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council provided 
that written notice of the appeal is filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
following the date the decision was rendered, unless a longer appeal period is 
specified as part of the project approval.  Failure to file a timely appeal shall constitute 
a waiver of the right of appeal, and the decision of the Planning Commission shall be 
final. 
 

Section 5.  INCONSISTENCY.  If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase 
or portion of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 12 of 13  

 
Section 6.  CERTIFICATION.  The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall certify 
to the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and their certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 12th day of August, 2020. 
 
              
        

_________________________________ 
Robin Aspinall, CHAIR 

 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



CUP-19-07 
Page 13 of 13  

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 

_________________________________ 

Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a special adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 12th day of August, 2020, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:     
NAYS:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    
 
 

______________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 
 
 
 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 

 

Exhibit B – Vicinity Map 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



EXHIBIT B – VICINITY MAP 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 

 

Exhibit C – General Plan and Zoning Map 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Exhibit C - General Plan and Zoning Map 
 
General Plan Land Use Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Exhibit C - General Plan and Zoning Map 
 
Zoning Map 

   

  

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 

 

Exhibit D – Project Plans 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 

 

Exhibit E – Fairytale Castle Parent Handbook 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 

 

Exhibit F – Traffic Impact Analysis 

 

Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



Excerpt from Planning Commission Agenda Packet on 8/12/2020



 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 

ITEM NO. 8B 

 

 

DATE: September 23, 2020 
 
TO: 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
FROM:  

 
ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ZONING CODE AMENDMENT 
ZA 20-0001 TO REVISE CHAPTER 17.37 OF THE UPLAND 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING ACCESSORY DWELLING 
UNITS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECENT CHANGES TO STATE 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65852.2 AND 65852.22. 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
The City’s ADU Ordinance has been null and void since January 1, 2017 as a 
result of the changes to State Government Code sections 65852.2 and 
65852.22 (ADU Law) with approval of Senate Bill (SB) 1069 (Wieckowski) and 
Assembly Bill (AB) 2299 (Bloom) in 2016.  And, is further noncompliant with 
revisions to ADU Law which went into effect on January 1, 2020 (See next 
section of this report).  Consequently, until an ADU Ordinance is adopted staff 
is required to apply the “state standards” and cannot include additional 
requirements beyond the current ADU Law in reviewing plans for ADUs. 
 
The proposed Zoning Code Amendments to Chapter 17.37 of the Upland 
Municipal Code (see Exhibit B) will completely replace the City’s outdated 
regulations pertaining to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) and Junior 
Accessory Dwelling Units (JADUs).  The Amendment will bring the City’s ADU 
Ordinance into complete conformance with the present-day revisions to ADU 
Law.  The current State ADU Law permits the development of ADUs and JADUs 
in conjunction with any residential development in all residential and mixed-
use zones. 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 2 of 10 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission: 
 

1) Conduct a public hearing on Zoning Code Amendment ZA 20-0001; 
 

2) Find this project statutorily exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15282(h) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which states that the adoption of an ordinance regarding 
second units in a single-family or multifamily residential zone to 
implement the provisions of Sections 65852.1 and 65852.2 of the 
Government Code are exempt from the requirements of CEQA; and 

 
3) Adopt Planning Commission Resolution recommending the City Council 

approve Zoning Code Amendment ZA 20-0001 to modify the regulations 
pertaining to accessory dwelling units in Chapter 17.37 of the Upland 
Municipal Code. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 2019, the California Legislature adopted another group of housing bills 
aimed at addressing the housing crisis.  The legislature approved, and the 
Governor signed, Senate Bill 13, Assembly Bill 68 and Assembly Bill 881 into 
law that, among other things, again amended Government Code sections 
65852.2 and 65852.22 to impose new limits on the City’s ability to regulate 
ADUs and JADUs.  In adopting these new regulations, the State Legislature 
determined that these changes are a matter of statewide concern, rather than 
a municipal affair.  This determination allows the State to mandate cities 
implement the new ADU laws.  Since AB 881 was the last chaptered bill signed 
by the Governor affecting Government Code Section 65852.2, it supersedes 
SB 13 and AB 68.  However, other portions of SB 13 and AB 68, not affecting 
Government Code 65852.2, are still in force. The State Legislature’s action 
was intended to reduce regulatory barriers and costs, streamline the approval, 
and expand the potential capacity for ADUs in response to California's housing 
shortage.  These changes were also intended to assist the City in meeting its 
allotment for the upcoming Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) cycle.  
 
Accessory dwelling units, formerly known as “second dwelling units” or 
“granny units”, are small, secondary dwelling units with complete, 
independent living facilities for one or more persons.  These units must have 
a kitchen, sleeping area, and bathing facilities to facilitate independent living, 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 3 of 10 
 

and can be either detached from or attached to the primary dwelling structure, 
or contained wholly within the existing living area of the primary dwelling 
(JADU).  As these types of dwelling units have become a critical component of 
State housing law, they are now referred in State law as accessory dwelling 
units or ADUs.  State law requires that all local jurisdictions allow and approve 
ADUs through a ministerial process; which is a “by-right” approval without a 
public hearing, Design Review or other discretionary process.  The State allows 
for limited local control over some development standards that can be applied 
to ADUs. 
 
The Planning Commission conducted two public workshops on August 28, 
2019 and September 25, 2019 where staff provided an overview of the 
changes to ADU Law that were the result of the State chaptering AB 2299 and 
SB 1069 in 2017, as well as SB 229 and AB 494 in 2018.  From these two 
workshops a Draft Ordinance (the “2019 Draft Ordinance”) was completed and 
was to be processed through the public hearing process.  At the September 
25, 2019 workshop, staff reviewed the pending Assembly and Senate Bills (SB 
13, AB 68 and AB 881) with the Planning Commission and indicated that they 
were making their way through the legislature and were likely to be on the 
Governor’s desk and, if approved, would require the 2019 Draft Ordinance to 
be revised.  As a result of the Assembly and Senate Bills being chapter into 
State ADU Law in 2020, the format and regulations of the City’s 2019 Draft 
ADU Ordinance was necessary to be completely revised. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
ADU vs JADU 
 
One key component of the new ADU laws is that cities are now required to 
allow JADUs, whereas, in the 2019 Draft Ordinance staff elected to not allow 
JADUs since they were not required at that time.  While they are similar types 
of units, there are some key differences.  ADUs and JADUs are both 
independent living units with an exterior entrance into the unit; however, 
JADUs are limited to no more than 500 square feet.  Additionally, JADUs are 
limited to an efficiency size kitchen, can have an internal access to the primary 
dwelling unit, and can share sanitary facilities with the primary unit. 
Conversely, ADUs can be up to 1,000 square feet, must be fully self-contained 
(including sanitation), and may not include internal access to the primary 
dwelling unit. 
 
 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Proposed New Regulations 
 
Under the new regulations, the City must allow ADUs in all residential zones 
and any mixed-use zone that permits residential dwelling units.  The City must 
also allow JADUs in any property developed with a single-family dwelling unit.  
Under the proposed amendment, ADUs and JADUs will be allowed under the 
following four circumstances: 
 

1. Convert existing space in a single-family dwelling unit to provide 
either an ADU or a JADU.  In this case, only one ADU or JADU is 
allowed. 

 
2. Convert existing space in a single-family dwelling unit to build a JADU 

and construct a new detached ADU.  In this case, both an ADU and 
JADU are allowed. 

 
3. Convert non-habitable space, such as garages, storage rooms, etc., 

in a multiple-family dwelling unit property into ADUs.  The number of 
ADUs on the property may not exceed 25 percent of the total number 
of units.  A minimum of one ADU will be allowed and JADUs are not 
permitted. 

 
4. No more than two detached ADUs can be constructed on the same 

property as a multiple-family dwelling unit. This limits the total 
number of ADUs for the entire property to two.  JADUs are not 
permitted. 

 
It is important to note that for the purpose of implementing these new 
regulations, multiple-family dwelling units that are approved and built as a 
single complex are considered one property, regardless of the number of 
parcels. 
 
Lot and Unit Size 
 
In addition to allowing ADUs and JADUs in the residential zones, the new State 
regulations eliminate minimum lot size, thus providing the potential to 
construct either an ADU or JADU on every residential property in the City. The 
State has included several provisions that regulate unit size of ADUs and 
JADUs. The City is required to allow ADUs and JADUs that qualify as efficiency 
units under the building code.  In these cases, the units can be as small as 
220 square feet.  Additionally, the City cannot apply floor area limits or site 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 5 of 10 
 

coverage requirements if it prevents a minimum of 800 square foot ADU.  
Under State law, the maximum unit size for an attached ADU is 50 percent of 
the primary dwelling; while a detached ADU has a maximum size of 1,200 
square feet.  However, with adopting a local ordinance, the City may apply a 
smaller maximum size of an ADU.  The smallest maximum size of an ADU that 
the City may establish is 850 square feet for studios and one-bedroom and 
1,000 square feet for two-bedroom.  The size of JADUs cannot exceed 500 
square feet.  The proposed ADU Ordinance utilizes these minimum and 
maximums. 
 
Parking  
 
The new State ADU law allows the City to require one parking space for all 
new ADUs, but is prohibited to require parking for JADUs.  However, the City 
is required to waive the ADU parking requirement in the following 
circumstances: 
 

• The ADU is located within one-half (½) mile walking distance of public 
transit; 

 
• The ADU is located within an architecturally and historically 

significant historic district; 
 
• The ADU is proposed to be converted from the existing space entirely 

within the primary dwelling unit or an existing accessory structure; 
or 

 
• The ADU is located in a permit parking area where on-street parking 

permits are required, but not offered to the occupant(s) of the 
accessory dwelling unit; and 

 
• The ADU is located within one (1) block of a designated car share 

pick up and drop off location. 
 
The State clarified public transit from the 2017 ADU Legislation to mean a 
fixed route bus, train, or subway that is open to the public and charges set 
fares.  The State further clarified that the one-half (½) mile distance is a 
walking distance, not based on a radius, or “as-the-crow flies”. 
 
If an owner wishes to convert their existing garage to an ADU, the new ADU 
laws prevent the City from requiring replacement parking for the garage 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 6 of 10 
 

spaces lost to the conversion.  This allowance does not apply to JADUs, which 
must provide replacement parking if they convert a garage. 
 
Owner-Occupant 
 
The 2019 Draft Ordinance had previously required the property owner to live 
in either the primary unit or the ADU.  Under the new State requirements, the 
City is not permitted to impose an owner-occupant requirement.  This does 
not void previous covenants requiring owner-occupants for the ADUs.  
Notwithstanding this, an owner-occupant is required for single-family 
residences developed with JADUs. 
 
Setbacks 
 
State ADU Law does not require additional building setbacks for the conversion 
of existing accessory structures to an ADU.  Additionally, not more than a four 
(4) foot side and rear setbacks can be required for new ADU construction.  
One area where local regulations have some flexibility is the side street 
setback for corner lots.  The proposed Ordinance requires a minimum setback 
of fifteen (15) feet on the side street.  This will enable an adequate open yard 
for visual relief but not be too excessive to conflict with the minimum size 
standard of 800 square feet in the ADU Law.  The Ordinance also requires that 
all corner lots must provide and maintain a clear vision triangle at the 
intersection of the streets’ right-of-way for the purpose of traffic safety. 
 
Synopsis of New ADU Regulations 
 
In addition to the items discussed above, the new ADU laws provide a greater 
height and, in some cases, reduced setbacks for detached units.  The new 
ADU laws (See Exhibit 3) also provide the State new tools to enforce 
compliance with Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22.  A 
summary of the recent legislation, among other changes, addresses the 
following: 
 

• Development standards shall not include requirements on minimum 
lot size. 

 
• Clarifies areas designated for ADUs may be based on water and sewer 

and impacts on traffic flow and public safety. 
 

• Eliminates owner-occupancy requirements by local agencies. 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 
• Prohibits a local agency from establishing a maximum size of an ADU 

of less than 850 square feet, or 1000 square feet if the ADU contains 
more than one bedroom. 

 
• Clarifies that when ADUs are created through the conversion of a 

garage, carport or covered parking structure, replacement off-street 
parking spaces cannot be required by the local agency. 

 
• Reduces the maximum ADU and JADU application review time from 

120 days to 60 days. 
 

• Clarifies “public transit” to include various means of transportation 
that charge set fees, run on fixed routes and are available to the 
public. 

 
• Establishes impact fee exemptions or limitations based on the size of 

the ADU.  ADUs up to 750 square feet are exempt from impact fees 
and impact fees for an ADU of 750 square feet or larger shall be 
proportional to the relationship of the ADU to the primary dwelling 
unit. 

 
• Defines an “accessory structure” to mean a structure that is 

accessory or incidental to a dwelling on the same lot as the ADU. 
 

• Authorizes HCD to notify the local agency if the department finds that 
their ADU ordinance is not in compliance with state law. 

 
• Clarifies that a local agency may identify an ADU or JADU as an 

adequate site to satisfy RHNA housing needs as specified in Gov. 
Code Section 65583.1(a) and 65852.2. 

 
• Allows a permitted JADU to be constructed within the walls of the 

proposed or existing single-family residence and eliminates the 
required inclusion of an existing bedroom or an interior entry into the 
single-family residence. 

 
• Allows upon application and approval, an owner of a substandard 

ADU 5 years to correct the violation, if the violation is not a health 
and safety issue, as determined by the enforcement agency. 

 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 8 of 10 
 

• Creates a narrow exemption to the prohibition for ADUs to be sold or 
otherwise conveyed separate from the primary dwelling by allowing 
deed-restricted sales to occur.  To qualify, the primary dwelling and 
the ADU are to be built by a qualified non-profit corporation whose 
mission is to provide units to low-income households. 

 
• Removes covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs) that either 

effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the construction or use 
of an ADU or JADU on a lot zoned for single-family residential use are 
void and unenforceable. 

 
• Requires local agency housing elements to include a plan that 

incentivizes and promotes the creation of ADUs that can offer 
affordable rents for very low, low-, or moderate-income households 
and requires HCD to develop a list of state grants and financial 
incentives in connection with the planning, construction and 
operation of affordable ADUs. 

 
State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) Review  
 
Paragraph (h) of Government Code Section 65852.2 requires the City submit 
the ADU Ordinance to the State Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) within 60 days of adoption.  Should the City Council 
ultimately approve the proposed Ordinance to amend Chapter 17.37, staff will 
forward the Ordinance to HCD for review.  If HCD finds the Ordinance does 
not comply with the new ADU laws, HCD will notify the City.  Should this occur, 
the City would have 30 days to either amend the Ordinance or adopt additional 
findings that explain the reason the Ordinance complies with the statute. 
 
General Plan Consistency 
 
The law states that ADUs shall be deemed an accessory use and shall not be 
considered to exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which it is located, 
and shall be deemed a residential use that is consistent with the existing 
general plan and zoning district for the lot. Therefore, no amendments to the 
General Plan are required.  In reviewing the General Plan, the proposed 
Ordinance is consistent with the following policies: 
 
A. Land Use Policy LU-1.5.  Range of Housing Types and Densities.  Provide 

high-quality housing in a range of types, densities, and unit sizes that 
meets the housing needs of residents of all income levels. 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 9 of 10 
 

B. Housing Element Policy HE–2.4.  Housing Incentives.  Facilitate the 
development of a mix of prices, types, and affordability of housing 
products through the implementation of flexible standards, efficient 
permitting process, and other assistance. 

 
C. Housing Element Policy HE–3.7.  Fair Housing.  Promote equal and fair 

housing opportunities for residents from all walks of life for adequate 
choice to purchase or rent a home or live in a neighborhood that is best 
suited to their individual needs. 

 
Relationship to Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) 
 
ADUs and JADUs will count towards the City’s housing production in meeting 
RHNA housing targets.  The City just recently received from SCAG an 
extraordinary and unprecedented high RHNA allocation of 5,673 units for the 
upcoming 6th Cycle, 2021-2029 Housing Element planning period.  Staff 
anticipates using ADUs as a strategy in identifying to HCD that the City has 
adequate sites and capacity to meet a certain percentage of the allocation.  
Government Code Sections 65852.2(m) and 65583.1 provide HCD full 
discretion in determining how ADUs and JADUs count towards meeting RHNA. 
 
In most cities and counties, regulations for ADUs were much more restrictive 
before recent changes in law were adopted.  Should the City promote ADU 
and JADU development, production may increase and the City could rely more 
heavily on them to meet the City’s RHNA.  HCD has indicated that they are in 
the process of preparing a memorandum to provide cities and counties 
guidance on how ADUs may be utilized in identifying adequate sites in this 
upcoming Housing Element update. 
 
Abilities for Homeowner’s Association (HOA) to Regulate 
 
In addition to the aforementioned State laws that prescribe the regulations 
the City must implement, the State also enacted AB 670 (Chapter 178, 
Statutes of 2019).  AB 670 deems any CC&R recorded to a property that is 
zoned for single-family residential uses and prohibits, or unreasonably 
restricts, ADUs or JADUs is null and unenforceable. This effectively eliminates 
an HOA’s ability to prohibit ADUs in residential development, such as a specific 
plan or developments where HOA’s exist.  These State laws do not apply to 
multi-family zones so theoretically an HOA could enforce private CC&Rs in this 
situation; however, the State Legislature could expand the prohibition to all 



September 23, 2020 
Planning Commission Meeting 

ZA 20-0001 
Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Page 10 of 10 
 

residential zones if a significant impediment to ADU and JADU production 
resulted. 
 
Capacity to Accommodate ADUs and JADUs Citywide 
 
Since ADUs are now permitted on all residential properties and in some cases 
multiple ADUs and/or JADUs can be provided, it is undetermined as to the 
maximum number of ADUs and JADUs that could be constructed.  While staff 
does anticipate a huge influx of ADUs, the submittals can be expected to 
increase and eventually taper off over time.  It is highly unlikely and 
speculative that every property in the City will construct an ADU and/or JADU.  
ADUs and JADUs will be reviewed much like any room addition or new house. 
 
Alternatives 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend revisions to the Draft Ordinance 
provided the revisions are consistent with State law and are not more 
restrictive than the State’s allowances.  Noncompliance with State law will 
render the ADU Ordinance null and void, thus requiring the City to continue to 
utilize the State’s more lenient ADU standards until the City modifies its 
regulation appropriately. 
 
Environmental Review 
 
The project is exempt from environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 
21080.17 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15282(h), which states that “the 
adoption of an ordinance regarding second units in a single-family or 
multifamily zone by a city or county to implement the provisions of Sections 
65852.1 and 65852.2 of the Government Code” are exempt from the 
requirements of CEQA.  Similarly, the ministerial approval of ADUs would not 
be a project for CEQA purposes, and environmental review would not be 
required prior to approving individual applications. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit A: Planning Commission Resolution 
Exhibit B: Draft New ADU Ordinance 
Exhibit C: California Department of Housing and Community Development 

Accessory Dwelling Unit Memorandum, dated January 10, 2020 



 

 

Exhibit A – Planning Commission Resolution 

 



EXHIBIT A 
      RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF UPLAND RECOMMENDING THAT 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UPLAND ADOPT 
AN ORDINANCE, ZONING CODE AMENDMENT NO. 
ZCA-20-0001, AMENDING CHAPTER 17.37 
CONCENRING ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS, AND 
FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT FROM 
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

 
Intent of the Parties and Findings 
 

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2017, Assembly Bill 2299 (“AB 2299”) and Senate 
Bill 1069 (“SB 1069”) amended Government Code Section 65852.2 to limit the standards 
cities may impose on new ADUs and require city ordinances to incorporate State-
mandated standards for certain types of ADUs. And, effective January 1, 2020, Senate 
Bill 13 (“SB 13”), Assembly Bill 68 (“AB 68”), and Assembly Bill 881 (“AB 881”) again 
amended Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 to further limit the standards 
cities may impose on accessory dwelling units (“ADUs”) and junior accessory dwelling 
units (“JADUs”).  The Ordinance updates the City’s local standards to comply with the 
revisions to state law. 

WHEREAS, the City of Upland’s existing ADU Ordinance does not comply with 
Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 65852.22, and has been deemed null and void 
since January 1, 2017. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend its local regulations for the construction of 
ADUs and JADUs to comply with the amended provisions of Government Code Sections 
65852.2 and 65852.22. 

WHEREAS, allowing ADUs and JADUs in conjunction with existing or proposed 
residential development provides additional rental housing stock, some of which will 
satisfy the City’s 6th Cycle Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA). 

WHEREAS, the proposed Zoning Code Amendment is consistent with the Upland 
General Plan and implement the following General Plan Goals and Policies: 

Policy LU-1.5.  Range of Housing Types and Densities.  Provide high-quality housing 
in a range of types, densities, and unit sizes that meets the housing needs of 
residents of all income levels. 
 
Policy HE – 2.4.  Housing Incentives.  Facilitate the development of a mix of prices, 
types, and affordability of housing products through the implementation of flexible 
standards, efficient permitting process, and other assistance. 
 
Policy HE – 3.7.  Fair Housing.  Promote equal and fair housing opportunities for 
residents from all walks of life for adequate choice to purchase or rent a home or live 
in a neighborhood that is best suited to their individual needs. 

 



ZA-20-0001 
Page 2 of 5 

 
WHEREAS, Upland Municipal Code Section 17.43.020 (Table 17.43-1) identifies 

the decision making authority as the City Council, with the Planning Commission 
being a recommending body; and 
 

WHEREAS, A notice of a public hearing on said application has been given in 
the manner and for the time required by law; and 

 
WHEREAS, On September 23, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. the Planning Commission 

conducted a public hearing for the Zoning Code Amendment, and heard and 
considered both oral and written evidence.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission hereby finds, determines and 

resolves and recommends as follows:  
 

Section 1. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council: 
 

A. Adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 17.37 of the Upland Municipal Code 
regulating accessory dwelling units for compliance with recent changes to 
State Government Code section 65852.2 and 65852.22. 

Section 2. FINDINGS.  The Planning Commission hereby makes the following 
findings and determinations in connection with the recommendation for approval of 
the Project:   

A. The above Recitals are true and correct. 
 
B. Upland Municipal Code Section 17.48.060 provides that the approval body, 

before it may approve a Zoning Code Amendment, shall make a determination 
to allow the activity based upon the following findings: 

1. Finding: The proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan and 
any applicable community or specific plan as provided by Government 
Code Section 65860. 

 
Evidence: The proposed Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance does not 
conflict with any community or specific plan and is consistent with the 
following General Plan policies: 
 
a. Land Use Policy LU-1.5.  Range of Housing Types and Densities.  

Provide high-quality housing in a range of types, densities, and unit 
sizes that meets the housing needs of residents of all income levels. 

 
b. Housing Element Policy HE – 2.4.  Housing Incentives.  Facilitate the 

development of a mix of prices, types, and affordability of housing 
products through the implementation of flexible standards, efficient 
permitting process, and other assistance. 

 



ZA-20-0001 
Page 3 of 5 

 
c. Housing Element Policy HE – 3.7.  Fair Housing.  Promote equal and 

fair housing opportunities for residents from all walks of life for 
adequate choice to purchase or rent a home or live in a neighborhood 
that is best suited to their individual needs. 

 
2. Finding: The proposed Amendment will not be detrimental to the public 

interest, health, safety, or welfare of the City. 
 

Evidence: The proposed Zoning Code Amendment will not be 
detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, or welfare in that 
alternatively the Amendment will address the State mandate to allow 
accessory dwelling units within all residential and mixed-use zones 
pursuant to the standards in Government Code Sections 65852.2 and 
65852.22. 
 

3. Finding: The proposed amendment is internally consistent with other 
applicable provisions of the Zoning Code. 

 
Evidence: All provisions of Title 17 (Zoning Code) of the Upland 
Municipal Code have been reviewed and the proposed Zoning Code 
Amendment was found to be internally consistent with all other 
provisions of the Zoning Code, and no conflicts were identified. 

 
Section 3. DETERMINATION.  In light of the evidence presented at the hearing 

on this application, and based on the findings set forth above, the Planning 
Commission hereby finds that the requirements necessary for the recommendation 
of approval of the Zoning Code Text Amendment No. ZCA-20-0001, subject to all 
applicable provisions of the Upland Municipal Code. 
 

Section 4. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA). This 
ordinance is exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") (California Public Resources Code Section 21000, et seq.), pursuant to 
State CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations §§ 15000, 
et seq.) because this zoning ordinance implements the provisions of Government 
Code Section 65852.2 and is therefore exempt from CEQA pursuant to Public 
Resources Code Section 21080.17 and California Code of Regulations Section 
15282(h).  To the extent that any provisions of this ordinance are not exempt 
pursuant to Section 15282(h), the amendments are not subject to CEQA pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), because it can be seen with certainty that 
there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on 
the environment. 

 
Section 5.  INCONSISTENCY.  If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase 

or portion of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution.  



ZA-20-0001 
Page 4 of 5 

 
Section 6.  CERTIFICATION.  The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall 

certify to the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and his certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of September, 2020. 
 
      
        

_________________________________ 
Robin Aspinall, Chair 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZA-20-0001 
Page 5 of 5 

 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 

 

____________________________ 

Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of September, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES:     

NAYS:   

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

____________________________
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 
 



 

 

Exhibit B – Draft New ADU Ordinance  

 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UPLAND AMENDING 17.37 OF THE UPLAND MUNICIPAL 
CODE PERTAINING TO ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS, 
AND FINDING THE ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT FROM THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UPLAND DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS:  
 

Section 1. Effective January 1, 2017, Assembly Bill 2299 (“AB 2299”) and Senate Bill 
1069 (“SB 1069”) amended Government Code Section 65852.2 to limit the standards cities may 
impose on new ADUs and require city ordinances to incorporate State-mandated standards for 
certain types of ADUs. Effective January 1, 2020, Senate Bill 13 (“SB 13”), Assembly Bill 68 
(“AB 68”), and Assembly Bill 881 (“AB 881”) again amended Government Code Sections 
65852.2 and 65852.22 to further limit the standards cities may impose on accessory dwelling units 
(“ADUs”) and junior accessory dwelling units (“JADUs”).  This Ordinance updates the City’s 
local standards to comply with the revisions to state law. 

 
Section 2. Procedural Findings.  The City Council of the City of Upland does hereby 

find, determine, and declare that: 
 
A. The Planning Commission considered this Ordinance on September 23, 2020, at a 

duly noticed public hearing, as prescribed by law, at which time the City Staff and interested 
persons had an opportunity to and did testify either in support of or against this matter. 

 
B. At the conclusion of the Planning Commission hearing and after due consideration 

of the testimony, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. [  ], recommending approval 
of the Ordinance by the City Council. 

 
C. The City Council, at a regular meeting, considered the Ordinance on [  ], 2020, at a 

duly noticed public hearing, as prescribed by law, at which time the City Staff and interested 
persons had an opportunity to and did testify either in support or against this matter. 

 
D. Following the public hearing, the City Council considered the entire record of 

information received at the public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
Section 3. Findings.  In approving the proposed Municipal Code amendment, the City 

Council hereby makes the following findings that the Ordinance is consistent with the General 
Plan as follows: 

 
A. Policy LU-1.5.  Range of Housing Types and Densities.  Provide high-quality 

housing in a range of types, densities, and unit sizes that meets the housing needs of residents of 
all income levels. 

EXHIBIT B 



2 
 

 
B. Policy HE – 2.4.  Housing Incentives.  Facilitate the development of a mix of prices, 

types, and affordability of housing products through the implementation of flexible standards, 
efficient permitting process, and other assistance. 

 
C. Policy HE – 3.7.  Fair Housing.  Promote equal and fair housing opportunities for 

residents from all walks of life for adequate choice to purchase or rent a home or live in a 
neighborhood that is best suited to their individual needs. 

 
Section 4. Chapter 17.37 of the Upland Municipal Code is hereby amended in its 

entirety to read as follows: 
 

“Chapter 17.37 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS 
 
Section: 

17.37.010 Purpose 
17.37.020 Non-conforming Status 
17.37.030 Definitions 
17.37.040 Approvals 
17.37.050 General ADU and JADU Requirements 
17.37.060 Specific ADU Requirements 
17.37.070 Fees 
17.37.080 Nonconforming ADUs and Discretionary Approval 

 
17.37.010 Purpose. 
 
The purpose of this chapter is to establish procedures for permitting accessory dwelling units 
(ADUs) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs) on lots zoned for residential uses, and to 
implement California Government Code sections 65852.2 and 65852.22, requiring consideration 
of such uses. 
 
17.37.020 Effect of Conforming. 
 
An ADU or JADU that conforms to the standards in this section will not be: 
 
(1) Deemed to be inconsistent with the City’s General Plan and zoning designation for the lot or 
property on which the ADU or JADU is located. 
 
(2) Deemed to exceed the allowable density for the lot on which the ADU or JADU is located. 
 
(3) Considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit residential 
growth. 
 
(4) Required to correct a nonconforming zoning condition, as defined in subsection 17.37.030(7) 
below. This does not prevent the City from enforcing compliance with applicable building 
standards in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 17980.12. 



3 
 

 
17.37.030 Definitions. 
 
As used in this section, the following terms are defined as follows:  
 
(1) “Accessory dwelling unit” or “ADU” means an attached or a detached residential dwelling unit 
that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons and is located on a lot 
with a proposed or existing primary dwelling unit. For the purpose of this ordinance, primary 
dwelling, primary dwelling unit, and primary residence mean the same thing and may be used 
interchangeably. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: 
 

A. An efficiency unit, as defined by Section 17958.1 of the California Health and Safety Code; 
and 

 
B. A manufactured home, as defined by Section 18007 of the California Health and Safety 

Code.  
 
(2) “Accessory structure” means a structure that is accessory and incidental to a dwelling located 
on the same lot. 
 
(3) “Attached ADU” means an ADU that is constructed as a physical expansion (i.e. addition) of 
the Primary dwelling and shares common wall with the Primary dwelling.  An attached ADU does 
not include a manufactured home. 
 
(4) “Complete independent living facilities” means permanent provisions for living, sleeping, 
eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family or multi-family dwelling is 
or will be situated. 
 
(5) “Detached ADU” means an ADU that is constructed as a separate structure from the Primary 
dwelling, which does not share any walls with the Primary dwelling. 
 
(6) “Director” means the Development Services Director or his/her designee. 
 
(7) “Efficiency kitchen” means a kitchen that includes each of the following: 
 

A. A cooking facility with appliances. 
 

B. A food preparation counter or counters that total at least 15 square feet in area. 
 

C. Food storage cabinets that total at least 30 square feet of shelf space. 
 
(8) “Existing structure” means an existing single-family dwelling, multi-family dwelling, or other 
accessory structure that can be safely converted into habitable space under the California Building 
Standards Code, as amended by the City, and other applicable law. 
 
(9) “Junior accessory dwelling unit” or “JADU” means a residential unit that: 



4 
 

 
A. Is a minimum of 220 square feet and a maximum of 500 square feet of gross floor area in 

size; 
 

B. Is contained entirely within an existing or proposed single-family structure,; 
 

C. May include separate sanitation facilities, or may share sanitation facilities with the 
existing structure; and 

 
D. Includes an efficiency kitchen, as defined in subsection (7) above. 

 
(10) “Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including basements and 
attics, but not including a garage or any accessory structure. 
 
(11) “Nonconforming zoning condition” means a physical improvement on a property that does 
not conform to current zoning standards. 
 
(12) “Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a street 
to one entrance of the ADU or JADU. 
 
(13) “Primary dwelling” means the existing or proposed single-family dwelling on the lot where 
an ADU would be located. 
 
(14) “Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a building permit application and 
that meets the requirements for permitting. 
 
(15) “Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train station, 
where the public may access buses, trains, and other forms of transportation that charge set fares, 
run on fixed routes, and are available to the public. 
 
(16) “Tandem parking” means that two or more automobiles are parked on a driveway or in any 
other location on a lot, lined up behind one another. 
 
17.37.040 Approvals. 
 
The following approvals apply to ADUs and JADUs under this section: 
 
(1) Building Permit Only. If an ADU or JADU complies with each of the general requirements in 
subsection 17.37.050 below, it is allowed with only a building permit in the following scenarios: 
 

A. Converted on Single-family Lot: Only one ADU or JADU on a lot with a proposed or 
existing single-family dwelling on it, where the ADU or JADU: 

 
i. Is either: within the space of a proposed single-family dwelling; within the 
existing space of an existing single-family dwelling; or within the existing space of 



5 
 

an accessory structure, plus up to 150 additional square feet if the expansion is 
limited to accommodating ingress and egress. 

 
ii. Has exterior access that is independent of that for the single-family dwelling. 

 
iii. Has side and rear setbacks sufficient for fire and safety, as dictated by applicable 
building and fire codes. 

 
B. Limited Detached on Single-family Lot: One detached, new-construction ADU on a lot 
with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling (in addition to any JADU that might 
otherwise be established on the lot under subsection 17.37.040(1)(A) above), if the 
detached ADU satisfies the following limitations: 

 
i. The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four-feet. 

 
ii. The total floor area is 800 square feet or smaller. 

 
iii. The peak height above grade is 16 feet or less. 

 
C. Converted on Multifamily Lot: One or more ADUs within portions of existing 
multifamily dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, including but not limited 
to storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if each 
converted ADU complies with state building standards for a dwelling. At least one 
converted ADU is allowed within an existing multifamily dwelling, up to a quantity equal 
to 25 percent of the existing multifamily dwelling units. 

 
D. Limited Detached on Multifamily Lot: No more than two detached ADUs on a lot that 
has an existing multifamily dwelling if each detached ADU satisfies the following 
limitations: 

 
i. The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four-feet. 

 
ii. The peak height above grade is 16 feet or less. 

 
(2) ADU Permit. 
 

A. Except as allowed under subsection (1) above, no ADU may be created without a 
building permit and an ADU permit in compliance with the standards set forth in 
subsections 17.37.050 and 17.37.060 below. 

 
B. The City may charge a fee to reimburse it for costs incurred in processing ADU permits, 
including the costs of adopting or amending the City’s ADU ordinance. The ADU-permit 
processing fee is determined by the Planning Department and approved by the City Council 
by resolution. 

  



6 
 

 
(3) Process and Timing. 
 

A. An ADU permit is considered and approved ministerially, without discretionary review 
or a hearing. 

 
B. The City must act on an application to create an ADU or JADU within 60 days from the 
date that the City receives a completed application, unless either: 

 
i. The applicant requests a delay, in which case the 60-day time period is tolled for 
the period of the requested delay, or 

 
ii. When an application to create an ADU or JADU is submitted with a permit 
application to create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the City may delay 
acting on the permit application for the ADU or JADU until the City acts on the 
permit application to create the new single-family dwelling, but the application to 
create the ADU or JADU will still be considered ministerial without discretionary 
review or a hearing. 

 
17.37.050 General ADU and JADU Requirements. 
 
The following requirements apply to all ADUs and JADUs that are approved under subsections 
17.37.040(1) or (2) above: 
 
(1) Zoning. 
 

A. An ADU or JADU subject only to a building permit under subsection 17.040(1) above 
may be created on a lot in a residential or mixed-use zone. 

 
B. An ADU or JADU subject to an ADU permit under subsection 17.37.040(2) above may 
be created on a lot that is zoned to allow single-family dwelling residential use or 
multifamily dwelling residential use. 

 
(2) Fire Sprinklers. Fire sprinklers are required in an ADU if sprinklers are required in the primary 
residence. 
 
(3) Rental Term. An ADU or JADU is prohibited from being rented for a term that is shorter than 
31 days or operated under Section 17.23.1 of this Code regarding Short Term Rentals. 
 
(4) No Separate Conveyance. The ADU or JADU shall not be sold, transferred, or assigned 
separately from the primary dwelling (in the case of a single-family lot) or from the lot and all of 
the dwellings (in the case of a multifamily lot), but may be rented.  
 
(5) Septic System. If the ADU or JADU will connect to an onsite water-treatment system, the 
owner must include with the application a percolation test completed within the last five years or, 
if the percolation test has been recertified, within the last 10 years. 



7 
 

 
(6) Owner Occupancy.  
 

A. If there is a JADU on the property, either the JADU or Primary Dwelling shall be 
occupied by the owner of record, unless the property is entirely owned by another governmental 
agency, land trust, or housing organization. 
 

B. An ADU is not subject to any owner-occupancy requirement.  
 
(7) Deed Restriction. Prior to issuance of a final inspection and release of occupancy of building 
permit for an ADU or JADU, a deed restriction must be recorded against the title of the property 
in the County Recorder’s office and a copy filed with the Development Services Department. The 
deed restriction must run with the land and bind all future owners. The form of the deed restriction 
will be provided by the City and must provide that: 
 

A. The ADU or JADU may not be sold separately from the primary dwelling. 
 

B. The ADU or JADU is restricted to the approved size and to other attributes allowed by 
this section. 

 
C. The deed restriction runs with the land and may be enforced against future property 
owners. 

 
D. The deed restriction may be removed if the owner eliminates the ADU or JADU, as 
evidenced by, for example, removal of the kitchen facilities. To remove the deed 
restriction, an owner may make a written request to the Director, providing evidence that 
the ADU or JADU has in fact been eliminated. The Director may then determine whether 
the evidence supports the claim that the ADU or JADU has been eliminated. Appeal may 
be taken from the Director’s determination consistent in accordance with Chapter 17.47. If 
the ADU or JADU is not entirely physically removed, but is only eliminated by virtue of 
having a necessary component of an ADU or JADU removed, the remaining structure and 
improvements must otherwise comply with applicable provisions of this Code. 

 
E. The deed restriction is enforceable by the Director or his or her designee for the benefit 
of the City. Failure of the property owner to comply with the deed restriction may result in 
legal action against the property owner, and the City is authorized to obtain any remedy 
available to it at law or equity, including, but not limited to, obtaining an injunction 
enjoining the use of the ADU or JADU in violation of the recorded restrictions or 
abatement of the illegal unit. 

 
(8) Parking. 
 

A. General Parking Requirements. No on-site parking shall be required for a JADU. One 
(1) on-site parking space shall be required for each ADU. The parking space may be 
provided in setback areas or as tandem parking, as defined by subsection 17.37.030(16) 
above. 



8 
 

 
B. Exceptions. No on-site parking space for an ADU shall be required under subsection 
17.37.050(8)(A) in the following situations: 

 
i. The ADU is located within one-half mile walking distance of public 
transit, as defined in subsection 17.020(10) above. 

 
ii. The ADU is located within an architecturally and historically significant 
district established by the City. 

 
iii. The ADU is a “Converted on a Single-family lot ADU” specifically 
within a proposed or existing primary residence or an accessory structure 
under subsection 17.37.040(1)(A) above. 

 
iv. When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the 
occupant of the ADU. 

 
v. When there is an established car share vehicle stop located within one 
block of the ADU. 

 
C. No Replacement Parking. When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is 
demolished in conjunction with the construction of an ADU or converted to an ADU, those 
on-site parking spaces are not required to be replaced. 

 
(9) Reporting of Annual Rent. In order to facilitate the City’s obligation to identify adequate sites 
for housing in accordance with Government Code sections 65583.1 and 65852.2, the following 
requirements shall be satisfied: 
 

A. With the building permit application, the applicant shall provide the City with an 
estimate of the projected annual rent that will be charged for the ADU or JADU. 

 
B. By January 31 of each calendar year, the owner of the property containing an ADU or 
JADU shall report the actual rent charged for the ADU or JADU during the prior calendar 
year. If the City does not receive the report, the owner is in violation of this Code, and the 
City may send the owner a notice of violation. If the owner fails to submit the report within 
the time period stated in the notice of violation, the City may enforce this provision in 
accordance with applicable law. 

 
17.37.060 Specific ADU Requirements. 
 
The following requirements apply only to ADUs that require an ADU permit under subsection 
17.37.040(2) above. 
 
(1) Maximum Size. 
 



9 
 

A. The maximum size of a detached or attached ADU subject to this subsection (f) is 850 
square feet for a studio or one-bedroom unit and 1,000 square feet for a unit with two 
bedrooms. No more than two bedrooms are allowed. 

 
B. In addition to being subject to subsection 17.37.060(1)(A) above, an attached ADU that 
is created on a lot with an existing primary dwelling is further limited to 50 percent of the 
floor area of the existing primary dwelling. 

 
C. Application of other development standards in this subsection 17.37.060, such as FAR 
or lot coverage, might further limit the size of the ADU, but no application of the percent-
based size limit in subsection 17.37.060(1)(B) above or of an FAR, lot coverage, or open-
space requirement may require the ADU to be less than 800 square feet. 

 
(2) Lot Coverage. 
 

A. No ADU subject to this subsection that is located in the RS-15 or RS-20 zone shall 
cause the total lot coverage of the lot to exceed 35 percent, subject to subsection 
17.37.060(1)(C) above. 

 
B. No ADU subject to this subsection that is located in the RS-10 zone shall cause the total 
lot coverage of the lot to exceed 40 percent, subject to subsection 17.37.060(1)(C) above. 

 
C. No ADU subject to this subsection that is located in the RS-7.5 zone shall cause the total 
lot coverage of the lot to exceed 45 percent, subject to subsection 17.37.060(1)(C) above. 

 
D. No ADU subject to this subsection that is located in the RS-4 zone shall cause the total 
lot coverage of the lot to exceed 50 percent, subject to subsection 17.37.060(1)(C) above. 

 
(3) Minimum Outdoor Living Space. No ADU subject to this subsection that is located in the RM-
10, RM-20 or RM-30 zone may cause the private and common outdoor living space of the lot to 
fall below the requirements contained in section 17.04.040, subject to subsection 17.37.060(1)(C) 
above. 
 
(4) Building Height. 
 

A. A single-story attached or detached ADU shall not exceed 16 feet in height above grade, 
measured to the peak of the structure. 

 
B. A second story or two-story attached ADU shall not exceed the height of the primary 
dwelling. 

 
C. A detached ADU may not exceed one story. 

 
(5) Passageway.  No passageway, as defined by section 17.37.030(12) above, is required for an 
ADU. 
 



10 
 

(6) Architectural and Design Requirements. 
 

A. Roof. 
 

i. The ADU must have a minimum roof pitch similar to the primary dwelling. 
 

ii. All eave and gable overhangs must be at least 12 inches. 
 

B. Design. The materials, textures, and colors of the exterior walls, roof, and windows and 
doors of the ADU must match the appearance and architectural design of those of the 
primary dwelling. 

 
C. Building Entrance. The ADU must have an independent exterior entrance, apart from 
that of the primary dwelling. 

 
D. Parking space dimensions. 

 
i. Each unenclosed parking space must be at least 9 feet wide by 19 feet deep. 

 
ii. Each parking space that is provided within an enclosed garage must be at least 
10 feet wide by 20 feet deep. 

 
(7) Setbacks. 
 

A. Font Setback.  An ADU that is subject to this subsection must conform to the front 
setback of the zone in which the lot is located.  The setback on the side street of a corner 
lot must be a minimum of 15 feet.  All corner lots shall provide and maintain a clear vision 
triangle at the intersection of the streets’ right-of-way for the purpose of traffic safety. 

 
B. Side and Rear Setback.  An ADU that is subject to this subsection must conform to 4-
foot side and rear-yard setbacks. 

 
C. No setback is required for an ADU that is subject to this subsection if the ADU is 
constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure. 

 
17.37.070 Fees. 
 
(1) Impact Fees. 
 

A. No impact fee is required for an ADU that is less than 750 square feet in size. 
 

B. Any impact fee that is required for an ADU that is 750 square feet or larger in size must 
be charged proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary dwelling unit. 
(E.g., the floor area of the primary dwelling, divided by the floor area of the ADU, times 
the typical fee amount charged for a new dwelling.) 

 



11 
 

C. For purposes of this subsection (1), “impact fee” means a “fee” under the Mitigation 
Fee Act (Gov. Code § 66000(b)) and a fee under the Quimby Act (Gov. Code § 66477). 
“Impact fee” here does not include any connection fee or capacity charge for water or sewer 
service. 

 
(2) Utility Fees. 
 

A. If an ADU or JADU is constructed with a new single-family home, a separate utility 
connection directly between the ADU or JADU and the utility and payment of the normal 
connection fee and capacity charge for a new dwelling are required. 

 
B. Except as described in subsection 17.37.070(2)(A) above, converted ADUs and JADUs 
on a single-family lot that are created under subsection 17.37.040(1)(A) above are not 
required to have a new or separate utility connection directly between the ADU or JADU 
and the utility. Nor is a connection fee or capacity charge required. 

 
C. Except as described in subsection 17.37.070(2)(A) above, all ADUs and JADUs that are 
not covered by subsection 17.37.070(2)(B) shall require a new, separate utility connection 
directly between the ADU or JADU and the utility. 

 
i. The connection is subject to a connection fee or capacity charge that is 
proportionate to the burden created by the ADU or JADU, based on either the floor 
area or the number of drainage-fixture-units (DFU) values, as defined by the 
Uniform Plumbing Code, upon the water or sewer system. 

 
ii. The portion of the fee or charge that is charged by the City may not exceed the 
reasonable cost of providing this service. 

 
17.37.080 Nonconforming ADUs and Discretionary Approval. 
 
Any proposed ADU or JADU that does not conform to the objective standards set forth in 
subsections 17.37.020 through 17.37.070(2) of this section may be allowed by the City with a 
Conditional Use Permit, in accordance with the other provisions of this title.” 
 

Section 5. California Environmental Quality Act Exemption.  The City Council 
determines that this ordinance is exempt from environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act, (California Public Resources Code §§ 21000, et seq., (“CEQA”) and 
the CEQA Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations §§ 15000, et seq.) because this zoning 
ordinance implements the provisions of Government Code Section 65852.2 and is therefore 
exempt from CEQA pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.17 and California Code of 
Regulations Section 15282(h).  To the extent that any provisions of this ordinance are not exempt 
pursuant to Section 15282(h), the amendments are not subject to CEQA pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment.  

 



12 
 

Section 6. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each 
and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional, 
without regard to whether any portion of the Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.  

 
Section 7. Submittal of Ordinance.  The Development Services Director, or his 

designee, shall submit a copy of the Ordinance to the Department of Housing and Community 
Development within 60 days after adoption of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 8. Certification.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of 

this Ordinance and shall cause the same to be published or posted in the manner required by law. 
 
Section 9. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 

passage. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Upland this ___ 
day of ______,.____. 
  
  
  
  
 Debbie Stone, Mayor 
  
  

ATTEST:  
  
  
  

Keri Johnson, City Clerk  
 
  

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
  
__________________________________  
Steven Flower, City Attorney  

 



 

 

Exhibit C – California Department of Housing 

and Community Development                            

Accessory Dwelling Unit Memorandum,                            

dated January 10, 2020 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA - BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES, AND HOUSING AGENCY Gavin Newsom, Governor  
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
(916) 263-2911 / FAX (916) 263-7453 
www.hcd.ca.gov 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  January 10, 2020 
 
TO:   Planning Directors and Interested Parties 

    
FROM:  Zachary Olmstead, Deputy Director 
   Division of Housing Policy Development 
 
SUBJECT:  Local Agency Accessory Dwelling Units 
   Chapter 653, Statutes of 2019 (Senate Bill 13) 
   Chapter 655, Statutes of 2019 (Assembly Bill 68) 
   Chapter 657, Statutes of 2019 (Assembly Bill 587) 
   Chapter 178, Statutes of 2019 (Assembly Bill 670) 
   Chapter 658, Statutes of 2019 (Assembly Bill 671) 
   Chapter 659, Statutes of 2019 (Assembly Bill 881) 
    
This memorandum is to inform you of the amendments to California law, effective 
January 1, 2020, regarding the creation of accessory dwelling units (ADU) and junior 
accessory dwelling units (JADU). Chapter 653, Statutes of 2019 (Senate Bill 13, 
Section 3), Chapter 655, Statutes of 2019 (Assembly Bill 68, Section 2) and Chapter 
659 (Assembly Bill 881, Section 1.5 and 2.5) build upon recent changes to ADU and 
JADU law (Government Code Section 65852.2, 65852.22 and Health & Safety Code 
Section 17980.12) and further address barriers to the development of ADUs and 
JADUs. (Attachment A includes the combined ADU statute updates from SB 13, AB 68 
and AB 881). 
 
This recent legislation, among other changes, addresses the following: 

 
• Development standards shall not include requirements on minimum lot size 

(Section (a)(1)(B)(i)). 
• Clarifies areas designated for ADUs may be based on water and sewer and 

impacts on traffic flow and public safety. 
• Eliminates owner-occupancy requirements by local agencies (Section (a)(6) & 

(e)(1)) until January 1, 2025. 
• Prohibits a local agency from establishing a maximum size of an ADU of less than 

850 square feet, or 1000 square feet if the ADU contains more than one bedroom 
(Section (c)(2)(B)). 

• Clarifies that when ADUs are created through the conversion of a garage, 
carport or covered parking structure, replacement offstreet parking spaces 
cannot be required by the local agency (Section (a)(1)(D)(xi)). 

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/


• Reduces the maximum ADU and JADU application review time from 120 days to 
60 days (Section (a)(3) and (b)). 

• Clarifies “public transit” to include various means of transportation that charge 
set fees, run on fixed routes and are available to the public (Section (j)(10)). 

• Establishes impact fee exemptions or limitations based on the size of the ADU. 
ADUs up to 750 square feet are exempt from impact fees and impact fees for an 
ADU of 750 square feet or larger shall be proportional to the relationship of the 
ADU to the primary dwelling unit (Section (f)(3)). 

• Defines an “accessory structure” to mean a structure that is accessory or 
incidental to a dwelling on the same lot as the ADU (Section (j)(2)). 

• Authorizes HCD to notify the local agency if the department finds that their ADU 
ordinance is not in compliance with state law (Section (h)(2)). 

• Clarifies that a local agency may identify an ADU or JADU as an adequate site 
to satisfy RHNA housing needs as specified in Gov. Code Section 65583.1(a) 
and  65852.2(m). 

• Permits JADUs without an ordinance adoption by a local agency (Section (a)(3), 
(b) and (e)). 

• Allows a permitted JADU to be constructed within the walls of the proposed or 
existing single-family residence and eliminates the required inclusion of an 
existing bedroom or an interior entry into the single-family residence (Gov. Code 
Section 65852.22). 

• Allows upon application and approval, an owner of a substandard ADU 5 years 
to correct the violation, if the violation is not a health and safety issue, as 
determined by the enforcement agency (Section (n). 

• Creates a narrow exemption to the prohibition for ADUs to be sold or otherwise 
conveyed separate from the primary dwelling by allowing deed-restricted sales to 
occur. To qualify, the primary dwelling and the ADU are to be built by a qualified 
non-profit corporation whose mission is to provide units to low-income 
households (Gov. Code Section 65852.26). 

• Removes covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs) that either effectively 
prohibit or unreasonably restrict the construction or use of an ADU or JADU on a 
lot zoned for single-family residential use are void and unenforceable (Civil Code 
Section 4751). 

• Requires local agency housing elements to include a plan that incentivizes and 
promotes the creation of ADUs that can offer affordable rents for very low, low-, 
or moderate-income households and requires HCD to develop a list of state 
grants and financial incentives in connection with the planning, construction and 
operation of affordable ADUs (Gov. Code Section 65583 and Health and Safety 
Code Section 50504.5) (Attachment D). 

 
For assistance, please see the amended statutes in Attachments A, B, C and D. HCD 
continues to be available to provide preliminary reviews of draft ADU ordinances to assist 
local agencies in meeting statutory requirements. In addition, pursuant to Gov. Code 
Section 65852.2(h), adopted ADU ordinances shall be submitted to HCD within 60 days of 
adoption. For more information and updates, please contact HCD’s ADU team at 
adu@hcd.ca.gov. 

mailto:adu@hcd.ca.gov
mailto:adu@hcd.ca.gov


 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

GOV. CODE: TITLE 7, DIVISION 1, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 2 

(AB 881, AB 68 and SB 13 Accessory Dwelling Units) 
(Changes noted in strikeout, underline/italics) 

 
Effective January 1, 2020, Section 65852.2 of the Government Code is amended to read: 
 
65852.2. 
(a) (1) A local agency may, by ordinance, provide for the creation of accessory dwelling units in areas 
zoned to allow single-family or multifamily dwelling residential use. The ordinance shall do all of the 
following: 
(A) Designate areas within the jurisdiction of the local agency where accessory dwelling units may be 
permitted. The designation of areas may be based on criteria that may include, but are not limited to, 
the adequacy of water and sewer services and the impact of accessory dwelling units on traffic flow 
and public safety. A local agency that does not provide water or sewer services shall consult with the 
local water or sewer service provider regarding the adequacy of water and sewer services before 
designating an area where accessory dwelling units may be permitted.  
(B) (i) Impose standards on accessory dwelling units that include, but are not limited to, parking, 
height, setback, lot coverage,  landscape, architectural review, maximum size of a unit, and 
standards that prevent adverse impacts on any real property that is listed in the California Register of 
Historic Places. Resources. These standards shall not include requirements on minimum lot size.  
(ii) Notwithstanding clause (i), a local agency may reduce or eliminate parking requirements for any 
accessory dwelling unit located within its jurisdiction. 
(C) Provide that accessory dwelling units do not exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which 
the accessory dwelling unit is located, and that accessory dwelling units are a residential use that is 
consistent with the existing general plan and zoning designation for the lot. 
(D) Require the accessory dwelling units to comply with all of the following: 
(i) The accessory dwelling unit may be rented separate from the primary residence, buy but may not 
be sold or otherwise conveyed separate from the primary residence. 
(ii) The lot is zoned to allow single-family or multifamily dwelling residential use and includes a 
proposed or existing single-family dwelling. 
(iii) The accessory dwelling unit is either attached to,  or located within the living area of the  within, 
the  proposed or existing primary dwelling or  dwelling, including attached garages, storage areas or 
similar uses, or an accessory structure or  detached from the proposed or existing primary dwelling 
and located on the same lot as the proposed or existing primary dwelling. 
(iv) The total area of floorspace of If there is an existing primary dwelling, the total floor area of  an 
attached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 50 percent of the proposed or existing primary 
dwelling living area or 1,200 square feet. existing primary dwelling.  
(v) The total floor area of floorspace for a detached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 1,200 
square feet. 
(vi) No passageway shall be required in conjunction with the construction of an accessory dwelling 
unit. 
(vii) No setback shall be required for an existing garage living area or accessory structure or a 
structure constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure that is 
converted to an accessory dwelling unit or to a portion of an accessory dwelling unit, and a setback of 
no more than five four feet from the side and rear lot lines shall be required for an accessory dwelling 



unit that is constructed above a garage. not converted from an existing structure or a new structure 
constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure.  
(viii) Local building code requirements that apply to detached dwellings, as appropriate. 
(ix) Approval by the local health officer where a private sewage disposal system is being used, if 
required. 
(x) (I) Parking requirements for accessory dwelling units shall not exceed one parking space per 
accessory dwelling unit or per bedroom, whichever is less. These spaces may be provided as 
tandem parking on a driveway. 
(II) Offstreet parking shall be permitted in setback areas in locations determined by the local agency 
or through tandem parking, unless specific findings are made that parking in setback areas or 
tandem parking is not feasible based upon specific site or regional topographical or fire and life 
safety conditions. 
(III) This clause shall not apply to a an accessory dwelling unit that is described in subdivision (d). 
(xi) When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is demolished in conjunction with the 
construction of an accessory dwelling unit or converted to an accessory dwelling unit, and  the local 
agency requires  shall not require  that those offstreet offstreet  parking spaces be replaced, the 
replacement spaces may be located in any configuration on the same lot as the accessory dwelling 
unit, including, but not limited to, as covered spaces, uncovered spaces, or tandem spaces, or by the 
use of mechanical automobile parking lifts. This clause shall not apply to a unit that is described in 
subdivision (d). replaced.  
(xii) Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for 
the primary residence.  
(2) The ordinance shall not be considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program 
to limit residential growth. 
(3) When a local agency receives its first application on or after July 1, 2003, for a permit pursuant to 
this subdivision, the application  A permit application for an accessory dwelling unit or a junior 
accessory dwelling unit shall be considered and approved  ministerially without discretionary review 
or a hearing, notwithstanding Section 65901 or 65906 or any local ordinance regulating the issuance 
of variances or special use permits, within 120 days after receiving the application. permits. The 
permitting agency shall act on the application to create an accessory dwelling unit or a junior 
accessory dwelling unit within 60 days from the date the local agency receives a completed 
application if there is an existing single-family or multifamily dwelling on the lot. If the permit 
application to create an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit is submitted with a 
permit application to create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the permitting agency may delay 
acting on the permit application for the accessory dwelling unit or the junior accessory dwelling unit 
until the permitting agency acts on the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling, but 
the application to create the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall be 
considered without discretionary review or hearing. If the applicant requests a delay, the 60-day time 
period shall be tolled for the period of the delay.  A local agency may charge a fee to reimburse it for 
costs that it incurs as a result of amendments to this paragraph enacted during the 2001–02 Regular 
Session of the Legislature,  incurred to implement this paragraph,  including the costs of adopting or 
amending any ordinance that provides for the creation of an accessory dwelling unit. 
(4) An existing ordinance governing the creation of an accessory dwelling unit by a local agency or an 
accessory dwelling ordinance adopted by a local agency subsequent to the effective date of the act 
adding this paragraph  shall provide an approval process that includes only ministerial provisions for 
the approval of accessory dwelling units and shall not include any discretionary processes, 
provisions, or requirements for those units, except as otherwise provided in this subdivision. In the 
event that  If a local agency has an existing accessory dwelling unit ordinance that fails to meet the 
requirements of this subdivision, that ordinance shall be null and void upon the effective date of the 
act adding this paragraph  and that agency shall thereafter apply the standards established in this 



subdivision for the approval of accessory dwelling units, unless and until the agency adopts an 
ordinance that complies with this section. 
(5) No other local ordinance, policy, or regulation shall be the basis for the delay or denial of a 
building permit or a use permit under this subdivision. 
(6) This subdivision establishes the maximum standards that local agencies shall use to evaluate a 
proposed accessory dwelling unit on a lot zoned for residential use  that includes a proposed or 
existing single-family dwelling. No additional standards, other than those provided in this subdivision, 
shall be utilized used  or imposed, including any owner-occupant requirement,  except that a local 
agency may require an applicant for a permit issued pursuant to this subdivision to be an owner-
occupant or  that the property be used for rentals of terms longer than 30 days. 
(7) A local agency may amend its zoning ordinance or general plan to incorporate the policies, 
procedures, or other provisions applicable to the creation of an accessory dwelling unit if these 
provisions are consistent with the limitations of this subdivision. 
(8) An accessory dwelling unit that conforms to this subdivision shall be deemed to be an accessory 
use or an accessory building and shall not be considered to exceed the allowable density for the lot 
upon which it is located, and shall be deemed to be a residential use that is consistent with the 
existing general plan and zoning designations for the lot. The accessory dwelling unit shall not be 
considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit residential growth. 
(b) When a local agency that has not adopted an ordinance governing accessory dwelling units in 
accordance with subdivision (a) receives an application for a permit to create an accessory dwelling 
unit pursuant to this subdivision, the local agency shall approve or disapprove the application 
ministerially without discretionary review pursuant to subdivision (a) within 120 days after receiving 
the application. (a). The permitting agency shall act on the application to create an accessory 
dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit within 60 days from the date the local agency 
receives a completed application if there is an existing single-family or multifamily dwelling on the lot. 
If the permit application to create an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit is 
submitted with a permit application to create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the permitting 
agency may delay acting on the permit application for the accessory dwelling unit or the junior 
accessory dwelling unit until the permitting agency acts on the permit application to create the new 
single-family dwelling, but the application to create the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory 
dwelling unit shall still be considered ministerially without discretionary review or a hearing. If the 
applicant requests a delay, the 60-day time period shall be tolled for the period of the delay. If the 
local agency has not acted upon the completed application within 60 days, the application shall be 
deemed approved.  
(c) (1) Subject to paragraph (2), a local agency may establish minimum and maximum unit size 
requirements for both attached and detached accessory dwelling units. 
(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a local agency shall not establish by ordinance any of the 
following: 
(A) A minimum square footage requirement for either an attached or detached accessory dwelling 
unit that prohibits an efficiency unit. 
(B) A maximum square footage requirement for either an attached or detached accessory dwelling 
unit that is less than either of the following: 
(i) 850 square feet. 
(ii) 1,000 square feet for an accessory dwelling unit that provides more than one bedroom. 
(c) (C)  A local agency may establish minimum and maximum unit size requirements for both 
attached and detached accessory dwelling units. No minimum Any other minimum  or maximum size 
for an accessory dwelling unit, or  size based upon a percentage of the proposed or existing primary 
dwelling, shall be established by ordinance or limits on lot coverage, floor area ratio, open space, and 
minimum lot size, for either attached or detached dwellings that does not permit at least an efficiency 
unit to be constructed in compliance with local development standards. Accessory dwelling units shall 
not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for the primary residence. 800 square 



foot accessory dwelling unit that is at least 16 feet in height with four-foot side and rear yard setbacks 
to be constructed in compliance with all other local development standards.  
(d) Notwithstanding any other law, a local agency, whether or not it has adopted an ordinance 
governing accessory dwelling units in accordance with subdivision (a), shall not impose parking 
standards for an accessory dwelling unit in any of the following instances: 
(1) The accessory dwelling unit is located within one-half mile walking distance of public transit. 
(2) The accessory dwelling unit is located within an architecturally and historically significant historic 
district. 
(3) The accessory dwelling unit is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or an accessory 
structure. 
(4) When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 
(5) When there is a car share vehicle located within one block of the accessory dwelling unit. 
(e) (1)  Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, a local agency shall ministerially approve an 
application for a building permit to create within a zone for single-family use one accessory dwelling 
unit per single-family lot if the unit is contained within the existing space of a single-family residence 
or accessory structure, including, but not limited to, a studio, pool house, or other similar structure, 
has independent exterior access from the existing residence, and the side and rear setbacks are 
sufficient for fire safety. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they 
are not required for the primary residence. A city may require owner occupancy for either the primary 
or the accessory dwelling unit created through this process. within a residential or mixed-use zone to 
create any of the following:  
(A) One accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit per lot with a proposed or existing 
single-family dwelling if all of the following apply: 
(i) The accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is within the proposed space of a 
single-family dwelling or existing space of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure and may 
include an expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond the same physical dimensions as the 
existing accessory structure. An expansion beyond the physical dimensions of the existing accessory 
structure shall be limited to accommodating ingress and egress. 
(ii) The space has exterior access from the proposed or existing single-family dwelling. 
(iii) The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire and safety. 
(iv) The junior accessory dwelling unit complies with the requirements of Section 65852.22. 
(B) One detached, new construction, accessory dwelling unit that does not exceed four-foot side and 
rear yard setbacks for a lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling. The accessory dwelling 
unit may be combined with a junior accessory dwelling unit described in subparagraph (A). A local 
agency may impose the following conditions on the accessory dwelling unit: 
(i) A total floor area limitation of not more than 800 square feet. 
(ii) A height limitation of 16 feet. 
(C) (i) Multiple accessory dwelling units within the portions of existing multifamily dwelling structures 
that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, 
passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if each unit complies with state building standards for 
dwellings. 
(ii) A local agency shall allow at least one accessory dwelling unit within an existing multifamily 
dwelling and shall allow up to 25 percent of the existing multifamily dwelling units. 
(D) Not more than two accessory dwelling units that are located on a lot that has an existing 
multifamily dwelling, but are detached from that multifamily dwelling and are subject to a height limit 
of 16 feet and four-foot rear yard and side setbacks. 
(2) A local agency shall not require, as a condition for ministerial approval of a permit application for 
the creation of an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit, the correction of 
nonconforming zoning conditions. 



(3) The installation of fire sprinklers shall not be required in an accessory dwelling unit if sprinklers 
are not required for the primary residence. 
(4) A local agency shall require that a rental of the accessory dwelling unit created pursuant to this 
subdivision be for a term longer than 30 days. 
(5) A local agency may require, as part of the application for a permit to create an accessory dwelling 
unit connected to an onsite water treatment system, a percolation test completed within the last five 
years, or, if the percolation test has been recertified, within the last 10 years. 
(6) Notwithstanding subdivision (c) and paragraph (1) a local agency that has adopted an ordinance 
by July 1, 2018, providing for the approval of accessory dwelling units in multifamily dwelling 
structures shall ministerially consider a permit application to construct an accessory dwelling unit that 
is described in paragraph (1), and may impose standards including, but not limited to, design, 
development, and historic standards on said accessory dwelling units. These standards shall not 
include requirements on minimum lot size.  
(f) (1) Fees charged for the construction of accessory dwelling units shall be determined in 
accordance with Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 66000) and Chapter 7 (commencing with 
Section 66012). 
(2) Accessory  An accessory dwelling units unit shall not be considered by a local agency, special 
district, or water corporation to be a new residential use for the  purposes of calculating connection 
fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and sewer service. service, unless the accessory 
dwelling unit was constructed with a new single-family dwelling.   
(3) (A) A local agency, special district, or water corporation shall not impose any impact fee upon the 
development of an accessory dwelling unit less than 750 square feet. Any impact fees charged for an 
accessory dwelling unit of 750 square feet or more shall be charged proportionately in relation to the 
square footage of the primary dwelling unit. 
(B) For purposes of this paragraph, “impact fee” has the same meaning as the term “fee” is defined in 
subdivision (b) of Section 66000, except that it also includes fees specified in Section 66477. “Impact 
fee” does not include any connection fee or capacity charge charged by a local agency, special 
district, or water corporation.  
(A) (4)  For an accessory dwelling unit described in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) of  subdivision 
(e), a local agency, special district, or water corporation shall not require the applicant to install a new 
or separate utility connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility or impose a 
related connection fee or capacity charge. charge, unless the accessory dwelling unit was 
constructed with a new single-family home.  
(B) (5)  For an accessory dwelling unit that is not described in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (e), a local agency, special district, or water corporation may require a new or separate 
utility connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility. Consistent with Section 
66013, the connection may be subject to a connection fee or capacity charge that shall be 
proportionate to the burden of the proposed accessory dwelling unit, based upon either its size 
square feet  or the number of its plumbing fixtures,  drainage fixture unit (DFU) values, as defined in 
the Uniform Plumbing Code adopted and published by the International Association of Plumbing and 
Mechanical Officials,  upon the water or sewer system. This fee or charge shall not exceed the 
reasonable cost of providing this service. 
(g) This section does not limit the authority of local agencies to adopt less restrictive requirements for 
the creation of an accessory dwelling unit. 
(h) Local (1)   agencies  A local agency  shall submit a copy of the ordinance adopted pursuant to 
subdivision (a) to the Department of Housing and Community Development within 60 days after 
adoption. The department may review and comment on this submitted ordinance. After adoption of 
an ordinance, the department may submit written findings to the local agency as to whether the 
ordinance complies with this section.  
(2) (A) If the department finds that the local agency’s ordinance does not comply with this section, the 
department shall notify the local agency and shall provide the local agency with a reasonable time, 



no longer than 30 days, to respond to the findings before taking any other action authorized by this 
section. 
(B) The local agency shall consider the findings made by the department pursuant to subparagraph 
(A) and shall do one of the following: 
(i) Amend the ordinance to comply with this section. 
(ii) Adopt the ordinance without changes. The local agency shall include findings in its resolution 
adopting the ordinance that explain the reasons the local agency believes that the ordinance 
complies with this section despite the findings of the department. 
(3) (A) If the local agency does not amend its ordinance in response to the department’s findings or 
does not adopt a resolution with findings explaining the reason the ordinance complies with this 
section and addressing the department’s findings, the department shall notify the local agency and 
may notify the Attorney General that the local agency is in violation of state law. 
(B) Before notifying the Attorney General that the local agency is in violation of state law, the 
department may consider whether a local agency adopted an ordinance in compliance with this 
section between January 1, 2017, and January 1, 2020.  
(i) The department may review, adopt, amend, or repeal guidelines to implement uniform standards 
or criteria that supplement or clarify the terms, references, and standards set forth in this section. The 
guidelines adopted pursuant to this subdivision are not subject to Chapter 3.5 (commencing with 
Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2.  
(i) (j)  As used in this section, the following terms mean: 
(1) “Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit including basements and attics 
but does not include a garage or any accessory structure. 
(2) “Local agency” means a city, county, or city and county, whether general law or chartered. 
(3) For purposes of this section, “neighborhood” has the same meaning as set forth in Section 
65589.5. 
(4) (1)  “Accessory dwelling unit” means an attached or a detached residential dwelling unit 
which that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons.  persons and is 
located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residence.  It shall include permanent provisions 
for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family or 
multifamily  dwelling is or will be  situated. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: 
(A) An efficiency unit. 
(B) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code. 
(2) “Accessory structure” means a structure that is accessory and incidental to a dwelling located on 
the same lot. 
(A) (3)  An efficiency unit,  “Efficiency unit” has the same meaning  as defined in Section 17958.1 of 
the Health and Safety Code.   
(B) (4)  A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code. “Living 
area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including basements and attics, but does 
not include a garage or any accessory structure.  
(5) “Local agency” means a city, county, or city and county, whether general law or chartered. 
(6) “Neighborhood” has the same meaning as set forth in Section 65589.5. 
(7) “Nonconforming zoning condition” means a physical improvement on a property that does not 
conform with current zoning standards.  
(5) (8)  “Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a 
street to one entrance of the accessory dwelling unit. 
(9) “Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application and that meets 
the requirements for permitting.  
(10) “Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train station, where 
the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of transportation that charge set 
fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the public.  



(6) (11)  “Tandem parking” means that two or more automobiles are parked on a driveway or in any 
other location on a lot, lined up behind one another. 
(k) A local agency shall not issue a certificate of occupancy for an accessory dwelling unit before the 
local agency issues a certificate of occupancy for the primary dwelling.  
(j) (l)  Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede or in any way alter or lessen the effect 
or application of the California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 (commencing with Section 30000) of 
the Public Resources Code), except that the local government shall not be required to hold public 
hearings for coastal development permit applications for accessory dwelling units. 
(m) A local agency may count an accessory dwelling unit for purposes of identifying adequate sites 
for housing, as specified in subdivision (a) of Section 65583.1, subject to authorization by the 
department and compliance with this division. 
(n) In enforcing building standards pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 17960) of Chapter 
5 of Part 1.5 of Division 13 of the Health and Safety Code for an accessory dwelling unit described in 
paragraph (1) or (2) below, a local agency, upon request of an owner of an accessory dwelling unit 
for a delay in enforcement, shall delay enforcement of a building standard, subject to compliance with 
Section 17980.12 of the Health and Safety Code: 
(1) The accessory dwelling unit was built before January 1, 2020. 
(2) The accessory dwelling unit was built on or after January 1, 2020, in a local jurisdiction that, at the 
time the accessory dwelling unit was built, had a noncompliant accessory dwelling unit ordinance, but 
the ordinance is compliant at the time the request is made. 
(o) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2025, and as of that date is repealed.  



(Becomes operative on January 1, 2025) 
Section 65852.2 of the Government Code is amended to read (changes from January 1, 2020 statute 
noted in underline/italic): 

65852.2. 
(a) (1) A local agency may, by ordinance, provide for the creation of accessory dwelling units in areas
zoned to allow single-family or multifamily dwelling residential use. The ordinance shall do all of the
following:

(A) Designate areas within the jurisdiction of the local agency where accessory dwelling units may be
permitted. The designation of areas may be based on the adequacy of water and sewer services and
the impact of accessory dwelling units on traffic flow and public safety. A local agency that does not
provide water or sewer services shall consult with the local water or sewer service provider regarding
the adequacy of water and sewer services before designating an area where accessory dwelling units
may be permitted.

(B) (i) Impose standards on accessory dwelling units that include, but are not limited to, parking,
height, setback, landscape, architectural review, maximum size of a unit, and standards that prevent
adverse impacts on any real property that is listed in the California Register of Historic Resources.
These standards shall not include requirements on minimum lot size.

(ii) Notwithstanding clause (i), a local agency may reduce or eliminate parking requirements for any
accessory dwelling unit located within its jurisdiction.

(C) Provide that accessory dwelling units do not exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which
the accessory dwelling unit is located, and that accessory dwelling units are a residential use that is
consistent with the existing general plan and zoning designation for the lot.

(D) Require the accessory dwelling units to comply with all of the following:

(i) The accessory dwelling unit may be rented separate from the primary residence, but may not be
sold or otherwise conveyed separate from the primary residence.

(ii) The lot is zoned to allow single-family or multifamily dwelling residential use and includes a
proposed or existing dwelling.

(iii) The accessory dwelling unit is either attached to, or located within, the proposed or existing
primary dwelling, including attached garages, storage areas or similar uses, or an accessory structure
or detached from the proposed or existing primary dwelling and located on the same lot as the
proposed or existing primary dwelling.

(iv) If there is an existing primary dwelling, the total floor area of an attached accessory dwelling unit
shall not exceed 50 percent of the existing primary dwelling.

(v) The total floor area for a detached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 1,200 square feet.

(vi) No passageway shall be required in conjunction with the construction of an accessory dwelling
unit.

(vii) No setback shall be required for an existing living area or accessory structure or a structure
constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure that is
converted to an accessory dwelling unit or to a portion of an accessory dwelling unit, and a setback of
no more than four feet from the side and rear lot lines shall be required for an accessory dwelling unit



that is not converted from an existing structure or a new structure constructed in the same location 
and to the same dimensions as an existing structure. 

(viii) Local building code requirements that apply to detached dwellings, as appropriate. 

(ix) Approval by the local health officer where a private sewage disposal system is being used, if 
required. 

(x) (I) Parking requirements for accessory dwelling units shall not exceed one parking space per 
accessory dwelling unit or per bedroom, whichever is less. These spaces may be provided as 
tandem parking on a driveway. 

(II) Offstreet parking shall be permitted in setback areas in locations determined by the local agency 
or through tandem parking, unless specific findings are made that parking in setback areas or 
tandem parking is not feasible based upon specific site or regional topographical or fire and life 
safety conditions. 

(III) This clause shall not apply to an accessory dwelling unit that is described in subdivision (d). 

(xi) When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is demolished in conjunction with the 
construction of an accessory dwelling unit or converted to an accessory dwelling unit, the local 
agency shall not require that those offstreet parking spaces be replaced. 

(xii) Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for 
the primary residence. 

(2) The ordinance shall not be considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program 
to limit residential growth. 

(3) A permit application for an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit shall be 
considered and approved ministerially without discretionary review or a hearing, notwithstanding 
Section 65901 or 65906 or any local ordinance regulating the issuance of variances or special use 
permits. The permitting agency shall act on the application to create an accessory dwelling unit or a 
junior accessory dwelling unit within 60 days from the date the local agency receives a completed 
application if there is an existing single-family or multifamily dwelling on the lot. If the permit 
application to create an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit is submitted with a 
permit application to create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the permitting agency may delay 
acting on the permit application for the accessory dwelling unit or the junior accessory dwelling unit 
until the permitting agency acts on the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling, but 
the application to create the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall be 
considered without discretionary review or hearing. If the applicant requests a delay, the 60-day time 
period shall be tolled for the period of the delay. A local agency may charge a fee to reimburse it for 
costs incurred to implement this paragraph, including the costs of adopting or amending any 
ordinance that provides for the creation of an accessory dwelling unit. 

(4) An existing ordinance governing the creation of an accessory dwelling unit by a local agency or an 
accessory dwelling ordinance adopted by a local agency shall provide an approval process that 
includes only ministerial provisions for the approval of accessory dwelling units and shall not include 
any discretionary processes, provisions, or requirements for those units, except as otherwise 
provided in this subdivision. If a local agency has an existing accessory dwelling unit ordinance that 
fails to meet the requirements of this subdivision, that ordinance shall be null and void and that 
agency shall thereafter apply the standards established in this subdivision for the approval of 
accessory dwelling units, unless and until the agency adopts an on ordinance that complies with this 
section. 



(5) No other local ordinance, policy, or regulation shall be the basis for the delay or denial of a 
building permit or a use permit under this subdivision. 

(6) (A) This subdivision establishes the maximum standards that local agencies shall use to evaluate 
a proposed accessory dwelling unit on a lot that includes a proposed or existing single-family 
dwelling. No additional standards, other than those provided in this subdivision, shall be used or 
imposed, including any owner-occupant requirement, except that a local agency may require that the 
property be used for rentals of terms longer than 30 days. imposed except that, subject to 
subparagraph (B), a local agency may require an applicant for a permit issued pursuant to this 
subdivision to be an owner-occupant or that the property be used for rentals of terms longer than 30 
days. 

(B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), a local agency shall not impose an owner-occupant 
requirement on an accessory dwelling unit permitted between January 1, 2020, to January 1, 2025, 
during which time the local agency was prohibited from imposing an owner-occupant requirement. 

(7) A local agency may amend its zoning ordinance or general plan to incorporate the policies, 
procedures, or other provisions applicable to the creation of an accessory dwelling unit if these 
provisions are consistent with the limitations of this subdivision. 

(8) An accessory dwelling unit that conforms to this subdivision shall be deemed to be an accessory 
use or an accessory building and shall not be considered to exceed the allowable density for the lot 
upon which it is located, and shall be deemed to be a residential use that is consistent with the 
existing general plan and zoning designations for the lot. The accessory dwelling unit shall not be 
considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit residential growth. 

(b) When a local agency that has not adopted an ordinance governing accessory dwelling units in 
accordance with subdivision (a) receives an application for a permit to create an accessory dwelling 
unit pursuant to this subdivision, the local agency shall approve or disapprove the application 
ministerially without discretionary review pursuant to subdivision (a). The permitting agency shall act 
on the application to create an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit within 60 
days from the date the local agency receives a completed application if there is an existing single-
family or multifamily dwelling on the lot. If the permit application to create an accessory dwelling unit 
or a junior accessory dwelling unit is submitted with a permit application to create a new single-family 
dwelling on the lot, the permitting agency may delay acting on the permit application for the 
accessory dwelling unit or the junior accessory dwelling unit until the permitting agency acts on the 
permit application to create the new single-family dwelling, but the application to create the accessory 
dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall still be considered ministerially without 
discretionary review or a hearing. If the applicant requests a delay, the 60-day time period shall be 
tolled for the period of the delay. If the local agency has not acted upon the completed application 
within 60 days, the application shall be deemed approved. 

(c) (1) Subject to paragraph (2), a local agency may establish minimum and maximum unit size 
requirements for both attached and detached accessory dwelling units. 

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a local agency shall not establish by ordinance any of the 
following: 

(A) A minimum square footage requirement for either an attached or detached accessory dwelling 
unit that prohibits an efficiency unit. 

(B) A maximum square footage requirement for either an attached or detached accessory dwelling 
unit that is less than either of the following: 



(i) 850 square feet. 

(ii) 1,000 square feet for an accessory dwelling unit that provides more than one bedroom. 

(C) Any other minimum or maximum size for an accessory dwelling unit, size based upon a 
percentage of the proposed or existing primary dwelling, or limits on lot coverage, floor area ratio, 
open space, and minimum lot size, for either attached or detached dwellings that does not permit at 
least an 800 square foot accessory dwelling unit that is at least 16 feet in height with four-foot side 
and rear yard setbacks to be constructed in compliance with all other local development standards. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other law, a local agency, whether or not it has adopted an ordinance 
governing accessory dwelling units in accordance with subdivision (a), shall not impose parking 
standards for an accessory dwelling unit in any of the following instances: 

(1) The accessory dwelling unit is located within one-half mile walking distance of public transit. 

(2) The accessory dwelling unit is located within an architecturally and historically significant historic 
district. 

(3) The accessory dwelling unit is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or an accessory 
structure. 

(4) When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the accessory 
dwelling unit. 

(5) When there is a car share vehicle located within one block of the accessory dwelling unit. 

(e) (1) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, a local agency shall ministerially approve an 
application for a building permit within a residential or mixed-use zone to create any of the following: 

(A) One accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit per lot with a proposed or existing 
single-family dwelling if all of the following apply: 

(i) The accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is within the proposed space of a 
single-family dwelling or existing space of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure and may 
include an expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond the same physical dimensions as the 
existing accessory structure. An expansion beyond the physical dimensions of the existing accessory 
structure shall be limited to accommodating ingress and egress. 

(ii) The space has exterior access from the proposed or existing single-family dwelling. 

(iii) The side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire and safety. 

(iv) The junior accessory dwelling unit complies with the requirements of Section 65852.22. 

(B) One detached, new construction, accessory dwelling unit that does not exceed four-foot side and 
rear yard setbacks for a lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling. The accessory dwelling 
unit may be combined with a junior accessory dwelling unit described in subparagraph (A). A local 
agency may impose the following conditions on the accessory dwelling unit: 

(i) A total floor area limitation of not more than 800 square feet. 

(ii) A height limitation of 16 feet. 

(C) (i) Multiple accessory dwelling units within the portions of existing multifamily dwelling structures 
that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage rooms, boiler rooms, 



passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if each unit complies with state building standards for 
dwellings. 

(ii) A local agency shall allow at least one accessory dwelling unit within an existing multifamily 
dwelling and may shall allow up to 25 percent of the existing multifamily dwelling units. 

(D) Not more than two accessory dwelling units that are located on a lot that has an existing 
multifamily dwelling, but are detached from that multifamily dwelling and are subject to a height limit 
of 16 feet and four-foot rear yard and side setbacks. 

(2) A local agency shall not require, as a condition for ministerial approval of a permit application for 
the creation of an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit, the correction of 
nonconforming zoning conditions. 

(3) The installation of fire sprinklers shall not be required in an accessory dwelling unit if sprinklers 
are not required for the primary residence. 

(4) A local agency may require owner occupancy for either the primary dwelling or the accessory 
dwelling unit on a single-family lot, subject to the requirements of paragraph (6) of subdivision (a). 

(5) A local agency shall require that a rental of the accessory dwelling unit created pursuant to this 
subdivision be for a term longer than 30 days. 

(5) (6) A local agency may require, as part of the application for a permit to create an accessory 
dwelling unit connected to an onsite water treatment system, a percolation test completed within the 
last five years, or, if the percolation test has been recertified, within the last 10 years. 

(6) (7) Notwithstanding subdivision (c) and paragraph (1) a local agency that has adopted an 
ordinance by July 1, 2018, providing for the approval of accessory dwelling units in multifamily 
dwelling structures shall ministerially consider a permit application to construct an accessory dwelling 
unit that is described in paragraph (1), and may impose standards including, but not limited to, 
design, development, and historic standards on said accessory dwelling units. These standards shall 
not include requirements on minimum lot size. 

(f) (1) Fees charged for the construction of accessory dwelling units shall be determined in 
accordance with Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 66000) and Chapter 7 (commencing with 
Section 66012). 

(2) An accessory dwelling unit shall not be considered by a local agency, special district, or water 
corporation to be a new residential use for purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity 
charges for utilities, including water and sewer service, unless the accessory dwelling unit was 
constructed with a new single-family dwelling. 

(3) (A) A local agency, special district, or water corporation shall not impose any impact fee upon the 
development of an accessory dwelling unit less than 750 square feet. Any impact fees charged for an 
accessory dwelling unit of 750 square feet or more shall be charged proportionately in relation to the 
square footage of the primary dwelling unit. 

(B) For purposes of this paragraph, “impact fee” has the same meaning as the term “fee” is defined in 
subdivision (b) of Section 66000, except that it also includes fees specified in Section 66477. “Impact 
fee” does not include any connection fee or capacity charge charged by a local agency, special 
district, or water corporation. 

(4) For an accessory dwelling unit described in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (e), 
a local agency, special district, or water corporation shall not require the applicant to install a new or 



separate utility connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility or impose a 
related connection fee or capacity charge, unless the accessory dwelling unit was constructed with a 
new single-family home dwelling. 

(5) For an accessory dwelling unit that is not described in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (e), a local agency, special district, or water corporation may require a new or separate 
utility connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility. Consistent with Section 
66013, the connection may be subject to a connection fee or capacity charge that shall be 
proportionate to the burden of the proposed accessory dwelling unit, based upon either its square 
feet or the number of its drainage fixture unit (DFU) values, as defined in the Uniform Plumbing Code 
adopted and published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, upon 
the water or sewer system. This fee or charge shall not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this 
service. 

(g) This section does not limit the authority of local agencies to adopt less restrictive requirements for 
the creation of an accessory dwelling unit. 

(h) (1) A local agency shall submit a copy of the ordinance adopted pursuant to subdivision (a) to the 
Department of Housing and Community Development within 60 days after adoption. After adoption of 
an ordinance, the department may submit written findings to the local agency as to whether the 
ordinance complies with this section. 

(2) (A) If the department finds that the local agency’s ordinance does not comply with this section, the 
department shall notify the local agency and shall provide the local agency with a reasonable time, 
no longer than 30 days, to respond to the findings before taking any other action authorized by this 
section. 

(B) The local agency shall consider the findings made by the department pursuant to subparagraph 
(A) and shall do one of the following: 

(i) Amend the ordinance to comply with this section. 

(ii) Adopt the ordinance without changes. The local agency shall include findings in its resolution 
adopting the ordinance that explain the reasons the local agency believes that the ordinance 
complies with this section despite the findings of the department. 

(3) (A) If the local agency does not amend its ordinance in response to the department’s findings or 
does not adopt a resolution with findings explaining the reason the ordinance complies with this 
section and addressing the department’s findings, the department shall notify the local agency and 
may notify the Attorney General that the local agency is in violation of state law. 

(B) Before notifying the Attorney General that the local agency is in violation of state law, the 
department may consider whether a local agency adopted an ordinance in compliance with this 
section between January 1, 2017, and January 1, 2020. 

(i) The department may review, adopt, amend, or repeal guidelines to implement uniform standards 
or criteria that supplement or clarify the terms, references, and standards set forth in this section. The 
guidelines adopted pursuant to this subdivision are not subject to Chapter 3.5 (commencing with 
Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2. 

(j) As used in this section, the following terms mean: 

(1) “Accessory dwelling unit” means an attached or a detached residential dwelling unit that provides 
complete independent living facilities for one or more persons and is located on a lot with a proposed 



or existing primary residence. It shall include permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 
cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family or multifamily dwelling is or will be 
situated. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: 

(A) An efficiency unit. 

(B) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(2) “Accessory structure” means a structure that is accessory and incidental to a dwelling located on 
the same lot. 

(3) “Efficiency unit” has the same meaning as defined in Section 17958.1 of the Health and Safety 
Code. 

(4) “Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including basements and attics, 
but does not include a garage or any accessory structure. 

(5) “Local agency” means a city, county, or city and county, whether general law or chartered. 

(6) “Neighborhood” has the same meaning as set forth in Section 65589.5. 

(A) An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(B) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(7) “Nonconforming zoning condition” means a physical improvement on a property that does not 
conform with current zoning standards. 

(8) “Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a street to 
one entrance of the accessory dwelling unit. 

(9) “Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application and that meets 
the requirements for permitting. 

(10) “Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train station, where 
the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of transportation that charge set 
fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the public. 

(11) “Tandem parking” means that two or more automobiles are parked on a driveway or in any other 
location on a lot, lined up behind one another. 

(k) A local agency shall not issue a certificate of occupancy for an accessory dwelling unit before the 
local agency issues a certificate of occupancy for the primary dwelling. 

(l) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede or in any way alter or lessen the effect or 
application of the California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 (commencing with Section 30000) of the 
Public Resources Code), except that the local government shall not be required to hold public 
hearings for coastal development permit applications for accessory dwelling units. 

(m) A local agency may count an accessory dwelling unit for purposes of identifying adequate sites 
for housing, as specified in subdivision (a) of Section 65583.1, subject to authorization by the 
department and compliance with this division. 

(n) In enforcing building standards pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 17960) of Chapter 
5 of Part 1.5 of Division 13 of the Health and Safety Code for an accessory dwelling unit described in 
paragraph (1) or (2) below, a local agency, upon request of an owner of an accessory dwelling unit 



for a delay in enforcement, shall delay enforcement of a building standard, subject to compliance with 
Section 17980.12 of the Health and Safety Code: 

(1) The accessory dwelling unit was built before January 1, 2020. 

(2) The accessory dwelling unit was built on or after January 1, 2020, in a local jurisdiction that, at the 
time the accessory dwelling unit was built, had a noncompliant accessory dwelling unit ordinance, but 
the ordinance is compliant at the time the request is made. 

(o) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2025, and as of that date is repealed  
become operative on January 1, 2025. 

 



 

Effective January 1, 2020, Section 65852.22 of the Government Code is amended to read (changes 
noted in strikeout, underline/italics) (AB 68 (Ting)): 

65852.22. 
 (a) Notwithstanding Section 65852.2, a local agency may, by ordinance, provide for the creation of 
junior accessory dwelling units in single-family residential zones. The ordinance may require a permit 
to be obtained for the creation of a junior accessory dwelling unit, and shall do all of the following: 
(1) Limit the number of junior accessory dwelling units to one per residential lot zoned for single-
family residences with a single-family residence already built  built, or proposed to be built,  on the 
lot. 
(2) Require owner-occupancy in the single-family residence in which the junior accessory dwelling 
unit will be permitted. The owner may reside in either the remaining portion of the structure or the 
newly created junior accessory dwelling unit. Owner-occupancy shall not be required if the owner is 
another governmental agency, land trust, or housing organization. 
(3) Require the recordation of a deed restriction, which shall run with the land, shall be filed with the 
permitting agency, and shall include both of the following: 
(A) A prohibition on the sale of the junior accessory dwelling unit separate from the sale of the single-
family residence, including a statement that the deed restriction may be enforced against future 
purchasers. 
(B) A restriction on the size and attributes of the junior accessory dwelling unit that conforms with this 
section. 
(4) Require a permitted junior accessory dwelling unit to be constructed within the existing  walls of 
the structure, and require the inclusion of an existing bedroom. proposed or existing single-family 
residence.  
(5) Require a permitted junior accessory dwelling to include a separate entrance from the main 
entrance to the structure, with an interior entry to the main living area. A permitted junior accessory 
dwelling may include a second interior doorway for sound attenuation. proposed or existing single-
family residence.  
(6) Require the permitted junior accessory dwelling unit to include an efficiency kitchen, which shall 
include all of the following:   
(A) A sink with a maximum waste line diameter of 1.5 inches. 
(B) (A)  A cooking facility with appliances that do not require electrical service greater than 120 volts, 
or natural or propane gas. appliances.  
(C) (B)  A food preparation counter and storage cabinets that are of reasonable size in relation to the 
size of the junior accessory dwelling unit. 
(b) (1) An ordinance shall not require additional parking as a condition to grant a permit. 
(2) This subdivision shall not be interpreted to prohibit the requirement of an inspection, including the 
imposition of a fee for that inspection, to determine whether if  the junior accessory dwelling unit is in 
compliance  complies  with applicable building standards. 
(c) An application for a permit pursuant to this section shall, notwithstanding Section 65901 or 65906 
or any local ordinance regulating the issuance of variances or special use permits, be considered 
ministerially, without discretionary review or a hearing. A permit shall be issued within 120 days of 
submission of an application for a permit pursuant to this section.  The permitting agency shall act on 
the application to create a junior accessory dwelling unit within 60 days from the date the local 
agency receives a completed application if there is an existing single-family dwelling on the lot. If the 
permit application to create a junior accessory dwelling unit is submitted with a permit application to 
create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the permitting agency may delay acting on the permit 
application for the junior accessory dwelling unit until the permitting agency acts on the permit 
application to create the new single-family dwelling, but the application to create the junior accessory 
dwelling unit shall still be considered ministerially without discretionary review or a hearing. If the 



applicant requests a delay, the 60-day time period shall be tolled for the period of the delay.  A local 
agency may charge a fee to reimburse the local agency for costs incurred in connection with the 
issuance of a permit pursuant to this section. 
(d) For the  purposes of any fire or life protection ordinance or regulation, a junior accessory dwelling 
unit shall not be considered a separate or new dwelling unit. This section shall not be construed to 
prohibit a city, county, city and county, or other local public entity from adopting an ordinance or 
regulation relating to fire and life protection requirements within a single-family residence that 
contains a junior accessory dwelling unit so long as the ordinance or regulation applies uniformly to 
all single-family residences within the zone regardless of whether the single-family residence includes 
a junior accessory dwelling unit or not. 
(e) For the  purposes of providing service for water, sewer, or power, including a connection fee, a 
junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be considered a separate or new dwelling unit. 
(f) This section shall not be construed to prohibit a local agency from adopting an ordinance or 
regulation, related to parking or a service or a connection fee for water, sewer, or power, that applies 
to a single-family residence that contains a junior accessory dwelling unit, so long as that ordinance 
or regulation applies uniformly to all single-family residences regardless of whether the single-family 
residence includes a junior accessory dwelling unit. 
(g) If a local agency has not adopted a local ordinance pursuant to this section, the local agency shall 
ministerially approve a permit to construct a junior accessory dwelling unit that satisfies the 
requirements set forth in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (e) of Section 65852.2 and 
the requirements of this section.  
(g) (h)  For purposes of this section, the following terms have the following meanings: 
(1) “Junior accessory dwelling unit” means a unit that is no more than 500 square feet in size and 
contained entirely within an existing  a  single-family structure. residence.  A junior accessory dwelling 
unit may include separate sanitation facilities, or may share sanitation facilities with the existing 
structure. 
(2) “Local agency” means a city, county, or city and county, whether general law or chartered. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Effective January 1, 2020 Section 17980.12 is added to the Health and Safety Code, immediately 
following Section 17980.11, to read (changes noted in underline/italics) (SB 13 (Wieckowski)): 

17980.12. 
 (a) (1) An enforcement agency, until January 1, 2030, that issues to an owner of an accessory 
dwelling unit described in subparagraph (A) or (B) below, a notice to correct a violation of any 
provision of any building standard pursuant to this part shall include in that notice a statement that 
the owner of the unit has a right to request a delay in enforcement pursuant to this subdivision: 
(A) The accessory dwelling unit was built before January 1, 2020. 
(B) The accessory dwelling unit was built on or after January 1, 2020, in a local jurisdiction that, at 
the time the accessory dwelling unit was built, had a noncompliant accessory dwelling unit ordinance, 
but the ordinance is compliant at the time the request is made. 
(2) The owner of an accessory dwelling unit that receives a notice to correct violations or abate 
nuisances as described in paragraph (1) may, in the form and manner prescribed by the enforcement 
agency, submit an application to the enforcement agency requesting that enforcement of the violation 
be delayed for five years on the basis that correcting the violation is not necessary to protect health 
and safety. 
(3) The enforcement agency shall grant an application described in paragraph (2) if the enforcement 
determines that correcting the violation is not necessary to protect health and safety. In making this 
determination, the enforcement agency shall consult with the entity responsible for enforcement of 
building standards and other regulations of the State Fire Marshal pursuant to Section 13146. 
(4) The enforcement agency shall not approve any applications pursuant to this section on or after 
January 1, 2030. However, any delay that was approved by the enforcement agency before January 
1, 2030, shall be valid for the full term of the delay that was approved at the time of the initial 
approval of the application pursuant to paragraph (3). 
(b) For purposes of this section, “accessory dwelling unit” has the same meaning as defined in 
Section 65852.2. 
(c) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2035, and as of that date is repealed. 



ATTACHMENT B 
GOV. CODE: TITLE 7, DIVISION 1, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 2 

AB 587 Accessory Dwelling Units 
(Changes noted in underline/italics) 

 
Effective January 1, 2020 Section 65852.26 is added to the Government Code, immediately following 
Section 65852.25, to read (AB 587 (Friedman)): 
 
65852.26. 
(a) Notwithstanding clause (i) of subparagraph (D) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 
65852.2, a local agency may, by ordinance, allow an accessory dwelling unit to be sold or conveyed 
separately from the primary residence to a qualified buyer if all of the following apply: 

(1) The property was built or developed by a qualified nonprofit corporation. 

(2) There is an enforceable restriction on the use of the land pursuant to a recorded contract between 
the qualified buyer and the qualified nonprofit corporation that satisfies all of the requirements 
specified in paragraph (10) of subdivision (a) of Section 402.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.  

(3) The property is held pursuant to a recorded tenancy in common agreement that includes all of the 
following: 

(A) The agreement allocates to each qualified buyer an undivided, unequal interest in the property 
based on the size of the dwelling each qualified buyer occupies.  

(B) A repurchase option that requires the qualified buyer to first offer the qualified nonprofit 
corporation to buy the property if the buyer desires to sell or convey the property. 

(C) A requirement that the qualified buyer occupy the property as the buyer’s principal residence. 

(D) Affordability restrictions on the sale and conveyance of the property that ensure the property will 
be preserved for low-income housing for 45 years for owner-occupied housing units and will be sold 
or resold to a qualified buyer.  

(4) A grant deed naming the grantor, grantee, and describing the property interests being transferred 
shall be recorded in the county in which the property is located. A Preliminary Change of Ownership 
Report shall be filed concurrently with this grant deed pursuant to Section 480.3 of the Revenue and 
Taxation Code. 

(5) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (f) of Section 65852.2, if 
requested by a utility providing service to the primary residence, the accessory dwelling unit has a 
separate water, sewer, or electrical connection to that utility. 

(b) For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply:  

(1) “Qualified buyer” means persons and families of low or moderate income, as that term is defined 
in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(2) “Qualified nonprofit corporation” means a nonprofit corporation organized pursuant to Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code that has received a welfare exemption under Section 214.15 
of the Revenue and Taxation Code for properties intended to be sold to low-income families who 
participate in a special no-interest loan program.  

 



ATTACHMENT C 
 

CIVIL CODE: DIVISION 4, PART 5, CHAPTER 5, ARTICLE 1 
AB 670 Accessory Dwelling Units 

(Changes noted in underline/italics) 
 
Effective January 1, 2020, Section 4751 is added to the Civil Code, to read (AB 670 (Friedman)): 
 
4751. 
(a) Any covenant, restriction, or condition contained in any deed, contract, security instrument, or 
other instrument affecting the transfer or sale of any interest in a planned development, and any 
provision of a governing document, that either effectively prohibits or unreasonably restricts the 
construction or use of an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit on a lot zoned for 
single-family residential use that meets the requirements of Section 65852.2 or 65852.22 of the 
Government Code, is void and unenforceable. 
(b) This section does not apply to provisions that impose reasonable restrictions on accessory 
dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units. For purposes of this subdivision, “reasonable 
restrictions” means restrictions that do not unreasonably increase the cost to construct, effectively 
prohibit the construction of, or extinguish the ability to otherwise construct, an accessory dwelling unit 
or junior accessory dwelling unit consistent with the provisions of Section 65852.2 or 65852.22 of the 
Government Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

GOV. CODE: TITLE 7, DIVISION 1, CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 10.6 
AB 671 Accessory Dwelling Units 

(Changes noted in underline/italics) 
 
Effective January 1, 2020, Section 65583(c)(7) of the Government Code is added to read (sections of 
housing element law omitted for conciseness) (AB 671 (Friedman)): 
 
65583(c)(7). 
Develop a plan that incentivizes and promotes the creation of accessory dwelling units that can be 
offered at affordable rent, as defined in Section 50053 of the Health and Safety Code, for very low, 
low-, or moderate-income households. For purposes of this paragraph, “accessory dwelling units” has 
the same meaning as “accessory dwelling unit” as defined in paragraph (4) of subdivision (i) of 
Section 65852.2. 
 
 
Effective January 1, 2020, Section 50504.5 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read (AB 671 
(Friedman)): 
 
50504.5. 
(a) The department shall develop by December 31, 2020, a list of existing state grants and financial 
incentives for operating, administrative, and other expenses in connection with the planning, 
construction, and operation of an accessory dwelling unit with affordable rent, as defined in Section 
50053, for very low, low-, and moderate-income households. 
(b) The list shall be posted on the department’s internet website by December 31, 2020. 
(c) For purposes of this section, “accessory dwelling unit” has the same meaning as defined in 
paragraph (4) of subdivision (i) of Section 65852.2 of the Government Code. 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

 
ITEM NO. 8C 

 
 

DATE:  SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 
  
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
  
FROM: ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
  
PREPARED BY:  JACQUELINE HONG, ASSISTANT PLANNER 
 
SUBJECT:  LOCAL REGISTER (LR-20-0001) TO DESIGNATE 843 N. 2ND 

AVENUE TO THE LOCAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES. 
(APN: 1046-061-16) 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
REQUEST 
 
The applicants, Jeffrey and Kellene Johnson, are seeking to designate 843 N. 2nd 
Avenue to the Local Register of Historic Places. (APN: 1046-061-16) (See Exhibit A 
– Draft Resolution) 
 
SYNOPSIS 

Applicant: Jeffrey and Kellene Johnson 
Representative: Same as Applicant 
Property Owner: Same as Applicant 
Property Location: 843 N. 2nd Avenue (See Exhibit B) 
Existing General Plan 
Land Use Designation: 

Residential Single-Family Medium (RS-7.5) 
 

Existing Zoning 
Classification: 

Residential Single-Family Medium (RS-7.5) 
 

Site Size:  Project site location is 0.17 Acres (7,700 square feet) 
Building/Suite Size: 2,101 square feet 
Access: 2nd Avenue / Alley Access in Rear Yard 
Existing Conditions: Single-Family Residence  

 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Local Register 

September 23, 2020 
Page 2 of 6 

 
Surrounding Land Uses: Single-Family Residential 

 
See Exhibit B – Vicinity Map 
 

Direction Land Use General 
Plan 

Zone 

North Residential RS-7.5 RS-7.5 
East Residential RS-7.5 RS-7.5 
South Residential RS-7.5 RS-7.5 
West Residential RS-7.5 RS-7.5 

Previous 
Applications/Entitlement: N/A 

 
AUTHORIZATION/GUIDELINES 
 
Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(C) states the Planning Commission shall 
take final action on all applications for designating or removing a cultural resource or 
historic district to/from the Local Register.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
This project included the following modes of notifying the public, in accordance with 
Upland Municipal Code (UMC) Section 17.46.020. 
 

1. On September 10, 2020 a Notice of Public Hearing was mailed to all property 
owners within 300 feet of the project site.  This resulted in a total of 31 
property owners being noticed. 

 
2. The Public Hearing Notice was also published in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin 

on September 11, 2020 and posted in 2 physical locations (Upland City Hall 
and Upland Library) on September 10, 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The property was built in 1930. On March 22, 2000, the Planning Commission held a 
public hearing to consider a request to approve Local Register No. LR-99-01 to locally 
register forty-one property owners for the designation of buildings to the Local 
Register of Historic Places. The minutes for the March 22, 2000 Planning Commission 
meeting reflects that the property owner at the time, Kim Clifton, expressed that her 
property was not included on the historic survey and her property was fifty years old 
at the time of the survey and she was not sure why her property was not surveyed 
(Exhibit C-1). She conveyed that she would like her home to be added to the list of 
historic properties. After further discussion, the Planning Commission moved to 
continue the public hearing to the May 31, 2000 Planning Commission meeting.  On 
May 31, 2000 the Planning Commission approved Resolution No. 4185 to approve 
thirty-eight homes to the Local Register of Historic Places (Exhibit C-2 and C-3). The 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Local Register 

September 23, 2020 
Page 3 of 6 

 
Resolution indicates that the property 843 North Second Avenue was not included on 
the City’s Historic Resources Survey 1989-1990, and therefore ineligible to be 
designated onto the Local Register of Historic Places.  
 
On August 8, 2020, the property was surveyed by Upland Heritage. The survey 
reflected that the property was found to be recognized as historically significant by 
Local government, and was designated with a Status Code of 5. To put this Status 
Code into context, they range from 1-6, with 1 being a Cultural Resource eligible for 
the National Register (Euclid Avenue being an example) and a 6, which means the 
resource is ineligible for listing on the National, State or Local Registries.  Therefore, 
a status code ranking of 5 means that this property is ineligible for the National 
Register, but is locally significant (Exhibit D: California Department of Parks and 
Recreation Historic Resources Record). 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan and Zoning 
 
The property is located within the Single-Family Residential Medium (4-10 du/ ac; 
SFR-M) General Plan Designation (See Exhibit E – General Plan Designation) and RS-
7.5 Residential Single-Family Medium (RS-7.5) Zone (See Exhibit F – Zoning Map). 
The proposal to place the cultural resource onto the local register shows consideration 
to the policies listed in the table below. 

The request is consistent with the General Plan, as the local register designation 
would not adversely affect the intent of RS-7.5 Residential Single-Family Medium 
Zone designation. The proposal to place the cultural resource onto the local register 
implements the General Plan Policies CC-9.2 and CC-9.7 and therefore shows 
consideration for the following General Plan Goals and Policies: 

General Plan Goal/Policy Consistency 
Policy CC-9.2 Pursue eligibility and 
listing of qualified resources, including 
historic districts and individual 
resources, under the appropriate 
register(s) 

The property is currently on the Historic 
Resources Survey, and is eligible to be 
on the Local Register. 

Policy CC-9.7 Actively pursue 
maintenance and upkeep of historic 
resources to avoid the need for major 
rehabilitation and to reduce the risks of 
demolition, loss through fire or neglect, 
or impacts from natural disasters. 

The designation will qualify the property 
for the Mills Act, which will provide lower 
property taxes in exchange for the 
property owner’s commitment to a 
schedule of repair and maintenance 
intended to preserve the home’s 
structural and historic integrity.       

 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Local Register 

September 23, 2020 
Page 4 of 6 

 
Local Register 

In order for the home to be designated to the Local Register, the Planning 
Commission must find that the historic resource meets one or more of the seven 
Criteria as stated in the Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(F) (See Exhibit G).  
The property shows consistency with Criteria 1 and 2 of the required Criteria, as 
discussed below: 
 

1. It embodies distinguishing architectural characteristics, valuable to the 
study of a period, style, method of construction, or the use of indigenous 
materials or craftsmanship. 

 
a. The house was built in a Tudor Revival architectural style, which was 

prevalent during the Great Depression. This house exhibits architectural 
characteristics of the Tudor Revival style. The house has a cross gable 
roof with two steeply pitch front facing gables (one over the front porch) 
and a dormer window on the west side of the roof covered in concrete 
tile shingles. The house has a stucco exterior with half-timbering details. 
There is a chimney located on the south side of the house on the living 
room wall. The windows are original steel framed windows with a double 
casement with fixed transom and side lights windows to the south of the 
front door in the dining room and a double casement window upstairs in 
the bedroom. The house has experienced no obvious alterations and is 
consistent with its original date of construction. (See Exhibit H – 
Property Photographs) 

  
2. It exemplifies, symbolizes, or manifests elements of the cultural, social, 

economic, political, or architectural history of the city. 
 

a. This building is important historically because it is an example of Late 
Tudor Revival residential architecture built in 1930 during the Great 
Depression. The Late Tudor Revival style comprises of buildings that 
form a bridge between the Arts and Crafts movement, rooted in 
authenticity, a Period Revival styles. The Late Tudor Revival style was 
based on medieval and pre-industrial building types of northern Europe. 
Its popularity arose from a dissatisfaction brought by the Industrial 
Revolution and a desire to return to a romanticized medieval past and 
handcrafted goods.   

 
Benefits of Placement of the Local Register 
 
The benefit of placement on the local register, is that the property is eligible for the 
Mills Act.  The Mills Act is an agreement between the City of Upland, County of San 
Bernardino and Property Owner intended to assist property owners with the 
maintenance and repair of Cultural Resources in exchange for a reduction in property 
taxes.   
 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Local Register 

September 23, 2020 
Page 5 of 6 

 
Upland Heritage Support 
  
Upland Heritage has provided a letter of support for placing this property on the Local 
Register (See Exhibit I – Upland Heritage Letter of Support). 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 
The activity consists of placing the property on the Local Register for Cultural 
Resources, and involves no modifications or expansions to the property.  Listing of 
the property on the local registry will not result in changes or impacts to the 
environment.  As such, the project is Categorically Exempt from environmental 
proceedings pursuant to Article 5, Section 15061(b)(3), The activity is covered by 
the common sense exemption that The CEQA Guidelines apply only to projects which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can 
be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may 
have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to The CEQA 
Guidelines. 
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS 
 
In order to approve Local Register 20-0001, the Planning Commission is required to 
make findings related to the circumstances of the project.  Section 2 of the Draft 
Resolution contains recommended findings for the Planning Commission’s 
consideration. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
The project does not involve any modifications to the property, therefore, no 
conditions of approval are proposed for this project. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Planning Division recommends the Planning Commission adopt a Resolution 
entitled: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UPLAND, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING LOCAL REGISTER (LR-20-0001) TO DESIGNATE 843 N 2ND 
AVENUE (APN: 1046-061-16) TO THE LOCAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES. 
(EXHIBIT A) 
 
MOTION 
 

1. Find that the project is Categorically Exempt from environmental proceedings 
pursuant to Article 5, Section 15061(b)(3), The activity is covered by the 
common sense exemption that The CEQA Guidelines apply only to projects 
which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Local Register 

September 23, 2020 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 

2. Move to adopt a Resolution approving Local Register 20-0001, as set forth in 
the Draft Resolution dated September 23, 2020. 

 
EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A: Draft Resolution 
Exhibit B: Vicinity Map 
Exhibit C-1: Minutes of the Planning Commission March 22, 2000 
Exhibit C-2: Minutes of the Planning Commission May 31, 2000 
Exhibit C-3: Resolution No. 4185 
Exhibit D: California Department of Parks and Recreation Historic Resources Record 
Exhibit E: General Plan Designation 
Exhibit F: Zoning Designation 
Exhibit G: Copy of Section 17.26.1000 (F) 
Exhibit H: Property Photographs 
Exhibit I: Upland Heritage Support Letter 
 
 



 

 

Exhibit A – Draft Resolution 

 



EXHIBIT A 
  RESOLUTION NO. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF UPLAND, CALIFORNIA, LOCAL REGISTER (LR-20-0001) TO 
DESIGNATE 843 N 2ND AVENUE TO THE LOCAL REGISTER OF 
HISTORIC PLACES. (APN: 1046-061-16) 

 
Intent of the Parties and Findings: 
 

WHEREAS, The applicant, Jeffrey and Kellene Johnson, is seeking to designate 
843 N. 2nd Avenue to the Local Register of Historic Places. The property is located 
within the Single-Family Residential Medium General Plan Designation and RS-7.5 
Residential Single-Family Medium Zone. Assessor’s Parcel Number 1046-061-16; 
and 

 
WHEREAS,  the project is considered a project as defined by the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.; 
and  

 
WHEREAS,  the Development Services Director determined that the project 

qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from the provisions of CEQA per Article 5, 
Section 15061(b)(3), The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA applies 
only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is 
not subject to CEQA; and 

 
WHEREAS,   the City of Upland Planning Division on September 10, 2020, 

posted two (2) true and correct copies of the legal notice at the Upland City Hall 
Bulletin Board and at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland 
Municipal Code Section 17.46.020; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Upland Planning Division on September 10, 2020, 

mailed the public hearing notice to each property owner within a 300-foot radius of 
the project site indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance with 
state law concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Upland Planning Division on September 11, 2020, 

published a legal notice in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, a local paper of general 
circulation, indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance with state 
law concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed 

public hearing on September 23, 2020, at which time it received public testimony 
concerning the Project and considered the CEQA Exemption for the proposed project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Upland hereby 

finds, determines and resolves as follows:  
 

Section 1. FINDINGS.  The Planning Commission hereby makes the following 
findings and determinations in connection with the approval of the Project:   
A. The above Recitals are true and correct. 



LR-20-0001 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 

B. The project is consistent with the following General Plan Policies: 
 

1. Policy CC-9.2 Pursue eligibility and listing of qualified resources, 
including historic districts and individual resources, under the 
appropriate register(s) 
 
Fact: The property is currently on the Historic Resources Survey, and is 
eligible to be on the Local Register. 
 

2. Policy CC-9.7 Actively pursue maintenance and upkeep of historic 
resources to avoid the need for major rehabilitation and to reduce the 
risks of demolition, loss through fire or neglect, or impacts from natural 
disasters. 
 
Fact: The designation will qualify the property for the Mills Act, which 
will provide lower property taxes in exchange for the property owner’s 
commitment to a schedule of repair and maintenance intended to 
preserve the home’s structural and historic integrity.       

 
C. Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(F) requires the Planning 

Commission, before it may approve designation of a cultural resource to the 
Local Resister, must find that the historic resource meets one or more of the 
required designation criteria as stated in the code.  The project meets two of 
the possible seven criteria for designation of a cultural resource to the Local 
Register, as follows.  

 
1. Criteria: It embodies distinguishing architectural characteristics, 

valuable to the study of a period, style, method of construction, or the 
use of indigenous materials or craftsmanship. 

Evidence: The house was built in a Tudor Revival architectural style, 
which was prevalent during the Great Depression. This house exhibits 
architectural characteristics of the Tudor Revival style. The house has a 
cross gable roof with two steeply pitch front facing gables (one over the 
front porch) and a dormer window on the west side of the roof covered 
in concrete tile shingles. The house has a stucco exterior with half-
timbering details. There is a chimney located on the south side of the 
house on the living room wall. The windows are original steel framed 
windows with a double casement with fixed transom and side lights 
windows to the south of the front door in the dining room and a double 
casement window upstairs in the bedroom. The house has experienced 
no obvious alterations and is consistent with its original date of 
construction. 

2. Criteria: It exemplifies, symbolizes, or manifests elements of the 
cultural, social, economic, political, or architectural history of the city. 

Evidence: This building is important historically because it is an example 
of Late Tudor Revival residential architecture built in 1930 during the 



LR-20-0001 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Great Depression. The Late Tudor Revival style comprises buildings that 
form a bridge between the Arts and Crafts movement, rooted in 
authenticity, a Period Revival styles. The Late Tudor Revival style was 
based on medieval and pre-industrial building types of northern Europe. 
Its popularity arose from a dissatisfaction brought by the Industrial 
Revolution and a desire to return to a romanticized medieval past and 
handcrafted goods.   

 
Section 2. DETERMINATION.  In light of the evidence presented at the hearing 

on this application, and based on the findings set forth above, the Planning 
Commission hereby finds that the requirements necessary for designation of local 
register of the subject property.  
 

Section 3. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA). The activity 
consists of placing the property on the Local Register for Cultural Resources, and 
involves no modifications or expansions to the property.  Listing of the property on 
the local registry will not result in changes or impacts to the environment.  As such, 
the project is Categorically Exempt from environmental proceedings pursuant to 
Article 5, Section 15061(b)(3), The activity is covered by the common sense 
exemption that The CEQA Guidelines apply only to projects which have the potential 
for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to The CEQA 
Guidelines. 
 

Section 4.  APPEAL.  Pursuant to Upland Municipal Code Section 17.47.040, 
the decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council provided 
that written notice of the appeal is filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
following the date the decision was rendered, unless a longer appeal period is 
specified as part of the project approval.  Failure to file a timely appeal shall constitute 
a waiver of the right of appeal, and the decision of the Planning Commission shall be 
final. 
 

Section 5.  INCONSISTENCY.  If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase 
or portion of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution. 

 
Section 6.  CERTIFICATION.  The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall 

certify to the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause 
this Resolution and his certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of September 2020. 
 
              
      _________________________________ 

Robin Aspinall, CHAIR 
  



LR-20-0001 
Page 4 of 4 

 
  
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of September, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    
 

___________________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 
 

 



 

 

Exhibit B – Vicinity Map 

 



EXHIBIT B: VICINITY MAP



 

 

Exhibit C-1 – Minutes of the                             

Planning Commission on March 22, 2000 

 

































 

 

Exhibit C-2 – Minutes of the                             

Planning Commission on May 31, 2000 

 



































 

 

Exhibit C-3 – Resolution No. 4185 

 











 

 

Exhibit D – California Department of Parks 

and Recreation Historic Resources Record 

 





















 

 

Exhibit E – General Plan Designation 

 



EXHIBIT E: GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION 

 



 

 

Exhibit F – Zoning Designation 

 



EXHIBIT F: ZONING DESIGNATION



 

 

Exhibit G – Copy of Section 17.26.1000 (F) 

 









 

 

Exhibit H – Property Photographs 

 



EXHIBIT H: PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 



EXHIBIT H: PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 



EXHIBIT H: PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 



EXHIBIT H: PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 



EXHIBIT H: PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 



EXHIBIT H: PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 

 



 

 

Exhibit I – Upland Heritage Support Letter 

 





 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT  

          
ITEM NO. 8D 

 
 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 
  
TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 
  
FROM: ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
  
PREPARED BY: MIKE POLAND, CONTRACT PLANNING MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-10, SITE 

PLAN NO. 19-07, DESIGN REVIEW NO. 19-13, AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT EAR-0084 TO ALLOW A SERVICE 
STATION, AUTOMATED DRIVE-THROUGH CAR WASH, A 4,565 
SQUARE FOOT CONVENIENCE STORE WITH BEER AND WINE SALES 
(ABC CLASS 20 LICENSE), AND A 1,515 SQUARE FOOT QUICK 
SERVICE RESTAURANT ON PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH 
SIDE OF 20TH STREET, APPROXIMATELY 330 FEET EAST OF CAMPUS 
AVENUE. APPLICANT: ASH ETEMADIAN 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission by motion: 
 
1. Find that no further environmental review is required pursuant to California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15162 as the project is 
consistent with the development intensity established in The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan for which a Final Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH#1998051075) was previously prepared and certified, and there are no new 
or more severe adverse impacts than discussed in the prior Final Environmental 
Impact Report. 

 
2. Adopt the attached Planning Commission Resolution thereby approving 

Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-07 and Design Review No. 19-



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 2 of 19 
 

13 subject to findings and conditions attached therein within Planning Area 21 of 
the Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Project Site is located within Planning Area 21 of The Colonies at San Antonio 
Specific Plan which was approved by the City in 2012. Planning Area 21 has a Highway 
Commercial (CH) Designation. Development in this Planning Area can include 
automobile dealerships, hotels, retail uses, restaurants, gas stations, and other 
freeway-oriented commercial uses. The Planning Area’s size and orientation increase 
the exposure of the uses to freeway travelers. 
 
The purpose of The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan is to assist in the 
development of the 447.8-acre project site in a manner that will benefit local 
residents, regional consumers, the general public, and the City of Upland. The 
Specific Plan achieves this goal by establishing land uses and precise 
development/design controls within the limits of the Specific Plan. The customized 
development regulations contained in the Specific Plan address the unique 
characteristics of the site and surrounding properties, as well as the needs of the 
residential, commercial, community, and open space uses proposed for the site. 
 

 
 
PLANNING ENTITLEMENTS 
 
The project would provide for the construction of a service station, automated drive-
through car wash, a convenience store with beer and wine sales (ABC Class 20 
License), and an attached quick service restaurant.  



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 3 of 19 
 

The following planning entitlement applications are required in order to process the 
applicant’s proposed project. 
 
1. Conditional Use Permit. - A Conditional Use Permit Application is required for the 

car wash, service station, and off-sale alcohol sales in the convenience store in 
accordance with Chapter 7.0/Table 7B (Development Regulations) of The Colonies 
at San Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
2. Site Plan Review. – A Site Plan Review Application is required in accordance with 

the Upland Municipal Code to provide for the review and approval of development 
projects consistent with the adopted The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan 
development regulations, Chapter 7.0. 

 
3. Design Review. – The Design Review Application process is required to promote 

quality architectural design, site planning, and landscape development. The 
process is aimed at improving and augmenting other development control 
included in Chapter 8.0 (Design Guidelines) of The Colonies at San Antonio 
Specific Plan.  

 
4. Environmental Assessment Review. – The purpose of the Environmental 

Assessment Review is for the applicant to inform the City of the basic components 
of the proposed project so that the City may review the project pursuant to City 
policies, ordinances, and guidelines; the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) guidelines; and the City’s Rules and Procedures to implement the CEQA 
Guidelines. 

 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
Per Upland Municipal Code Section 17.43.050E, if one or more planning entitlement 
application is submitted concurrently for a single proposed project, each planning 
entitlement application shall be acted upon concurrently by the highest review 
authority. In this case, the highest review authority is the Planning Commission, 
therefore the Planning Commission will take action on the formal planning entitlement 
applications discussed above for the project. The Planning Commission’s decision is 
final unless the request is appealed to the City Council per Upland Municipal Code 
Section 17.47.040. 
 
SITE AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The 1.21 acre parcel is located approximately 330 feet east of Campus Avenue on 
the south side of 20th Street in the northeast quadrant of the I-210/Campus Avenue 
interchange in the northern portion of the Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan area. 
Presently, the site is vacant and free of any above grade structures. 
 
The site is bound by East 20th Street and a rock quarry to the north, an In-N-Out 
Burger restaurant the west, a proposed 8,825 square foot building with five (5) 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 4 of 19 
 

commercial suites (Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08 & Design 
Review No. 19-14) and the new Ford of Upland dealership that is currently under 
construction is located to the east, and Interstate 210 is to the south. The site is 
relatively flat, with no major changes in elevation. Groundcover at the subject site 
consists of exposed soil and localized weed growth. 
 

 
 

Existing land uses and Specific Plan designations on and surrounding the project site 
are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use Specific Plan Designation 
Site Undeveloped CH (Highway Commercial) 

North East 20th Street and a rock quarry. GM (Gravel Mine) 

South I-210 and Colonies Crossroads 
Commercial Center. CH (Highway Commercial) 

East 
Undeveloped lot and the new Ford 

of Upland dealership under 
construction. 

CH (Highway Commercial) 

West In-N-Out Burger. CH (Highway Commercial) 
 
The project would provide for the construction of a service station, a 4,565 square 
foot convenience store with an attached 1,515 square foot quick serve restaurant, an 
automated car wash, and a service station canopy encompassing approximately 
4,370 square feet covering sixteen (16) fuel pumps. The proposed building will be of 
wood/stucco construction with a slab-on-grade floor. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

 

 

Project 
Site 

 

CUP NO. 19-11, 
SP NO. 19-08 & 
DR NO. 19-14 

 

Holliday Rock 

Interstate 210 

 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 5 of 19 
 

 
As noted above, a Conditional Use Permit is required for the car wash, service station, 
and off-sale alcohol sales in the convenience store, in accordance with Chapter 
7.0/Table 7B (Development Regulations) of The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan.  
 
Chapter 7.8 of The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan has specific development 
standards for these uses in that these specific uses possess distinctive characteristics 
that require special development standards in order to prevent impacts on other 
nearby uses. These specific development and operational standards per type of use 
are provided below. 
 
Chapter 7.8.1 Alcohol Sales. This section sets forth the development and operational 
standards for the sale of alcoholic beverages. The following conditions shall apply to 
any commercial/retail operation selling alcoholic beverages of any kind: 
 

• The sale of any manner of alcoholic beverage shall comply with all applicable 
regulations of the State of California Department of Alcohol Beverage Control 
(ABC). 

 
• The operator of the use shall prevent loitering in any parking area serving the 

use. 
 

• The parking lot of the premises shall be lighted to a minimum level of one foot-
candle at ground level. 
 

• The premises shall be kept free of graffiti and litter. Any graffiti occurring on 
the premises shall be removed within 48 hours. 

 
• The rear doors of the establishment shall be kept closed at all times except to 

permit deliveries. 
 

• The establishment shall have a security management plan that details the 
means by which on-site security measures shall be conducted and that 
identified responsible person(s) to be contacted in case of an emergency. 

 
• In the event security problems occur, at the reasonable request of the Police 

Chief, the establishment shall provide California licensed, uniformed security 
guard(s) on the premises during such hours as requested by the Police Chief. 
 

• For off-sale establishments, a silent robbery alarm shall be required. 
 

• For off-sale establishments, the cash register shall be bolted to a stationary 
counter, visible from the outside of the premises, and located in close proximity 
to the public entrance. 
 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 6 of 19 
 

• For off-sale establishments, alcoholic beverages shall be displayed in one 
general location and merchandise shall be arranged within the establishment 
to permit eye level visibility throughout the public areas of the establishment. 
 

• Employees selling alcoholic beverages between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
2:00 a.m. shall be at least 21 years of age. 
 

• Such facilities shall not be situated in a manner that vehicle traffic from the 
facility may reasonably be believed to be a potential hazard to a school, church, 
public park or playground. 
 

• The owner and management at each location shall educate the public regarding 
driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages, minimum age for 
purchase and consumption of alcoholic beverages, driving with open containers 
and the penalty associated with violations of these laws. In addition, the owner 
and management shall provide health warning about the consumption of 
alcoholic beverages. This requirement may be met by posting prominent signs, 
decals, or brochures at the point of purchase. The owner and management 
shall provide adequate training for all employees at the location as to these 
matters. 
 

• Cold beer or wine shall be sold from or displayed in permanently affixed 
electrical coolers only. 
 

• For on-sale establishments, the sale of alcoholic beverages shall be incidental 
to the sale and consumption of food.  
 

• No sale of alcoholic beverages shall be made from a drive-through window. 
 

• No lighted advertising for beer, wine or other alcoholic beverages shall be 
located on the exterior of buildings or within window areas. 
 

• Any window signs shall be placed and maintained in a manner so that there is 
a clear and unobstructed view of the interior of the premises from the entrance. 
 

• Public telephones shall not be allowed on the exterior of the establishment. 
Public telephones inside the establishment shall be equipped to prevent 
incoming calls. 

 
Those development and operational standards listed above that are applicable to the 
sales of beer and wine in the convenience store have been incorporated into the 
attached Resolution as proposed conditions of approval. 
 
If approved the convenience store would be open seven (7) days a week, 24 hours a 
day. No alcoholic beverages would be sold between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 
a.m. Approximately three to five employees will be on site at all times to staff the car 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 7 of 19 
 

wash/gas station, convenience store, and quick serve restaurant during the business 
hours seven days a week. Lastly, the car wash, convenience store, quick service 
restaurant, and gas station canopy would be equipped with a security surveillance 
system.   
 
The Type 20 ABC license request for the convenience store is exclusively intended for 
establishments that offer off-sale beer and wine only. Premises that sell beer and 
wine with a Type 20 license are prohibited from selling liquor. This is the most typical 
license of most grocery stores and convenience stores. Notice that most grocery 
stores and convenience stores will never have a bottle of liquor on their shelves. That 
is because they obtained a Type 20 license.  In addition, a Type 20 license mandates 
that the alcohol, although bought on the premises, must only be opened and 
consumed offsite.  
 
The Upland Municipal Code (UMC) does not establish a requirement for the separation 
of sensitive uses (i.e., park, school, day care etc.) in relation to on-site sales. 
However, the State Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) Board requires applicants to 
identify the sensitive land uses within 600 feet of the site. Staff has determined that 
there are no sensitive receptors located within a half-mile of the project location. 
 
The ABC determines the concentration of ABC licenses based on the average number 
of alcohol licenses per capita in a given census tract. However, the ABC and the City 
recognize that licenses should be reviewed on a case by-case basis to ensure that 
such sales will not adversely affect surrounding residents, businesses, and 
institutions and to ensure that any such use operates in a manner compatible with 
existing and future adjacent uses. Conditions of approval will ensure the sale of beer 
and wine for off-site consumption in conjunction with the proposed convenience store 
will not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort and general 
welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the project site. If the 
Planning Commission approves the Conditional Use Permit the California Department 
of Alcoholic Beverage Control will have the final decision on whether or not to 
issuance the liquor license. 
 
Chapter 7.8.4 Automotive Facilities. Car Washes. Activities typically include the 
washing and polishing of automobiles. Uses typically include automobile laundries; 
car washes, self-service washes; and automotive detailing. The following standards 
shall apply: 
 

• Car washes located within commercial centers shall have an architectural style 
consistent with the theme established for the center. 

 
• Car cleaning facilities shall only be located in commercial areas of the Specific 

Plan, and may be stand-alone facilities or co-located with automotive gas 
stations, light vehicle maintenance facilities, and/or vehicle sales outlets. 
 

 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 8 of 19 
 

• Facilities shall be designed, constructed and maintained in a manner which 
minimizes the use of water. 
 

• All vehicle wash facilities shall include devices, equipment, or structures which 
intercept wash water which may contain contaminants. Such a system shall 
collect water and separate contaminants for proper disposal prior to the 
conveyance of water into the local drainage systems. 
 

• Except for automated vehicle washing facilities, such as those commonly 
provided at automotive service stations, queuing lanes shall provide at least 
120 feet of reservoir space for the stacking of vehicles, as measured from the 
car wash structure to the entry point into the car wash facility. 
 

• The design and locations of the car wash and necessary queuing lanes and/or 
detailing areas shall not block and/or interfere with traffic or increase 
congestion on public streets or private property adjacent to the facility. 
 

• For automated vehicle washes, the number of vehicle drying areas, each 
minimally sized 12 feet by 20 feet, shall equal two times the maximum capacity 
of the vehicle wash. For non-automated vehicle washes, two drying areas, 
minimally sized 12 by 20 feet, shall be provided for each washing bay. Drying 
areas shall not interfere with the normal flow of traffic on-site or on adjacent 
roadways. 
 

• An adequate number of waste receptacles shall be provided at self-service car 
auto washes. Trash receptacles shall be located adjacent to “vacuum stations” 
and shall be adequately screened. Areas around trash receptacles shall be 
maintained in a neat and sanitary manner. 
 

• No on-site storage of inoperable vehicles shall be permitted. 
 

• Vehicle wash facilities may include retail sales within an enclosed building, 
including but not limited to the sale of precooked or prepared food and 
beverages, packaged food and beverages, convenience items, automobile 
accessories, and other sundries. Outdoor public address systems are not 
permitted in Planning Areas 17, 18, or 19. 
 

• Adult magazines shall be kept in racks providing for the shielding of cover 
pages and be individually wrapped in plastic shrink- wrap or bags. Adult 
magazines shall only be accessible to store employees. 
 

• Loitering shall not be permitted on site. 
 
The applicable development standards listed above relating to the layout and design 
of the car wash have be incorporated into the proposed project’s design. All of the 
other development and operational standards have been incorporated into attached 
Resolution as proposed conditions of approval. 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 9 of 19 
 

 
The car wash’s entry point will be on the south side of the building. A maximum of 
one vehicle will be allowed to go through the car wash at a time. When vehicles enter 
the car wash tunnel, a belt transporter conveys the vehicle through the tunnel and 
wash/dry process. Customers will remain in their vehicles for the entire wash/dry 
process that will take approximately two – three minutes to complete. At the end of 
the wash/dry process, customers may leave the site or utilize one of the two 12x20 
foot self-service vacuum parking spaces that will be located in the parking area north 
of the building. A water recovery system is included with the system to collect, filter, 
and recycle wash and rinse water to the greatest extent possible. When the car wash 
is closed, decorative roll-down doors will secure the tunnel openings.  
 
Chapter 7.8.5 Automotive Facilities: Gas Stations. Activities typically include, but are 
not limited to the sale from the premises of goods and the provision of services 
normally required in the daily operation of motor vehicles, including the principal sale 
of petroleum products, the incidental sale of replacement items, and the performance 
of minor repairs. The following standards shall apply. 
 

• Automotive gas stations within consolidated commercial centers shall have an 
architectural style consistent with the theme established for the center in which 
they are located. 

 
• In order to provide for adequate vehicular circulation on-site, pump islands 

shall have at least a 25 foot separation from any building or car wash facility, 
as measured from the pump island curb to the building or building curb, if 
provided. 

 
• Automotive gas stations shall have a minimum of 150 feet of separation 

between on-site driveways. Driveways shall be a minimum width of 35 feet 
and a maximum width of 48 feet. Driveways shall not be located closer than 
50 feet from a street intersection (measured from the beginning and end of 
the curb return), or 10 feet from an interior side property line. Under no 
circumstance shall a driveway be permitted to interfere with the movement 
and safety of vehicular and pedestrian traffic. Gas stations may be accessed 
from a shared driveway, if the above standards are met.  
 

• Landscaped areas shall be provided in the following locations: 
 

-   10 feet adjacent to street side lot lines. 

-  Adjacent to street corners and corner cut off areas as defined in 
Upland Municipal Code Section 17.18.060. 

-   5 feet adjacent to the interior perimeter of required parking areas. 

 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 10 of 19 
 

• All landscaped areas shall be planted with living plant materials, provided with 
permanent and automatic irrigation systems, and maintained in a healthy and 
thriving condition. Landscaping shall be enclosed by a raised curb of not less 
than 6 inches. 

 
• All repair or maintenance areas, washing areas, or other service uses shall be 

entirely enclosed within a building. Vehicle service bays shall either be oriented 
away from public view, or screened from public view by a 6-foot high 
decorative wall and landscape screen. 
 

• Detached buildings housing accessory uses, such as car wash facilities, shall 
have a separation distance as required by the Uniform Building Code.  

 
• All outdoor storage areas shall be enclosed on at least three sides by a solid 

6-foot high decorative wall and landscape screen. Any opening in such an 
enclosure shall be provided with a decorative steel view obscuring gate (chain 
link prohibited). No storage shall be elevated above the top of the required 
wall. 

 
• Each pump island may include computerized payment stations. Such stations 

shall be situated in a manner that will not cause interference with circulation 
or the sale of motor fuels.  

 
• For each 20 lineal feet of pump island fascia that is served by a nozzle, one 

parking stall shall be deducted from the required parking for a convenience 
store. 

 
• Automotive gas stations shall be provided with adequate evening/night lighting 

to provide a safe and secure environment for employees and patrons. All on-
site lighting shall be designed, arranged and controlled to avoid excessive light 
and glare on adjacent properties and/or public rights-of-way. 

 
• Personnel security measures satisfactory to the City of Upland Police 

Department including, but not limited to: bulletproof windows and cashier 
booths, surveillance cameras, and alarm systems shall be installed at 
automotive gas stations. 

 
• Where operations encourage or require pedestrian traffic, the circulation 

system shall be designed so as to minimize conflict between pedestrian and 
vehicle traffic. 

 
• All vehicle parking and loading areas shall conform to applicable provisions of 

this Specific Plan. All parking spaces shall be located on-site and adjacent to 
landscaped planters. No parking shall impede or interfere with vehicle flow or 
visibility, nor be located in any corner cutoff area. No parking space shall 
overhang more than 2.5 feet into any required planter area. 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 11 of 19 
 

 
• All on-site loading and/or truck maneuvering areas shall be designed so as to 

safely accommodate fuel supply vehicles, other delivery vehicles, and 
emergency vehicles.  

 
• Merchandise, wares and crates, in the form of storage or displays, shall remain 

within the confines of the building. 
 

• The premises shall be maintained in a neat and orderly condition at all times. 
Structures shall be maintained in a condition of good repair and appearance. 

 
• Storage of used or discarded automotive or truck parts or equipment or 

permanently disabled, junked, or wrecked vehicles shall not be visible from a 
public street. 

 
• Vehicles that are in the process of being serviced and/or repaired shall be 

parked in an enclosed structure or within a clearly marked staging area. 
Outside staging areas shall be sufficiently screened from public view and be 
located in a manner that does not interfere with normal flow of on-site traffic. 
Parking spaces within any such staging area shall not count towards the 
number of spaces required by this Specific Plan. Staging area(s) shall be 
maintained in a neat and orderly manner. 

 
• All repair and service activities shall be conducted entirely within an enclosed 

building, except as follows: 
 

-  The dispensing of petroleum products, water, oil, and air from pump 
islands. 

-  Trash areas, enclosed by walls, to be integrated with the design of 
the gas station. 

-  Public telephones, provided that they are well lighted, are in a 
location that is visible from a public street, and are accessible on a 
24-hour basis. Public telephones shall permit outgoing calls only. 

• Automotive gas stations shall provide men's and women's public rest rooms 
that are accessible to the general public, including physically disabled persons, 
during all hours that the station is open to the public.  

 
• At least one air pump and water supply area shall be provided at each 

automotive gas station, and shall be located such that its use will not conflict 
with on-site vehicular movement. Charges, if any, for air and water shall be 
governed by the provisions of State law. 

 
• Automotive gas stations may include ancillary food services and retail sales 

within an enclosed building, including but not limited to the sale of precooked 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 12 of 19 
 

or prepared food and beverages, the sale of packaged food and beverages, 
convenience items and other sundries. The incidental sale of beer and wine 
from automotive gas stations for off-site consumption shall be allowed for sales 
areas at least 2,500 square feet in size, as conditioned by the Police 
Department. 
 

• Outdoor public address systems shall be prohibited, except for communication 
devices as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act or other State 
building codes. 

 
Those development standards listed above that are specifically applicable to this type 
of gas station relating to it’s the layout and design have be incorporated into the 
proposed project. All of the other applicable development and operating standards 
have been incorporated into attached Resolution as proposed conditions of approval. 
 
SITE PLAN/DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
In addition to the specific development standards discussed above, the follow general 
development standards pursuant to Chapter 7.5 of the Specific Plan are required.   
 
Development Standards 
 

Development Standards Required Proposed Meets 
Standard 

Minimum Lot Area NR1 52,925 square feet  
(1.21 acres) Yes 

Maximum Lot Coverage NR1 21.26% Yes 
Landscaping 10% min. 13.7% Yes 

Building Height 55 feet. max 
Building = 21 feet 

Pump Island Canopy 
23 feet 9 in. 

Yes 

Setbacks2    
Interstate 10 20 feet 25 feet Yes 

20th Street (for building) 25 feet 71 feet Yes 
20th Street (for parking) 15 feet 20 feet Yes 
Interior Property Lines NR1 5 feet min. Yes 

Special Setbacks for Gas Stations    

From any structure or building 20 feet 
110 feet to the 

proposed building to 
the east. 

Yes 

Pump islands 20 feet 70 feet Yes 
Pump island canopy  10 feet 62 feet Yes 
Fill storage fill pipes 15 feet 45 feet Yes 

Notes: 1   NR = No requirement 
   2   Setbacks are measured from property lines 

 
 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 13 of 19 
 

 
ARCHITECTURE/DESIGN 
 
The purpose of the Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan Commercial Design 
Guidelines is to broadly establish planning and design parameters that will allow both 
design controls and design flexibility for the future development of nonresidential 
Planning Areas. The Guidelines do not constitute specific development standards, but 
provide a framework for preferred construction design and materials while continuing 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 14 of 19 
 

to promote individual creativity and unique architectural styles that will be asset to 
the community.  

The proposed architecture reflects a clean, contemporary style smooth stucco finish, 
through the use of simple massing, varying parapet heights and exterior materials 
that are consistent with the applicable design principles within the Commercial Design 
Guidelines. A modern dark and light two-tone brown color scheme to provide contrast 
in the different parts of the facade scheme will complement the aluminum finish 
awning overhang entries.  Outdoor lighting will be required to comply with Chapter 
17.14 (Outdoor Lighting) of the Upland Municipal Code, including dark-sky 
lighting requirements. 

 
The service station would include a 38-foot by 115–foot canopy (4,370 square feet) 
with eight (8) pump stations and sixteen (16) dispensers. The canopy is designed to 
match the building with a flat roof system.  The canopy fascia has a cornice on top 
to match the building architecture and the fascia is painted to match the convenience 
store main walls.  Curved yellow ACM panels and an internally illuminated red band 
will be attached to the face of the fascia. The 30-inch by 30-inch canopy columns 
consist of natural color concrete veneer wainscot and smooth stucco which extends 
to the canopy deck to match the convenience store building. Also, included are two 
(2) 20,000-gallon double wall fiberglass underground storage tanks (USTs). 

 

 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
No landscaping currently exists on the project site. Groundcover at the subject site 
consists of exposed soil and localized weed growth. With the proposed construction 
of the commercial building, the Specific Plan requires the Project provide a minimum 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 15 of 19 
 

10 percent landscape coverage. The Conceptual Landscape Plan provides 13.7% 
landscape coverage. 
 
The conceptual landscape plan proposes the installation of a variety of new trees, 
plants, and shrubs along the project perimeter and throughout the site, including 8-
Fruitless Olive Trees (24-inch box), 5-Sonoran Palo Verde Trees (24-inch box), 4-
Sweet Bay Trees (24 inch box), and 4-Western Redbud Trees (24-inch box). 
 
The Fruitless Olive Tree is a distinctive evergreen that grows at a slow to medium 
rate to twenty-five to thirty feet tall and wide, and has an airy appearance. It has 
narrow, gray-green foliage with a light silvery-green on the undersides of the leaves. 
 
The Sonoran Palo Verde Tree is also called Palo Brea. This tree has smooth, blue-
green bark that looks like a leotard clinging to the branches. This tree is more 
sculptural looking. It has fewer lower branches and at 35 feet, is a taller tree. 
 
The Sweet Bay Tree is a slender conical form tree with dark green, highly aromatic 
foliage which is valued as a flavorful culinary seasoning. 
 
The Western Redbud Tree is a small deciduous tree and can reach 15-20 ft. tall and 
as wide. Round green leaves, 2-3 in. wide are heart-shaped at the base. Showy 
clusters of pea-shaped flowers occur in early spring and range in color from light to 
deep magenta. 
 
Ground cover consists of an assortment of low-water use plants and shrubs (1-Gallon 
to 5-Gallon). The ground plane shrubs and groundcovers were selected for color, 
shape, texture, water usage and performance from the property’s existing plant 
palette. All landscaping is categorized as low or moderate for water usage and will be 
irrigated by a low volume drip system. 
 
PARKING/CIRCULATION 
 
The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan requires 4 parking spaces for every 1,000 
square feet of commercial building area in Planning Area 21. This equates to 1 parking 
space for every 250 square feet.  However, the Applicant has chosen to utilize the 
more restrictive parking requirements specified in the City’ Development Code which 
requires 1 parking for every 250 square feet for the convenience store, 1 parking 
space for every 100 square feet for the quick service restaurant, and 1 space for the 
car wash tunnel. Also, the Specific Plan does allow for each 20 lineal feet of pump 
island fascia that is served by a nozzle, one parking stall shall be deducted from the 
required parking for a convenience store. 
 

Type of Use  Square 
Footage Parking Ratio # of Spaces 

Required 
# of Spaces 

Provided 
Convenience 
store 4,565 1/250 18.26 19 

Quick Service 
Restaurant 1,515 1/100 15.15 16 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 16 of 19 
 

Car Wash 1,684 1 per tunnel 1 2 
Pump Nozzle 
Credit N/A 1/20 LF by 

Nozzle -16 N/A 

Total        7,764 19 37 
 
The Specific Plan requires commercial buildings up to 100,000 square feet to provide 
one (1) loading space. The requirements for the size of the loading space are that it 
is to be not less than 10 feet in width, 20 feet in length and 14 feet vertical clearance. 
The project plan provides a loading space at the south end of the building. The 
proposed loading space is 12 feet wide by 45 feet long. 
 
The site will be accessed via a two shared driveways from 20th Street to the north. 
These joint driveways will be shared with proposed development to the east and the 
existing In-N-Out to the west.  
 
Internal circulation consists of a minimum drive-aisle width of 26 feet. The circulation 
system has been reviewed and approved by the San Bernardino County Fire 
Department and Public Works Department. 
 
TRAFFIC IMPACTS 

When the adjacent In-N-Out Burger Restaurant was approved by the Planning 
Commission on March 22, 2017, the Planning Commission raised questions regarding 
the possibility of installing a traffic signal at 20th Street and Campus Avenue due to 
the new development along 20th Street, east and west of Campus Avenue. The 
Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) studied and 
prescribed traffic signals at different locations throughout the Colonies, however, the 
20th Street at Campus Avenue intersection was not one of them. Furthermore, when 
the General Plan update was completed in 2015, a traffic signal was not prescribed 
for this location, either. 

When the EIR’s Traffic and Circulation Analysis was prepared for The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan it analyzed future development buildout along 20th Street, east 
and west of Campus Avenue. The case scenario for development buildout along 120th 
Street consisted of a 150-room hotel, a 40,000 square foot health club, a day-care 
center, two service/gasoline stations, restaurants, and auto sales lots. With all of this 
potential development the Traffic and Circulation Analysis concluded that the area 
near 20th Street and Campus Avenue would operate at a Level of Service (LOS) “C”. 
Level of service (LOS) is a qualitative measure used to relate the quality of motor 
vehicle traffic service. LOS is used to analyze roadways and intersections by 
categorizing traffic flow and assigning quality levels of traffic based on performance 
measure like vehicle speed, density, congestion, etc. LOS “C” means that traffic 
would move at a stable flow, at or near free flow. The ability to maneuver through 
lanes would be noticeably restricted and lane changes require more driver awareness. 
Minimum vehicle spacing is about 220 feet or 11 car lengths. Most experienced 
drivers are comfortable, roads remain safely below but efficiently close to capacity, 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Traffic_flow


PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 17 of 19 
 

and posted speed is maintained. Minor incidents may still have no effect but localized 
service will have noticeable effects and traffic delays will form behind the incident.  

In approving the In-N-Out Burger Restaurant, the Planning Commission, at the 
request of the Public Works Department, added a condition of approval that specified 
that in the future, based on traffic conditions, a Warrant Study maybe conducted for 
the intersection of Campus Avenue and 20th Street, to determine if or when a traffic 
signal may be needed at that location. Therefore, the Public Works Department has 
recommended the following condition of approval, which has been incorporated into 
the attached Resolution. 
 

162. In the future, based on traffic conditions, if determined by the Public Works 
Director, a Warrant Study will be prepared and considered by the City 
Council for the intersection of Campus Ave and 20th Street, to determine if 
or when a traffic signal or other mitigating measures may be needed. A 
Study may be required and will include an analysis based upon projected 
traffic volumes, derived from existing traffic volumes collected at the 20th 
Street and Campus Ave intersection and surrounding areas, with the 
addition of projected increases in the site generated traffic resulting from 
development along 20th Street. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONEMNTAL QUALITY ACT  
 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, the City 
certified an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) on September 24, 2002 (SCH No. 
1998051075) in the connection with the City’s approval of Specific Plan Amendment 
No. SPA-7: Modification No. 2, General Plan Amendment GPA 00-02, Zone Text 
Amendment 180, Zone Change ZC 00-01, Development Agreement DA 02-01, Master 
Tentative Tract Map TT-16198, Street Vacation SV 02-01, Conditional Use Permit CUP 
02-04, and Site Plan SP 00-07. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, no 
subsequent or supplemental EIR of Negative Declaration is required in connection 
with subsequent discretionary approvals of the same project unless: (i) substantial 
changes are proposed to the project that indicate new or more severe impacts on the 
environment; or (ii) substantial changes have occurred in the circumstances under 
which the project  was previously reviewed that indicates new or more severe 
environmental impacts; or (iii) new important information shows the project will have 
new or more severe impacts than previously considered; or (iv) additional mitigation 
measures are now feasible to reduce impacts or different mitigation measures can be 
imposed to substantially reduce impacts. 
 
Staff has evaluated the proposed project and have concluded that the project is within 
the scope of the approved overall project and analysis included in the Final EIR 
identified above and no additional environmental review is required in connection 
with the City’s consideration of Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-
07 and Design Review No. 19-13. Substantial changes to the project or the 
circumstances surrounding the project have not occurred which would create new or 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 18 of 19 
 

more severe impacts than those evaluated in the previous EIR. The previous 
environmental review analyzed the effects of the proposed project. Staff further finds 
that the project will not have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 
previous EIR, nor have more severe effects than previously analyzed, and that 
additional or different mitigation measures are not required to reduce the impacts of 
the project to a level of less than significant.  
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
The Project was reviewed by the City’s Technical Review Committee (Planning, 
Building, Public Works, Police, San Bernardino County Fire and Burrtec Waste 
Industries). The Committee recommended that the Project move forward as 
presented to the Planning Commission for final review and approval. 
 
NOTICING 
 
Public hearing notification is applicable. In accordance with Upland Municipal Code 
Section 17.46 all owners of real property within 300 feet of the exterior boundaries 
of the parcel that is the subject of the hearing shall be notified. In this case there are 
less than ten properties within 300 feet of the outer boundaries of the parcel, 
therefore, applicant has extended the notification radius to 600 feet. Upland Municipal 
Code Section 17.46.020B requires that notification shall be extended when less than 
ten properties are within 300 feet of the subject parcel.  
 
A total of 27 public hearing notices were mailed to owners of property within 600 feet 
of the site on September 10, 2020. A public hearing notice was also published by the 
Inland Valley Daily Bulletin on September 11, 2020.  
 
Additionally, the Planning Division on September 10, 2020, posted two (2) true and 
correct copies of the public hearing notice at the Upland City Hall Bulletin Board and 
at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland Municipal Code Section 
17.46.020; and 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The request for Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-07, and Design 
Review No. 19-13, are consistent with the requirements of The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan. The project has been conditioned to meet or exceed all 
applicable development standards through project conditions.  
 
The development of new well-designed commercial building that will be 
complementary to the surrounding commercial land uses in the surrounding area 
providing additional dining, retail and employment opportunities for our residents and 
the region. As such, staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the 
project based on the findings and subject to the conditions contained in the attached 
resolution.  



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 19 of 19 
 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A – Draft Resolution 
Exhibit B – Project Plans 
 
 



 

 

Exhibit A – Draft Resolution 

 



EXHIBIT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF UPLAND, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT NO. 19-10, SITE PLAN NO. 19-07, AND 
DESIGN REVIEW NO. 19-13, A REQUEST TO ALLOW A 
SERVICE STATION, AUTOMATED DRIVE-THRU CAR WASH, 
A 4,565 SQUARE FOOT CONVENIENCE STORE WITH BEER 
AND WINE SALES (ABC CLASS 20 LICENSE), AND A 1,515 
SQUARE FOOT QUICK SERVICE RESTAURANT ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 20TH 
STREET, 330 FEET EAST OF CAMPUS AVENUE, AND 
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF – APN: 1044-
111-49 . 

 

The City of Upland Planning Commission hereby resolves as follows: 

Section 1: Recitals 

WHEREAS, Mr. Ash Etemadian filed an application for the approval of 
Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-07, and Design Review No. 19-
13, as described in the title of this Resolution. Hereinafter in this Resolution, the 
subject Conditional Use Permit, Site Plan, and Design Review are referred to as the 
“the applications”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 17.43.050E of the Upland Municipal Code requires that if 

one or more applications are submitted concurrently for a single proposed project, 
each application shall be acted upon concurrently by the highest review authority. In 
this case, the highest review authority is the Planning Commission; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Project Site is located within Planning Area 21 of the Colonies 

at San Antonio Specific Plan. Planning Area 21 has a Highway Commercial (CH) 
Designation. Development in this Planning Area permits retail uses and restaurants; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Technical Review Committee met and reviewed the 

project and referred the project to the Planning Commission for their review; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 10, 2020, the Planning Division mailed a copy of the 

notice of public hearing on the applications to all owners of real property within 600 
feet of the exterior boundaries of the parcel that is the subject of the hearing in 
accordance with Upland Municipal Code Section 17.46.020; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 10, 2020, the Planning Division posted two (2) true 

and correct copies of the notice of public hearing on the applications at the Upland 
City Hall Bulletin Board and at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland 
Municipal Code Section 17.46.020; and 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 2 of 29 
 

 
WHEREAS, on September 11, 2020, the Planning Division published the notice 

of public hearing on the applications in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, a local paper 
of general circulation, indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance 
with state law concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 23, 2020, the Planning Commission of the City of 

Upland conducted a duly noticed public hearing on the applications at which time the 
Planning Commission concluded said hearing on that date; and 

 
WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites prior to adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED BY 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UPLAND AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 2: All of the above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
Section 3. Findings – Conditional Use Permit: In accordance with Upland Municipal 
Code Section 17.44.040F, Findings for Approval of Conditional Use Permits, and 
based upon the facts and analysis presented in the staff report, public testimony 
received and subject to the conditions listed below, the Planning Commission makes 
the following findings: 
 

1. Finding: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the 
proposed use will be compatible with the existing and future land uses near 
the subject property.  
 
Evidence: The proposed use would be compatible and harmonious with 
development in the same general area and would not be materially detrimental 
to other properties within the area. The project site is located on the south 
side of 20TH Street, 330 feet east of Campus Avenue. Adjacent uses include 
Interstate 210 to the south, In-N-Out Burger to the west, a new auto 
dealership under construction to the east and a rock quarry is located to the 
north. An 8,825 square foot mixed-use building (retail/food) with a single 
drive-through is being proposed directly and adjacent to the east. Therefore, 
there are other existing and proposed compatible commercial uses located in 
the area. The proposed conditional uses, as conditioned, would not generate 
adverse noise, traffic, or parking impacts that are unusual for commercially-
zoned neighborhoods. Standard conditions of approval have been included as 
part of staff’s recommendation. These conditions of approval include conditions 
related to the car wash, as well as uses proposing the concurrent sale of 
alcoholic beverages and motor fuel.  
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 3 of 29 
 

 
2. Finding: The site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, shape, size, 

operating characteristics, and the provision of public and emergency vehicle 
(e.g. fire and medical) access and public services and utilities.  
 
Evidence: The site is physically suitable for the proposed use in that adequate 
access, parking, utilities and services will be provided to serve the proposed 
businesses. The Police Department, Public Works Department, and San 
Bernardino County Fire Department have reviewed the project proposal and 
do not have any concerns regarding access, public services, or utilities 
provided to the existing neighborhood and surrounding area. 
 

3. Finding: The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, 
and welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the 
proposed use. 
 
Evidence: The proposed project, together with the conditions applicable 
thereto, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or 
materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The 
surrounding neighborhood consists of commercial uses in the Highway 
Commercial (HC) District. The proposed project is similar in size and scale to 
the other commercial buildings nearby. The construction and operations of the 
businesses are expected to meet all Code standards regarding noise and odor. 
The project is therefore not expected to generate public health, safety or 
welfare impacts or be detrimental to improvements in the vicinity. 
 
Regarding the Use Permit to allow the sale of beer and wine, alcohol sales are 
common among mini-markets/gas stations, and often generate a significant 
portion of their business. Conditions of Approval, specific to alcohol sales, have 
been made a part of this project. These address loitering, signage, sales to 
minors, etc., which will ensure the business operates in a manner that is not 
detrimental to the public health, safety, or general welfare. The type of license 
requested from the State ABC is for off-sale only; no consumption of alcohol 
on the premises is allowed. 

 
Section 4. Findings – Development Plan (Site Plan and Design Review): In accordance 
with Upland Municipal Code Zoning Ordinance Section 17.44.030H, Findings for 
Approval of a Development Plan (Site Plan and Design Review), and based upon the 
facts and analysis presented in the staff report, public testimony received and subject 
to the conditions listed below, the Planning Commission makes the following findings: 
 

 1. Finding: The design and layout of the proposed project will not interfere with 
the use and enjoyment of existing and future neighboring properties and 
structures. 

 
Evidence: The design, layout, size, architectural features and general 
appearance of the proposed project is consistent with the applicable Colonies 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 4 of 29 
 

 
at San Antonio Specific Plan development standards, design guidelines, and 
would maintain and enhance the community's character, provide for 
harmonious and orderly development, and create a desirable environment for 
the occupants, neighbors, and visiting public. 
 

2. Finding: The proposed architectural design makes use of appropriate 
materials, texture, and color, and will remain aesthetically appealing and 
appropriately maintained. 
 
Evidence: The design of the building, including the layout, size, shape, mass, 
height, architectural elements and other design factors are appropriate to the 
size and shape of the lot and are compatible and harmonious with the uses 
and structures on adjacent properties. Also, the building materials and design 
features are of a quality and type that will remain aesthetically appealing over 
time without necessitating frequent and unrealistic maintenance or 
replacement. 
 

3. Finding: The proposed landscaping design, including color, location, size, 
texture, type, and coverage of plant materials, as well as provisions for 
irrigation, maintenance, and protection of landscaping elements, will 
complement structures and provide an attractive environment. 

 
Evidence: The preliminary landscape plan proposes the use of plant material 
that provide varied color and texture. The plans shows landscaping that 
includes a variety of plants materials, distinct in color and size, as well a large 
number of new trees all of which will be maintained by the property owner.  
Conditions of approval are included requiring the submittal of Final Landscape 
and Irrigation plans for review and approval. Therefore, the proposed 
landscaping design is sufficient in terms of color, location, size, texture, type, 
and coverage of plant materials, as well as provisions for irrigation, 
maintenance, and protection of landscaping elements, will complement 
structures and provide an attractive environment.   

 
4. Finding: The proposed design will not be materially detrimental to the public 

health, safety, or welfare, or be injurious to the property or improvements in 
the vicinity of the proposed project. 

 
Evidence: The proposed project, together with the conditions applicable 
thereto, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or 
materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The 
surrounding neighborhood consists of commercial uses in the Highway 
Commercial (HC) District. The proposed project is similar in size and scale to 
the other commercial building nearby. The construction and operations of the 
businesses are expected to meet all Code standards regarding noise and odor. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 5 of 29 
 

 
The project is therefore not expected to generate public health, safety or 
welfare impacts or be detrimental to improvements in the vicinity. 
 

Section 5. Environmental Determination: Pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, the City certified an Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) on September 24, 2002 (SCH No. 1998051075) in the connection with the 
City’s approval of Specific Plan Amendment No. SPA-7: Modification No. 2, General 
Plan Amendment GPA 00-02, Zone Text Amendment 180, Zone Change ZC 00-01, 
Development Agreement DA 02-01, Master Tentative Tract Map TT-16198, Street 
Vacation SV 02-01, Conditional Use Permit CUP 02-04, and Site Plan SP 00-07. 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, no subsequent or supplemental EIR of 
Negative Declaration is required in connection with subsequent discretionary 
approvals of the same project unless: (i) substantial changes are proposed to the 
project that indicate new or more severe impacts on the environment; or (ii) 
substantial changes have occurred in the circumstances under which the project was 
previously reviewed that indicates new or more severe environmental impacts; or 
(iii) new important information shows the project will have new or more severe 
impacts than previously considered; or (iv) additional mitigation measures are now 
feasible to reduce impacts or different mitigation measures can be imposed to 
substantially reduce impacts. 

Staff has evaluated the proposed project and have concluded that the project is within 
the scope of the approved overall project and analysis included in the Final EIR 
identified above and no additional environmental review is required in connection 
with the City’s consideration of Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-
07 and Design Review No. 19-13. Substantial changes to the project or the 
circumstances surrounding the project have not occurred which would create new or 
more severe impacts than those evaluated in the previous EIR. The previous 
environmental review analyzed the effects of the proposed project. Staff further finds 
that the project will not have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 
previous EIR, nor have more severe effects than previously analyzed, and that 
additional or different mitigation measures are not required to reduce the impacts of 
the project to a level of less than significant.  
 
Section 6. Determination/Conditions of Approval: Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth above, this Planning Commission hereby approves the 
applications subject to each and every condition in the Conditions of Approval 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
PLANNING DIVISION 

1. This action approves Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-07, 
and Design Review No. 19-13, to allow a service station, automated drive-thru 
car wash, a 4,565 square foot convenience store with beer and wine sales (ABC 
Class 20 License), and a 1,515 square foot quick service restaurant on property 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 6 of 29 
 

 
located on the south side of 20th Street, 330 feet east of Campus Avenue (APN: 
1044-111-49).  

 
2. The applicant is required to sign a Statement of Acceptance of Conditions of 

Approval provided by the Planning Division. The signed Statement of 
Acceptance of Conditions of Approval shall be returned to the Planning Division 
within 15 days of the date of approval by the Planning Commission. 

 
3. This approval shall expire on September 23, 2022, unless Building Permits are 

issued and construction commenced and diligently pursued prior to the 
expiration date. If the project does not move forward by the expiration date 
then a new project approval would be required unless a written request for 
extension is submitted to and approved by the Development Services Director 
30 days prior to the expiration date. 

 
4. Construction plans submitted for Building Permits shall be in substantial 

compliance with plans approved by this action on September 23, 2020. Any 
modifications to the use, building, site or project description shall be subject 
to review and approval by the Development Services Director and may require 
a separate Planning Entitlement review process. 

 
5. A copy of the conditions of approval provided herein shall be included in the 

construction documentation package for the Project, which shall be 
continuously maintained on site during Project construction. 

 
6. Approval of this request shall not waive compliance with all sections of the 

Development Code, all other applicable City ordinances, and the Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
7. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Applicant must defend, indemnify, 

and hold City and its elected officials, officers, contractors serving as City 
officials, agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) harmless from liability for 
damage and/or claims for damage for personal injuries, including death, and 
claims for property damage, and with respect to all other actions and liabilities 
for damages caused or alleged to have been caused by reason of the 
Applicant’s activities in connection with Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site 
Plan No. 19-07, and Design Review No. 19-13 (“Project”) on the Project site, 
and which may arise from the direct or indirect operations of the Applicant or 
those of the Applicant’s contractors, agents, tenants, employees or any other 
persons acting on Applicant’s behalf, which relate to the development and/or 
construction of the Project. This indemnity provision applies to all damages 
and claims for damage, as described above, regardless of whether or not the 
City prepared, supplied, or approved the plans, specifications, or other 
documents for the Project. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 7 of 29 
 

 
In the event of any legal action challenging the validity, applicability, or 
interpretation of any provision of this approval, or any other supporting 
document relating to the Project, the Applicant must indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the Indemnitees, and each of them, with respect to all liability, 
costs and expenses incurred by, and/or awarded against, the City or any of 
the Indemnitees in relation to such action. The City shall have the right to 
select counsel of its choice that the Applicant reasonably approves.  The parties 
hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action. The City will not 
voluntarily assist in any such third-party challenge or take any position adverse 
to the Applicant in connection with such third-party challenge.   

8. If the Development Services Director finds evidence that conditions of approval 
have not been fulfilled or the use has resulted in a substantial adverse effect 
on the health and/or general welfare of uses of adjacent or proximate property, 
or have a substantial adverse impact on public facilities or services, the 
Development Services Director may refer Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, 
Site Plan No. 19-07, and Design Review No. 19-13 back to the Planning 
Commission for review. If, upon review of the matter the Planning Commission 
finds that any of the results above have occurred, the Planning Commission 
may modify or revoke Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site Plan No. 19-07, 
and Design Review No. 19-13. 

 
9. The applicant shall pay off all existing deficit deposit accounts associated with 

processing this permit. The applicant shall provide a receipt to the Planning 
Division, which shows that all discretionary deposit accounts have been paid. 
No Certificate of Occupancy or Final Planning Division Inspection can be 
issued/completed if there are deficit deposit accounts.  

 
10. It shall be the responsibility of the property owner and management to ensure 

that any required permits, inspections and approvals from any regulatory 
agency shall be obtained from the concerned agency prior to the establishment 
of the use. 

 
11. All construction and operational activities on the property shall comply with 

the City of Upland Noise Regulations as set forth in Chapter 9.40 of the Upland 
Municipal Code at all times. 

 
12. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall submit a Lighting Plan 

showing locations and height of all exterior lighting fixtures with arrows 
showing the direction of light being cast by each fixture for review and approval 
of the Planning Division, Building Division and Police Department.  

 
13. The Lighting Plan shall ensure any exterior night lighting installed on the 

project site is of low intensity, low glare design, minimum height, and shall be 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 8 of 29 
 

 
hooded to direct light downward onto the subject lot and prevent spill-over 
onto adjacent lots. The fixtures will be reviewed for quality, aesthetics, 
illumination values, sustainability values such as LED and shall be decoratively 
and architecturally consistent with the building design. The location, height, 
style and design shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning and Building 
Divisions. Lighting shall be incompliance with Section 8.2.9 of The Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan.  

 
14. Prior to the issuance of a grading permits, the Applicant shall prepare a detailed 

landscape plan for the project area which shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Division. The plan shall be certified by a licensed landscape 
architect or a licensed landscape contractor, as required, as taking into account 
the approved preliminary landscape plan.  

 
15. Landscaping shall be installed to screen the drive-through aisle from primary 

circulation routes (E. 20th Street) and shall be used to minimize the visual 
impact of order boards and directional signs. 

 
16. Prior to the issuance of certificates of use and occupancy, the Applicant shall 

install said landscaping and irrigation system and shall have a licensed 
landscape architect or licensed landscape contractor, certify in writing that it 
was installed in accordance with the approved plan. Said written certification 
shall be submitted to the Planning Division. 

 
17. All irrigation systems shall function properly and landscaping shall be 

maintained in a healthy and thriving condition. The maintenance of 
landscaping and the irrigation system shall be permanently provided for all 
areas of the project site, as well as walkways and the portion of public rights-
of-way abutting the project site. Furthermore, the plans shall identify 
responsibility for the continued maintenance. 

 
18. To prevent pollution generated from site specific activities, the Applicant shall 

implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) for eating and drinking 
establishments, including but not limited to, the use and maintenance of 
grease interceptors and the use of a dedicated cleaning area with a drain which 
is plumbed to the sanitary sewer system. All equipment, including floor mats, 
grease filters, grills, garbage cans, etc., shall be cleaned in a wash area that 
is plumbed to the sanitary sewer system (i.e. mop sink or wash water 
containment basin). Wash water from the cleaning of outdoor eating areas, 
“drive-thru” areas, sidewalks, parking lots and dumpster storage areas must 
be contained and disposed of properly and shall not be allowed to enter the 
storm drain system including the gutter and storm-drain inlets. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 9 of 29 
 

 
19. Restaurant tenants with cooking facilities shall be equipped at all times with 

filtering devices to minimize odors and fumes. Details of said devices shall be 
shown on the tenant improvement plans submitted for issuance of building 
permits and shall be subject to review and approval by the Building Official 
prior to issuance of building permits for the tenant improvements. 

 
20. No signs of any type are approved as a part of this action. Any signs must 

receive a sign permit approved by Planning Division prior to installation. Signs 
shall be consistent with the regulations of Section 7.7 of the Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
21. All proposed mechanical units, air conditioning equipment, blowers, make-up 

air units, ducts, etc. shall be shown on the building permit plans. The project 
developer shall effectively screen from view all ducts, blowers, air conditioning 
equipment, and any other mechanical equipment, whether on the structure, 
on the ground, or on the roof, with materials architecturally compatible with 
the building. Screening details shall be shown on the plans submitted for 
issuance of building permits, the adequacy of which shall be determined by the 
Development Services Director. All required screening shall be provided prior 
to occupancy. The construction plans shall include appropriate elevations and 
cross-section drawings demonstrating how such equipment is to be screened 
from view (include dimensions, materials, colors, etc.). 

 
22. All ground mounted utility structures such as transformers and back flow 

prevention valves shall be located out of view from a public street or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or masonry walls. 

 
23. Prior to the release of a Certificate of Occupancy by the City, the Applicant 

shall submit to the City for review by the City Engineer and the Development 
Services Director a shared access agreement. The City Engineer and the 
Development Services Director shall review and approve the appropriate 
documents (e.g., shared access agreement, CC&R’s, etc.) which ensure that 
utilities, access, parking, landscape areas, and drainage will be commonly 
shared and maintained. 

 
24. All driveways shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. 

Generally, the enhanced pavement treatment shall extend from the property 
line (back of the approach apron), into the site, to the first intersecting drive 
aisle or parking space.  

 
25. Bumper guard or wheel stops shall be provided, where necessary, to protect a 

structure or parked vehicle. In lieu of wheel stops, 2 feet of additional area 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 10 of 29 
 

 
may be added to sidewalks or landscape areas to serve as an automobile 
overhang. 

 
26. The owner/developer shall arrange for a final inspection by representatives of 

the Planning Division, Building Division, Public Works Department, Police 
Department and San Bernardino County Fire Department prior to the release 
of occupancy.  Any discrepancy between the approved plans and the field 
conditions shall be remedied prior to occupancy such that the field condition 
is consistent with the approved plans. 

 
27. The Applicant shall submit a design for the onsite trash enclosure for review 

and approval by the Planning Division and the City’s Solid Waste Service 
Provider during building plan check review. The applicant shall work with staff 
to incorporate the trash enclosure within the building’s design. The design will 
be reviewed for aesthetic value and use of quality materials. All outside trash 
and garbage collection areas shall be paved and enclosed on at least three (3) 
vertical sides by solid five (5) foot high wall and on the fourth side by a view 
obscuring gate to screen the containers from view. The trash enclosure shall 
be of a size sufficient to contain all trash containers maintained outside the 
building. The finish and color of the trash enclosure shall be designed to match 
a primary element from the site building style as well as incorporate a 
decorative cover per the approval of the Planning Division. The trash enclosure 
bins shall be kept inside the enclosure except when being unloaded. 

 
28. Pedestrian paths shall be maintained in such manner to allow the safe and 

convenient passage of persons across drive aisles. Pedestrian pathways shall 
be clearly marked with paint and/or enhanced paving materials and designated 
with adequate and appropriate signage. Pedestrian pathways adjacent to drive 
aisles shall be separated by a raised curb, planter, berm, or other device to 
ensure a safe and adequate separation between pedestrians and motor 
vehicles.  

 
29. Prior to issuance of a grading permit the Applicant/Property Owner shall submit 

for review and approval to the Development Services Department a Lot Line 
Adjustment to adjust the common property line between Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers 1044-111-49 and 1044-111-50 to ensure that future development 
does not encroach onto the property line between the adjoining parcels or 
into the adjacent property. The final approved lot line adjustment is required 
to be recorded with the San Bernardino County Assessor-Recorder-County 
Clerk’s Office prior to the issuance of a grading permit. 

 
 
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 11 of 29 
 

 
Alcohol Sales  
 
30. The sale of any manner of alcoholic beverage shall comply with all applicable 

regulations of the State of California Department of Alcohol Beverage Control 
(ABC). 

 
31. The operator of the use shall prevent loitering in any parking area serving the 

use. 
 
32. The parking lot of the premises shall be lighted to a minimum level of one foot-

candle at ground level. 
 
33. The premises shall be kept free of graffiti and litter. Any graffiti occurring on 

the premises shall be removed within 48 hours. 
 

34. The rear doors of the establishment shall be kept closed at all times except to 
permit deliveries. 

 
35. The establishment shall have a security management plan that details the 

means by which on-site security measures shall be conducted and that 
identified responsible person(s) to be contacted in case of an emergency. 

 
36. In the event security problems occur, at the reasonable request of the Police 

Chief, the establishment shall provide California licensed, uniformed security 
guard(s) on the premises during such hours as requested by the Police Chief. 

 
37. A silent robbery alarm shall be required. 
 
38. The cash register shall be bolted to a stationary counter, visible from the 

outside of the premises, and located in close proximity to the public entrance. 
 
39. Alcoholic beverages shall be displayed in one general location and merchandise 

shall be arranged within the establishment to permit eye level visibility 
throughout the public areas of the establishment. 

 
40. Employees selling alcoholic beverages between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 

2:00 a.m. shall be at least 21 years of age. 
 
41. The owner and management at each location shall educate the public regarding 

driving under the influence of intoxicating beverages, minimum age for 
purchase and consumption of alcoholic beverages, driving with open containers 
and the penalty associated with violations of these laws. In addition, the owner 
and management shall provide health warning about the consumption of 
alcoholic beverages. This requirement may be met by posting prominent signs, 
decals, or brochures at the point of purchase. The owner and management 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 12 of 29 
 

 
shall provide adequate training for all employees at the location as to these 
matters. 

 
42. Cold beer or wine shall be sold from or displayed in permanently affixed 

electrical coolers only. 
 
43. No lighted advertising for beer, wine or other alcoholic beverages shall be 

located on the exterior of buildings or within window areas. 
 
44. Any window signs shall be placed and maintained in a manner so that there is 

a clear and unobstructed view of the interior of the premises from the entrance. 
 
45. Public telephones shall not be allowed on the exterior of the establishment. 

Public telephones inside the establishment shall be equipped to prevent 
incoming calls. 

 
Car Washes.  
 
46. The facility shall be designed, constructed and maintained in a manner which 

minimizes the use of water. 
 
47. All vehicle wash facilities shall include devices, equipment, or structures which 

intercept wash water which may contain contaminants. Such a system shall 
collect water and separate contaminants for proper disposal prior to the 
conveyance of water into the local drainage systems. 

 
48. An adequate number of waste receptacles shall be provided at self-service car 

auto washes. Trash receptacles shall be located adjacent to “vacuum stations” 
and shall be adequately screened. Areas around trash receptacles shall be 
maintained in a neat and sanitary manner. 

 
49. No on-site storage of inoperable vehicles shall be permitted. 
 
50. Adult magazines shall be kept in racks providing for the shielding of cover 

pages and be individually wrapped in plastic shrink- wrap or bags. Adult 
magazines shall only be accessible to store employees. 

 
51. Loitering shall not be permitted on site. 

 
Gas Stations.  
 
52. All landscaped areas shall be planted with living plant materials, provided with 

permanent and automatic irrigation systems, and maintained in a healthy and 
thriving condition. Landscaping shall be enclosed by a raised curb of not less 
than 6 inches. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 13 of 29 
 

 
53. Each pump island may include computerized payment stations. Such stations 

shall be situated in a manner that will not cause interference with circulation 
or the sale of motor fuels.  

 
54. Automotive gas stations shall be provided with adequate evening/night lighting 

to provide a safe and secure environment for employees and patrons. All on-
site lighting shall be designed, arranged and controlled to avoid excessive light 
and glare on adjacent properties and/or public rights-of-way. 

 
55. Personnel security measures satisfactory to the City of Upland Police 

Department including, but not limited to: bulletproof windows and cashier 
booths, surveillance cameras, and alarm systems shall be installed at 
automotive gas stations. 

 
56. No parking space shall overhang more than 2.5 feet into any required planter 

area. 
 

57. Merchandise, wares and crates, in the form of storage or displays, shall remain 
within the confines of the building. 

 
58. The premises shall be maintained in a neat and orderly condition at all times. 

Structures shall be maintained in a condition of good repair and appearance. 
 

59. The project shall provide men's and women's public rest rooms that are 
accessible to the general public, including physically disabled persons, during 
all hours that the station is open to the public.  

60. At least one air pump and water supply area shall be provided at each 
automotive gas station, and shall be located such that its use will not conflict 
with on-site vehicular movement. Charges, if any, for air and water shall be 
governed by the provisions of State law. 

 
61. Outdoor public address systems shall be prohibited, except for communication 

devices as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act or other State 
building codes. 

 
BUILDING DIVISION 
 
62. The Project shall comply with the adopted California Model Code (California 

Code of Regulations, Title 24). 
 

63. Prior to the issuance of any permit a soils report is required to be submitted to 
the Building Division for review and approval. 

 
64. The Project shall provide ADA compliance accessibility to public right-of-way. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 14 of 29 
 

 
65. The Project shall provide ADA compliance throughout the site. 

 
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
66. A water system approved and inspected by the Fire Department is required. 

The system shall be operational, prior to any combustibles being stored on the 
site. Fire hydrants shall be spaced no more than three hundred (300) feet 
apart (as measured along vehicular travel-ways) and no more than three 
hundred (300) feet from any portion of a structure. 

 
67. Prior to any land disturbance, the water systems shall be designed to meet the 

required fire flow for this development and shall be approved by the Fire 
Department. The required fire flow shall be determined by using California Fire 
Code. The Fire Flow for this project shall be: 1500 GPM for a 2 hour duration 
at 20 psi residual operating pressure. Fire Flow is based on an 8,825 square 
foot structure. 

 
68. This standard establishes minimum requirements for installation and 

maintenance of all private fire hydrants and appliances related to an onsite fire 
protection system. 

 
69. Prior to building permits being issued to any new structure, the primary access 

road shall be paved or an all-weather surface and shall be installed as specified 
in the General Requirement conditions, including width, vertical clearance and 
turnouts. 

 
70. Construction permits, including Fire Condition Letters, shall automatically 

expire and become invalid unless the work authorized by such permit is 
commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or if the work authorized by 
such permit is suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days after the time 
the work is commenced. Suspension or abandonment shall mean that no 
inspection by the Department has occurred with 180 days of any previous 
inspection. After a construction permit or Fire Condition Letter, becomes invalid 
and before such previously approved work recommences, a new permit shall 
be first obtained and the fee to recommence work shall be one-half the fee for 
the new permit for such work, provided no changes have been made or will be 
made in the original construction documents for such work, and provided 
further that such suspension or abandonment has not exceeded one year. A 
request to extend the Fire Condition Letter or Permit may be made in writing 
PRIOR TO the expiration date justifying the reason that the Fire Condition 
Letter should be extended. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 15 of 29 
 

 
71. An approved Fire Department key box is required.  In commercial, industrial 

and multi-family complexes, all swing gates shall have an approved fire 
department Knox Lock. 

 
72. Permission to occupy or use the building (certificate of Occupancy or shell 

release) will not be granted until the Fire Department inspects, approves and 
signs off on the Building and Safety job card for "fire final". 

 
73. Blue reflective pavement markers indicating fire hydrant locations shall be 

installed as specified by the Fire Department. In areas where snow removal 
occurs or non-paved roads exist, the blue reflective hydrant marker shall be 
posted on an approved post along the side of the road, no more than three (3) 
feet from the hydrant and at least six (6) feet high above the adjacent road. 

 
74. An automatic hood and duct fire extinguishing system is required. A Fire 

Department approved designer/installer shall submit detailed plans with 
manufactures' specification sheets to the Fire Department for review and 
approval. The required fees shall be paid at the time of plan submittal. 

 
75. An automatic fire sprinkler system complying with NFPA Pamphlet #13 and the 

Fire Department standards is required. The applicant shall hire a Fire 
Department approved fire sprinkler contractor. The fire sprinkler contractor 
shall submit plans to the with hydraulic calculation and manufacturers 
specification sheets to the Fire Department for approval and approval. The 
contractor shall submit plans showing type of storage and use with the 
applicable protection system. The required fees shall be paid at the time of 
plan submittal. 

 
76. A flow test report is required to be submitted to establish whether the public 

water supply is capable of meeting your project fire flow demand. You will be 
required to produce a current flow test report from your water purveyor 
demonstrating that the fire flow demand is satisfied. This requirement shall be 
completed prior to combination inspection by Building and Safety. 

 
77. The required fire fees shall be paid to the San Bernardino County Fire 

Department/Community Safety Division. 
 
78. An automatic fire sprinkler monitoring fire alarm system complying with the 

California Fire Code, NFPA and all applicable codes is required. The applicant 
shall hire a Fire Department approved fire alarm contractor.  The fire alarm 
contractor shall submit detailed plans to the Fire Department for review and 
approval. The required fees shall be paid at the time of plan submittal. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 16 of 29 
 

 
79. Prior to combustibles being placed on the project site an approved all-weather 

fire apparatus access surface and operable fire hydrants with acceptable fire 
flow shall be installed. The topcoat of asphalt does not have to be installed 
until final inspection and occupancy. 

 
80. Building plans shall be submitted to the Fire Department for review and 

approval. 
 
81. Hand portable fire extinguishers are required. The location, type, and cabinet 

design shall be approved by the Fire Department. 
 
82. In addition to the Fire requirements stated herein, other onsite and offsite 

improvements may be required which cannot be determined from tentative 
plans at this time and would have to be reviewed after more complete 
improvement plans and profiles have been submitted to this office. 

 
83. The referenced project is under the jurisdiction of the San Bernardino County 

Fire Department herein "Fire Department". Prior to any construction occurring 
on any parcel, the applicant shall contact the Fire Department for verification 
of current fire protection requirements. All new construction shall comply with 
the current California Fire Code requirements and all applicable status, codes, 
ordinances and standards of the Fire Department. 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

84. The approved conditions shall be retained on the premises at all times and 
produced immediately upon request of the Upland Police Department, and City 
Planning.  

 
85. A 6-month review/inspection shall be conducted to ensure permittee’s 

compliance with all operating conditions.  
 
86. Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee shall be immediate and 

ongoing on the licensed premises, but in no event shall graffiti be allowed 
unabated on the premises for more than 48 hours. Abatement shall take the 
form of removal or shall be covered/painted over with a color reasonably 
matching the color of the existing building, structure, or other surface being 
abated. Additionally, the business owner/licensee shall notify the City within 
24 hours of any graffiti elsewhere on the property not under the business 
owner/licensee’s control so that it may be abated by the property owner.  

 
87. The Developer, builder, contractors, sub-contractors, and any other persons 

associated with this project shall adhere to the Upland Municipal Code (UMC) 
dealing with unnecessary noises under section 9.40.100. Furthermore, prior to 
the beginning of construction, a sign shall be posted at the entrance of the 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 17 of 29 
 

 
property educating everyone entering as to the authorized construction times 
and failure to comply with such requirements will result in an immediate 
citation for violating the aforementioned UMC section.  

 
88. Units with front and rear drive access shall affix or paint address 

numbering/lettering in a conspicuous location, free from plant obstruction, and 
readily visible to emergency services personnel on both front and rear 
accesses.  

 
89. Each building that has a flat roof shall be required to have the address 

numbering painted on the roof, as close to the center of the roof as possible, 
and at least 15 feet (or as far as possible if less than 15 feet) from roof 
mounted equipment or exhaust stacks, to assist helicopter patrols in quick 
location of the building. Numbering must be at least 12 inches wide, 48 inches 
tall, and be painted in contrast to the background on which it is affixed.  

 
90. Draft stops shall be required between all tenant subdivisions in the same unit 

or building so that persons may not access a tenant unit from an adjacent 
tenant unit via entry down through the roof or up through the drop ceiling.  

 
91. Prior to occupancy all private streets, parking areas, parking lots, and 

driveways shall be dedicated for off-road traffic, fire lane, soliciting, handicap, 
and loitering enforcement. The applicant must submit a written request to the 
City Clerk asking that a resolution from the City Council allow Police 
Enforcement of the above violations on the property. Once the resolution has 
been obtained, a sign shall be erected/posted at all access points stating the 
above listed locations and violations have been dedicated for enforcement by 
the Upland Police Department.  

 
92. Prior to occupancy, the Police Department will conduct an on-site inspection of 

the property, checking proper lighting has been installed throughout the 
property, proper locks on exterior doors and doors leading to the interior are 
in place and functioning properly. In addition, the Police Department will check 
that proper addressing/lettering has been installed.  

 
93. Hinges for outwardly swinging doors or hatchway covers shall be equipped with 

non-removable hinge pins or a mechanical interlock system to prevent removal 
of the door from the exterior by removal of the hinge pins.  

 
94. All hatchways shall be secured from the interior of the building with a sliding 

bolt or bar mechanism.  
 
95. If the hatchway cover is of a wooden material, it shall be reinforced with at 

least 16-gauge U.S. sheet steel, or its equivalent, on the interior face of the 
cover and shall be attached with screws no more than six inches apart around 
the entire perimeter of the interior face cover.  



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 18 of 29 
 

 
 
96. Building design and window placement shall facilitate high visibility to the 

public and police patrol vehicles as well as enabling employees to make 
periodic visual inspections of the premises.  

 
97. The applicant shall submit for review by the Police Department the design and 

specifications for all proposed lighting fixtures proposed for the buildings, drive 
aisles, parkways, parking areas, pathways, and surrounding areas within the 
development. The fixtures shall be reviewed for quality, aesthetics, 
illumination values, sustainability values such as LED and shall be decoratively 
and architecturally consistent with the building design. The number, location, 
height, style and design shall be reviewed and approved by the Police 
Department prior to issuance of building permits.  

 
98. All exterior doors shall be equipped with a lighting device capable of providing 

a minimum of two foot-candle of light at ground level.  
 
99. All exterior lighting lower than 12 feet from the ground level shall be enclosed 

in vandal-resistant covers.  
 
100. Lighting shall be required in all area of public access.  
 
101. All exterior lighting shall be oriented inward onto the project so as not to 

interfere with adjacent residential areas or vehicular traffic on adjacent public 
streets.  

 
102. Public parking areas and access thereto shall be provided with a maintained 

minimum of 2 foot candle power of light on the parking surface, from dusk to 
dawn, or as modified by the Chief of Police, based on documented proof that 
meeting the 2 foot candle power standard is impractical. Lighting shall be 
provided through the use of photo cells; use of low pressure sodium fixtures 
and bulbs is prohibited.  

 
103. Signs prohibiting loitering shall be installed to the satisfaction of the Chief of 

Police. They shall be mounted between six and ten feet above ground. The 
following must be printed on the sign in letters at least two inches tall: 
“PC647(h), UMC10.72.010.” and “NO LOITERING IS ALLOWED ON OR IN 
FRONT OF THESE PREMISES.” The signs shall be posted on the front, rear, and 
sides of the building, and shall be clearly visible to patrons of the licensee. 

 
104. Signs shall comply with all City of Upland sign requirements (UMC 17.15 et 

seq.). No more than 50% of the total window area and clear doors shall bear 
advertising or signs of any sort. Window signs shall be placed and maintained 
in a manner so that there is a clear and unobstructed view of the interior of 
the premises from the public sidewalk or entrance to the premises (this applies 
to all windows of this location).   



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 19 of 29 
 

 
 
105. A digital video surveillance system is required at the premises. It is 

recommended to have a surveillance video/visual media that shall be 
maintained for a minimum of sixty (60) days and upon request, shall be 
accessible to law enforcement personnel for viewing, copying and collection 
purposes during regular business hours. The system shall be able to make 
license plates discernable. The video system shall cover all ingress and egress 
points of the businesses parking lots, the building itself, and the rear perimeter 
of the building.  

 
106. Provide UPD with contact information of person responsible for maintaining 

video equipment/system and who has access to retrieve and copy surveillance 
video. The surveillance video/visual media system shall be remotely accessible 
to the Upland Police Department.  

 
107. Applicant shall comply with 6404.5(b) of the Labor Code, which prohibits 

smoking within any place of employment.  
 
108. All landscaping must adhere to the 2’ 6’ rule (all ground cover landscaping 

must be maintained no higher than 2’ from ground level and all lower tree 
canopy must be maintained no lower than 6’ in height from the ground level).  

 
109. Any vehicles not parked legally may be cited and/or towed if it is in violation 

of the California Vehicle Code and/or Upland Municipal Code.  
 
110. Violation of any of the aforementioned conditions, may result in revocation of 

the CUP.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT LAND DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSPORTATION 
DIVISION 

EASEMENTS-MONUMENTS 
 
Easements  
 
111. Final approval of this project is subject to, and contingent upon, the execution 

and recordation of a reciprocal access agreement.   
 
112. A lot line adjustment shall be recorded before issuance of grading permit. 
 
113. Prior to recordation, the Owner/Developer shall submit two copies of the 

"before and after" legal descriptions for each affected parcel/lot for plan check 
by the Public Works Department. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 20 of 29 
 

 
114. Concurrently with the recordation of the Lot Line Adjustment, the 

Owner/Developer shall record a Grant Deed transferring ownership and 
describing each new parcel/lot(s) in conformance with State law. 

 
Monuments 
 
115. The Owner/Developer shall comply with Assembly Bill 1414, which was enacted 

into law and effective January 1, 1995.  This bill amended Section 8771 of the 
Business and Professions Code (of the Land Surveyors Act).  The County 
Surveyor requires that two corner records be filed; they are when: 
 
a) Monuments exist that controls the location of subdivisions or tracts, streets 

or highways; or provides survey control.  The monuments are located and 
referenced by a licensed Land Surveyor before any streets or highways are 
reconstructed or relocated.  The corner record(s) of the references are filed 
with the County Surveyor. 
 

b) Monuments are reset in the surface of the new construction and a corner 
record is filed with the County Surveyor before recording of a Certificate 
(Notice) of Completion for the project. 

 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
 
116. All deficient public improvements shall be upgraded to current City Standards 

and to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.  
 
117. Asphalt paving and other improvements damaged during construction shall be 

replaced to the City’s satisfaction. 
 
118. All onsite and offsite improvements (pavement areas, drainage facilities, 

landscaped areas, etc.) shown on the plans and/or approved exhibit shall be 
constructed to City Standards.   

 
119. In accordance with California Building Code, Title 24 and the requirements of 

the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), handicap facilities shall be 
constructed and existing facilities shall be reconstructed within the project 
limits, as necessary, in locations specified by the Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer and the Development Services Director. 

 
UTILITY (WATER – SEWER – ENVIRONMENTAL) 

 
Utility General 

 
120. All utility companies (for non-City owned utilities) shall be contacted to 

establish appropriate easements to provide services to each parcel.  
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 21 of 29 
 

 
121. All parcels shall be served by utilities, allowing each parcel/lot to function 

separately and independent from one another. 
 
122. The Owner is responsible for research of private and public utility lines (Gas, 

Power, Telephone, Cable, Irrigation, etc.) to ensure there are no conflicts with 
the site. 

 
123. All existing on-site utility lines, if any, that conflict with this project shall be 

relocated or removed to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 
 
124. Composite Utility Plans shall be submitted before the issuance of a Grading 

Permit.  Any easements will be dedicated to the appropriate Utility Company 
as required to accommodate the location and maintenance of each facility. 

 
Undergrounding 
 
125. All developments within the City shall be served by underground utilities.  All 

utility plans (Edison, Telephone, and Cable TV, among others) shall be 
submitted to the Public Works Department for review and approval prior to the 
issuance of any permits for utility work within public right-of-way or public 
easements. 

 
Environmental-WQMP 
 
126. This project is subject to the General Construction Permit for Storm Water 

Discharges.  The Owner/Developer is required to file a Notice of Intent (NOI) 
with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for construction 
activities.  A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) shall be prepared 
and be available at the job site at all times.   

 
127. This project is required to submit a Project Specific Water Quality Management 

Plan (WQMP) (reference the County of San Bernardino “Guidelines for New 
Development and Redevelopment”) for review and approval by the City Of 
Upland, Public Works Department, and Environmental Division. WQMP is 
required to be bounded. Standard paper size for exhibits is 24” x 36”.The 
subject WQMP shall be approved prior to the issuance of grading permit.  

 
128. In developing the WQMP, the applicant shall infiltrate or treat projected runoff 

for the new development by an amount equal to or greater than the volume of 
runoff produced from a storm event through incorporation of design elements 
that address one or more of the goals set forth in the subdivisions below. The 
design elements utilized by an applicant may, but are not required to, include 
those provided on the list (A-L). 
 
One or more of the following design elements listed below may be used to 
achieve water quality goals: 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 22 of 29 
 

 
A. Maximize permeable areas to allow more percolation of runoff into the 

ground through such means as: 
 

a. Biofilters; 
b. Green strips; 
c. Swales. 

 
The use of permeable materials in lieu of or to replace hardscapes will increase 
the amount of runoff seepage into the ground 

 
B. Maximize the amount of runoff directed to permeable areas and/or    

maximize stormwater storage for reuse or infiltration by such means as: 
 

a. Orienting roof runoff towards permeable surfaces, drywells, French 
drains, or other structural BMPs rather than directly to driveways or 
non-permeable surfaces so that runoff will penetrate into the ground 
instead of flowing off-site. 

b. Grading the site to divert flow to permeable areas. 
c. Using cisterns, retention structures or green rooftops to store 

precipitation or runoff for reuse. 
d. Removing or designing curbs, berms or the like so as to avoid 

isolation of permeable or landscaped areas. 
 

C. Remove pollutants through installation of treatment control BMPs. 
 

D. The WQMP must also include the applicant's plan for the maintenance of all 
BMP’s requiring ongoing maintenance. 

 
E. The WQMP must include the applicant's signed statement accepting 

responsibility for all structural and/or treatment control BMP maintenance. 
The transfer of property subject to Water Quality Management Plan must 
include as a written condition to the transfer that the transferee assumes 
full responsibility for maintenance of any structural, and/or source or 
treatment control BMPs. 
 

F. The applicant shall provide a trash and recycling enclosure for the 
development. No other area shall drain to the enclosed area. The trash 
enclosures are to be designed to accommodate any City-mandated 
recycling facilities, subject to review and approval of Public Works Director. 
 
The area where a trash receptacle or receptacles are located for use as a 
repository for solid wastes must meet the following Structural or Treatment 
Control BMP requirements: 
 

a. Drainage from adjoining roofs and pavement must be diverted away 
from the trash storage areas. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 23 of 29 
 

 
b. The trash enclosure area must be covered with a solid roof; to   

prevent rain from entering the area, sewer or storm drain 
conveyance system; screened or walled to prevent off-site transport 
of trash. 

c. Trash bins must have solid covers and be covered at all times except 
while being emptied. 

 
G. The Developer shall comply with the City's SWPPP in accordance with the 

NPDES MS4 permit requirement issued by the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB). 
 

H. The developer is responsible for ensuring that all contractors are aware of 
all storm water quality measures and that such measures are implemented. 
Failure to comply with the approved construction Best Management 
Practices will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or stop 
orders. 
 

I. The project plans shall include storm water measures for the operation and 
maintenance of the project for the review and approval of the Public Works 
Director. The project plans shall Identify Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) appropriate to the uses conducted on site that effectively prohibit 
the entry of pollutants into storm water runoff. 

 
J. All on-site storm drains are to be cleaned prior to occupancy and be cleaned 

each year immediately before the beginning of the rainy season (October 
15). 

 
K. Sidewalks, parking lots, and other paved areas must be swept regularly to 

prevent the accumulation of litter and debris. If pressure washed, debris 
must be trapped and collected to prevent entry into the storm drain system. 
No cleaning agent may be discharged to the storm drain. 

 
L. Landscaping shall be properly maintained and shall be designed with 

efficient irrigation practices to reduce runoff, promote surface filtration, and 
minimize the use of fertilizers and pesticides, which can contribute to runoff 
pollution. 

 
M. The developer is responsible for ensuring that all contractors are aware of 

all storm water quality measures and that such measures are implemented. 
Failure to comply with the approved construction Best Management 
Practices will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or stop 
orders. 
 

N. A structural control, such as an oil/water separator, sand filter, or other 
approved equal, is to be installed on site to intercept spills and pre-treat 
storm water prior to discharge to the public storm drain. The design, 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 24 of 29 
 

 
location, maintenance schedule and maintenance responsibility are subject 
to Public Works Director's approval. 
 

129. All projects that are required to prepare a SWPPP must file a letter with the 
SWRCB stating that the construction activity is complete.  A copy of this 
letter must be on file with the City of Upland before occupancy is granted. 

 
130. A Waste Management Plan (WMP) is necessary to demonstrate compliance 

with the Municipal Code 13.28.620 that requires projects to salvage, reuse or 
recycle at least 50% of construction and demolition debris generated by the 
project. This code was adopted to assist the City of Upland in meeting the 
State mandated diversion requirement of 50% of all waste generated. The 
WMP Form "A" shall be provided by the Land Development Department prior 
to issuance of a Building Permit. The WMP Form "B" shall be completed and 
approved by the Land Development Department prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
131. The Owner/Developer shall obtain approval from the Public Works 

Department for a non-domestic waste wastewater discharge permit in 
accordance with Section 13.32.200 of the Upland Municipal Code. The 
Owner/Developer shall also: 

 
a. Provide an appropriate pretreatment facility that meets the 

Standards of the City of Upland including sewer inspection 
manholes. 

b. Construct a grease/oil and/or sand interceptors to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Director 

c. Provide exterior plumbing to allow for the addition of a grease/sand 
and oil interceptor at a future date. 

 
132. New fuel dispensing areas must be paved with Portland cement concrete, 

extending a minimum of 8'-0" from the face of the fuel dispenser and a 
minimum of 4'-0" from the nose of the pump island. Fuel dispensing areas 
should be· graded and constructed to prevent "run-on" or runoff from the 
area. Fuel dispensing facilities must have canopies; canopy roof downspouts 
must be routed to prevent drainage flow through the fuel dispensing area. 
The facility must have a spill cleanup plan. The fuel dispensing area must be 
dry-swept regularly. Dispensing equipment must be inspected routinely for 
proper functioning and leak prevention. 

 
133. No vehicle or equipment washing activity associated with this facility shall 

discharge directly to the storm drains. Wash areas should be limited to areas 
that drain to the sanitary sewer collection system, or the wash water must be 
collected for ultimate disposal to the sanitary sewer, or water must be 
intercepted and treated prior to discharge to the storm drain system. This 
wash area must be covered and designed to prevent runoff from draining 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 25 of 29 
 

 
into and from the area. A sign must be posted indicating the designated wash 
area. 
 

Sewer 
 
134. Proposed on-site sewer laterals, water services and drainage facilities shall be 

maintained by Owner/Developer. 
135. City staff will inspect all newly installed sewer mains with the TV camera before 

acceptance of the line for public improvements. 
 
136. Extend any sanitary sewer and water line facilities as necessary to serve the 

entire development, including the payment of any sewer and water connection 
fees as determined by the Public Works Director. 

 
 
137. Sanitary sewer connections are subject to review, approval, and conditions of 

the Public Works Director. 
 
138. All sewer facilities shall be installed outside any driveways and drive 

approaches, and shall be in accordance with the Public Works Department 
Standards. 

 
139. Each business that sells motor oil shall be required to collect used motor oil 

from residents at no charge. 
 

Water 
 

140. Proposed gas tanks shall maintain a minimum horizontal distance of 500 feet 
from the nearest existing water production well. Additionally, the gas station 
underground storage tanks shall be pressure tested annually and comply with 
all governmental requirements. A letter verifying the clearance distance and 
compliance with necessary testing, including a map showing the accurate 
distance, shall be provided prior to grading permit. 

 
141. On-site protection hydrant(s) and water systems shall be installed in 

accordance with the Upland Fire and Public Works Department Standards. 
 
142. Approved Backflow Device(s) shall be installed and inspected, in accordance 

with the Public Works Department Standards. 
 
143. All water facilities shall be installed outside any driveways and drive 

approaches, and shall be in accordance with the Public Works Department 
Standards. 

144. All new and upgraded developments shall meet the requirements of Chapter 
13.08 “Municipal Water System”, Article VII, of the Upland Municipal Code. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 26 of 29 
 

 
This Code pertains to water system connection fees, water additive fees, and 
the transfer of water stock to the City of Upland. 

 
GRADING - STORM DRAIN - EROSION CONTROL 

 
145. A hydrology/hydraulics analysis is required to the satisfaction of the Public 

Works Director.  Any offsite drainage, which may impact this development, or 
additional drainage created by this development, shall be addressed in 
accordance with the mitigation measures required in the hydrology report 
before issuance of any permits. 

 
146. All drainage shall be directed on-site to the points so indicated upon the subject 

plan. 
 
147. Temporary drainage controls may be required during construction phases as 

directed by the Public Works Director. 
 
148. All catch basins and Storm Drain Inlet Facilities shall be stenciled with the 

appropriate “No Dumping” message.  
 
149. A Geotechnical Report (no older than one year) shall be submitted for review 

before the issuance of a grading permit. Reports older than one year are not 
accepted. 

 
150. Grading plan shall be prepared and shall conform to the requirements of 

California Building Code (CBC), latest edition. Said grading plan shall propose 
all applicable recommendations contained in the project’s geotechnical report.  

 
151. An erosion control plan shall be required as directed by the Public Works 

Director. 
 
152. No permanent building construction shall commence until rough grading is 

certified and a building permit issued by the Building Division. 
 
153. Owner is required to prepare Water Conservation Plan for its grading and 

construction operations in compliance to water conservation mandate by the 
State of California. Use of reclaimed water is highly encouraged. 

 
154. Dust Control operations shall be performed by the Contractor at the time, 

location and in the amount required and as often as necessary to prevent the 
excavation or fill work, demolition operation, or other activities from producing 
dust in amounts harmful to people or causing a nuisance to persons living 
nearby or occupying buildings in the vicinity of the work.  The Contractor is 
responsible for compliance with Fugitive Dust Regulations issued by the Air 
Quality Management District (AQMD). 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 27 of 29 
 

 
155. Control of dust shall be by sprinkling of water, use of approved dust 

preventives, modifications of operations or any other means acceptable to the 
Engineer, City of Upland, the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), 
the AQMD, and any Health or Environmental Control Agency having jurisdiction 
over the facility.  The Engineer shall have the authority to suspend all 
construction operations if, in their opinion, the Contractor fails to adequately 
provide for dust control. 

 
LANDSCAPING 

 
156. All landscaping works proposed for this development shall comply with the City 

of Upland Municipal Code Ch. 17.12. 
 
157. Any landscaping proposed within a City utility easement is subject to approval 

by the Public Works Director and Development Services Director. 
 
158. Landscaping and irrigation plans shall be submitted for City review and 

approval.  
 
159. All landscape and irrigation systems, located in the public parkways, shall be 

connected to a water supply system that is metered to the property owner.  
 
160. All developments require a tree-planting scheme. Plant trees a minimum of 

five feet from other utilities, a minimum of ten feet from driveways, water 
meters, water lines, sewer lines, traffic and directional signs, and fire hydrants, 
a minimum of fifteen feet from street lights, and a minimum of thirty feet from 
street corners. 

 
161. The project frontage shall be fully landscaped, including an automatic irrigation 

system in accordance with a plan subject to review and approval by the 
Development Services Director and the Public Works Director. Drought tolerant 
and water efficient irrigation system shall be required. Parkway landscaping 
shall be maintained by the Owner/Developer. 

 
GENERAL ENGINEERING 

 
162. In the future, based on traffic conditions, if determined by the Public Works 

Director, a Warrant Study will be prepared and considered by the City Council 
for the intersection of Campus Ave and 20th Street, to determine if or when a 
traffic signal or other mitigating measures may be needed. A Study may be 
required and will include an analysis based upon projected traffic volumes, 
derived from existing traffic volumes collected at the 20th Street and Campus 
Ave intersection and surrounding areas, with the addition of projected 
increases in the site generated traffic resulting from development along 20th 
Street. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 28 of 29 
 

 
163. Owner is required to arrange for a PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING with the 

Public Works Department 72 hours in advance before any permitted work can 
commence. 

 
164. Public improvement plans and grading plans shall be submitted for plan check 

to the Public Works Department as a complete package.  A complete package 
includes sewer, water, grading, drainage, and any appropriate reports and 
back up documents.  Incomplete submittals shall be rejected. 

 
165. All plans (including Landscaping Plans) depicting any work to be plan checked 

by Public Works shall be prepared on 24”x36” on City Standard title block.  This 
includes street, sewer, water grading, storm drain, grading, erosion control, 
private street design, and landscape plans.  

 
166. As-built plans (including sewer, water, and storm drain and grading plans) 

shall be submitted. Electronic drawing files on compact disc (CD’s) shall be 
submitted to the City for file in the format acceptable by the City. 

 
167. All Ordinances, Policy Resolutions, and Standards of the City in effect at the 

time this project is approved shall be complied with as a condition of approval. 
 
168. No certificate of occupancy, or any other final clearance needed prior to 

occupancy, shall be given until all other conditions are met. 
 

END OF CONDIITONS 
 

Section 7.  Inconsistency: If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution.  
 
Section 8.  Certification: The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall certify to 
the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and his certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of September, 2020. 
 
      
 
        

_________________________________ 
                                                                            Robin Aspinall, CHAIR 
 
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 29 of 29 
 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________  
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of September, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    
 
 

___________________________________ 
                                                                   Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 



 

 

Exhibit B – Project Plans 

 



IN N OUT

2
2

K

U
N

L
.
 
8

7

1
2

K

D
I
E

S
E

L

1
0

K

U
N

L
.
 
9

1

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

FORD
PARCEL 4

APN 1043-432-44

BUILDING NO.                           SIZE              USE                          PARKING EQUATION          REQ. NO. SPACES          PROVIDED

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED:            37 PARKING SPACES

HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACES REQUIRED:  37 SPACES- 2 REQUIRED PER CODE.   PROVIDED 6 SPACES

SITE PLAN & PARKING SUMMARY

CLEAN AIR VEHICLE PARKING REQUIRED PER CA GREEN BLDG CODE: 1 REQUIRED, 3 PROVIDED (3 REQ TO BE EV CHARGE)

MOTORCYCLE PARKING PER UPLAND MUNICIPAL CODE: 1 REQUIRED, 1 PROVIDED.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS PARCEL 2 OF PARCELS MAP NO. 19562, IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AS PER
PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246, PAGES 33 & 34 INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

Food Mart
FoodFast

0'-0"

21'-0"

18'-6"

12'-0"

23'-0"

1

D

1

A

4

B

3

B

1

A

9

*

5

B

12

C

2

B

1

D

11

*

4B

A

8

*

9

*

3

B

1

D

4

B

11

*

1

A

5

B

1

A

1

D

1

A

12

C

4

B

EQUIPMENT BEYOND

ROOF LINE

16

*

Entrance

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

0'-0"

20'-0"

18'-6"

12'-0"

21'-0"

2

B

5

B

1

A

1

A

1

A

4

B

13

*

7

A

3

B

1

D

4

B

9

*

EQUIPMENT BEYOND

ROOF LINE

1

D

4

B

16

*

Do Not Enter

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

0'-0"

21'-0"

18'-6"

12'-0"

23'-0"

1

D

2

B

1

A

3

B

4

B

6

*

7

A

3

B

1

D

4

B

1

A

EQUIPMENT BEYOND

ROOF LINE

4

B

16

*

WashCar

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

0'-0"

21'-0"

18'-6"

12'-0"

15'-0"

5

B

1

A

1

A

1

A

4

B

13

*

2

B

1

A

4

B

12

C

9

*

EQUIPMENT BEYOND

ROOF LINE

1

D

16

*

1.

2.

3.

4.

A.

7/8" SMOOTH STUCCO

5.

OVERHEAD WITH GLAZING ROLLUP DOOR6.

3'x7' HOLLOW METAL DOOR

3'x7' ANODIZED ALUMINUM DOOR WITH 1/4"

TEMPERED GLASS AND 10" KICK PLATE

7.

WINDOWS ANODIZED ALUMINUM FRAME AND 1/2"

TEMPERED CLEAR GLASS

8.

9.

B.

C.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS DHURRIE BEIGE #SW7524 (MAIN

WALLS)

10.

SIGNAGE BY OTHERS UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

12"H ALUMINUM FINISH AWNING  OVERHANG

11.

STUCCO EXPANSION JOINTS

SHERWIN WILLIAMS KESTREL WHITE #SW7516 (TRIM)

12.

10"H SMOOTH FINISH TRIM

36"H TOP CORNICE SMOOTH FINISH

24"H TOP CORNICE SMOOTH FINISH

6"H SMOOTH FINISH TRIM

13.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS RAINSTORM #SW6230 (AWNNG)

NOT USED14.

NOT USED15.

D. SHERWIN WILLIAMS DRY DOCK #SW7502 (TOWER &

POP OUTS)

PRECAST CONCRETE VENEER (NATURAL COLOR)16.

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er





C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er





2
2

K

U
N

L
.
 
8

7

1
2

K

D
I
E

S
E

L

1
0

K

U
N

L
.
 
9

1

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

FORD
PARCEL 4

APN 1043-432-44

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

F

F

Q
Q

Q
Q

Q Q Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q
Q

QQQ

Q

Q

Q

Q
T

C

F

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



N.T.S.N.T.S.N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

QUICK COUPLERXERI-BIRD-8

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

SHRUB PLANTING TREE PLANTING

CONTROL BOX

XERIGATION CONTROL VALVE

XERI-BIRD-2N.T.S.ELECTRIC MASTER VALVEN.T.S.

IRRIGATION TRENCH DETAIL N.T.S.

Irrigation Schedule - Maintenance Period

Irrigation Schedule - Established Plants

DRIPLINE BELOW GRADE N.T.S.

N.T.S.SHRUB/G.C. SPACING

FINISH GRADE

LINE FLUSHING

VALVE #TLSOV

VALVE BOX SEE

SPECS

8"

1/2" STEEL MESH

3/4" GRAVEL SUMP

BRICK SUPPORTS

(THREE)

8"

1" ABOVE FG

TECHLINE

17mm TUBING

S
E

E

S
P

E
C

S

8
"

N.T.S.MANUAL FLUSHING VALVE DETAIL

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2020

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 19562, IAS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246,

PAGES 33 THROUGH 34, INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

VICINITY MAP

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

9302 PITTSBURGH AVE, SUITE 230

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

CONTACT: MARK BERTONE

(909)481-6322

CITY OF UPLAND

CITY OF UPLAND

FRONTIER

THE GAS COMPANY

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

EDISON CO.

SAN BERNARDINO

COUNTY FIRE

DEPARTMENT

WATER:

SEWER

TELEPHONE:

GAS:

ELECTRIC:

FIRE PROTECTION:

THE BEARING OF N89°36'29"EAST ALONG THE CENTERLINE

OF 20TH STREET, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP 19562 P.M.B.

246/33-34, WAS USED AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR

THIS MAP.

BASIS OF BEARINGS

UTILITIES

ENGINEER

BENCH MARK

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

CONTACT: MR. ASH ETEMADIAN

OWNER

GENERAL NOTES

1. ANY EXISTING STRUCTURES ON THE SUBJECT

PROPERTY SHALL BE REMOVED. UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED.

2. THIS SITE WILL MEET ALL ENGINEERING AND NPDES

REQUIREMENTS.

CITY OF UPLAND BENCHMARK NUMBER: 4D-86.  ELEVATION

= 1217.216 (BASED ON NGVD 1929) EST: 7/01/1987.

2" CITY OF UPLAND BRASS DISC SET IN NORTHEAST

CORNER OF PCC BASE FOR STEEL ELECTRICAL

TRANSMISSION POLE # 1819200E, 19 FEET +/- WEST OF THE

CENTERLINE OF CAMPUS AVENUE & 48 FEET +/- SOUTH OF

THE CENTERLINE OF 9TH STREET.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS PARCEL 2 OF PARCELS MAP NO. 19562, IN

THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF

CALIFORNIA AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246, PAGES 33 & 34

INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY

RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY

CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN

LEGEND

A.C. PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

RMA GROUP, INC.

12130 SANTA MARGARITA COURT

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

CONTACT: GARY WALLACE

REFERENCE REPORT:

NO. 15-H80-001

DATED: JANUARY 13, 2016

GEOTECHNICAL

21

AS SHOWN

986-2824

08/12/2020

 OF 

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

RETAIL PROJECT

PER SEPARATE PLANS

1

6

7

0

1
6
7
1

1

6

6

9

1

6

7

0

1

6

7

2

1
6
7
1

1

6

7

0

1
6
6
9

1
6
7
2

1

6

7

1

1
6
7
0

1667

1670

1669

1668

1667

1669

1667

1668

1669

1

6

6

9

1

6

7

1

(72.34) TC

(71.84) FL

(72.25) TC

(71.75) FL

(72.15) TC

(71.65) FL

(72.02) TC

(71.52) FS

(71.90) TC

(71.40) FS

(72.95) TC

(72.45) FS

(72.60) TC

(72.10) FS

(72.55) TC

(72.05) FS

(72.30) TC

(71.80) FS

(72.95) TC

(72.45) FS

(72.68) TC

(72.18) FS

(72.60) TC

(72.10) FS

(72.78) TC

(72.28) FS

(73.00) TC

(72.50) FS

(73.45) TC

(72.95) FS

73.90 TC

73.40 FS

(74.15) TC

(73.65) FS

0"CF

(73.85) TC

(72.55) TC

(72.05) FL

(72.75) TC

(72.25) FL

GB

GB

(

7

1

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

8

.

3

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

2

.

7

'

(

7

1

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

7

.

2

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

3

.

8

'

(

7

1

.

1

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

9

.

0

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

2

.

0

'

(

7

1

.

1

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

9

.

1

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

2

.

0

'

(

7

0

.

6

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

6

.

3

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

4

.

0

'

(

7

0

.

6

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

5

.

9

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

4

.

6

'

(

7

0

.

5

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

5

.

0

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

4

.

5

'

(

6

9

.

5

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

4

.

1

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

5

.

1

'

(

6

9

.

1

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

3

.

0

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

6

.

1

'

(

7

0

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

1

.

5

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

8

.

0

'

(

7

0

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

2

.

3

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

6

.

6

'

(

7

1

.

8

8

)

 

T

C

(

7

1

.

2

1

)

 

F

L

(

7

3

.

5

6

)

 

T

C

(

7

2

.

8

9

)

 

F

L

(

7

3

.

5

2

)

 

T

C

(

7

2

.

8

5

)

 

F

L

0

"

C

F

(

7

3

.

7

3

)

 

F

S

0.56%

(

7

2

.

0

6

)

 

T

C

B

V

C

M

O

V

E

V

C

(

7

1

.

6

2

)

 

T

C

1

.

2

2

%

B

V

C

(

7

0

.

9

8

)

 

T

C

(

7

0

.

7

2

)

 

T

C

(

7

0

.

0

5

)

 

F

L
M

O

V

E

V

C

(

7

0

.

5

5

)

 

T

C

0

.

5

0

%

(

7

0

.

1

5

)

 

T

C

(

6

9

.

4

8

)

 

F

L

E

C

R

(

7

2

.

5

3

)

 

T

C

(

7

1

.

8

6

)

 

F

L

0

.
5

6

%

(

7

3

.

2

9

)

 

T

C

(

7

3

.

2

6

)

 

T

C

0

"

C

F

(

7

3

.

7

0

)

 

F

S

0

"

C

F

(

7

3

.

8

2

)

 

F

S

(

7

3

.

8

9

)

F

S

71.55 FF

70.88 PAD

0.25'

71.30 FF

2
.
1
%

2

%

7

0

.

9

4

 

T

C

3

3

'

3

3

'

1

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

1

1

'

20TH          STREET

(73.59) TC

(73.09) FS

(

7

2

.

8

8

)

 

T

C

(

7

2

.

2

1

)

 

F

L

(

7

2

.

1

3

)

F

L

(

7

1

.

9

6

)

F

L

(

7

2

.

5

6

)

 

T

C

(

7

1

.

8

9

)

 

F

L

0.55%

APN 1044-111-49

7

2

.

8

5

 

T

C

7

2

.

3

5

 

F

S

7

2

.

3

7

 

T

C

7

1

.

8

7

 

F

S

7

3

.

3

9

 

T

C

7

2

.

8

9

 

F

S

7

3

.

0

8

 

T

C

7

2

.

5

8

 

F

S

7

3

.

1

1

 

T

C

7

2

.

6

1

 

F

S

4

.
4

9

%

7

2

.

6

5

 

T

C

7

2

.

1

5

 

F

S

7

3

.

2

8

 

T

C

7

2

.

7

8

 

F

S

7

3

.

4

8

 

T

C

7

2

.

9

8

 

F

S

7

1

.

5

0

 

T

C

7

1

.

0

0

 

F

L

7

1

.

2

8

 

T

C

7

0

.

7

8

 

F

L

7

1

.

1

3

 

T

C

7

0

.

6

3

 

F

L

7

0

.

5

3

 

F

L

7

1

.

8

0

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

0

 

F

S

7

1

.

8

0

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

0

 

F

S

1

.
0

6

%

4

.
6

4

%

1

.

0

7

%

2
.
4
5
%

7

1

.

1

3

 

F

L

7

1

.

4

1

 

F

L

7

0

.

9

1

 

F

L

4
.
6
6
%

7

1

.

3

5

F

L

7

1

.

3

3

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

3

 

F

S

7

1

.

3

3

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

3

 

F

S

7

1

.

3

3

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

3

 

F

S

7

1

.

3

8

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

8

 

F

S

7

1

.

3

3

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

3

 

F

S

1
.
4

8
%

3.01%

2.89%

0.71%

1.70%

3.53%

1.83%

0.63%

0.65%

1.86%

1.82%

7

1

.

5

2

 

F

L

6

9

.

8

1

 

F

S

7

1

.

2

8

 

F

S

0
.
6

6
%

2
.
0

1
%

1
.
5

0
%

7

0

.

5

0

 

F

S

1.69%

6

9

.

9

2

 

T

C

6

9

.

4

2

 

F

L

6

9

.

9

9

 

T

C

6

9

.

4

9

 

F

L

6

9

.

0

9

 

T

C

6

8

.

5

9

 

F

L

6

9

.

1

9

 

T

C

6

8

.

6

9

 

F

L

7

0

.

9

5

 

T

C

7

0

.

4

5

 

F

L

7

1

.

2

9

 

T

C

7

0

.

7

9

 

F

L

7

1

.

8

0

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

0

 

F

L

7

1

.

4

4

 

T

C

7

0

.

9

4

 

F

S

6

9

.

9

2

 

F

S

1
.5

4
%

6

9

.

9

8

 

T

C

6

9

.

4

8

 

F

L

0
.5

0
%

1

.

0

0

%

6

9

.

6

8

 

F

S

0
.
6
2
%

0
.
6
7
%

1
.1

7
%

0
.
7
4
%

1
.
1

7
%

7

3

.

5

0

F

L

7

3

.

4

7

 

F

S

2.99%

1
.
4
2
%

PROPOSED

CATCH BASIN

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
6

"
 
S

E
W

E
R

PROPOSED 6" SEWER

7

3

.

3

7

 

T

C

7

2

.

8

7

 

F

S

2.00%

1
.9

5
%

7

0

.

2

0

 

F

S

6

9

.

5

2

 

F

S

1
.
5

8
%

E
X

IS
T

. 8
"
 S

E
W

E
R

E
X

IS
T

. 8
"
 S

E
W

E
R

E
X

IS
T

. 2
4
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

7

2

.

5

7

 

F

S

7

2

.

3

5

 

F

S

7

3

.

2

5

 

T

C

7

2

.

7

5

 

F

S

7

2

.

7

3

 

T

C

7

2

.

2

3

 

F

S

E
X

IS
T

. 1
8
"

S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

3
.
5

3
%

PROPOSED

FIRE WATER

PROPOSED

DOMESTIC WATER

PROPOSED

FIRE WATER

1.7%

1
.
7

%

1
.
7

%

7

2

.

4

4

 

T

C

7

1

.

9

4

 

F

S

N
8
5
°1
8
'2
6
"
W

2
3
2
.1

8
'

N
0
0
°
2
3
'
3
1
"
W

2
7

2
.
0

1
'

N89°36'29
"E

109.07'

L

=

2

1

9

.
5

9

'
,

R

=

5

3

3

.
0

0
'

R=533.00'

L=5.75'

APN 1044-111-50

EXISTING

IN-N-OUT SITE

APN 1044-111-48

EXISTING 25' WIDE STORM

DRAIN AND SEWER EASEMENT

TO THE CITY OF UPLAND

PROPOSED

VORTECHS 9000

UNIT

P
R

O
P

. 1
8
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

PROPOSED

CATCH BASIN

L=19.92'

R=467.00'

7

1

.

2

7

 

F

L

7

1

.

3

1

 

F

L

LOADING AND

UNLOADING

AREA

PROPOSED

F.D.C.

PROPOSED

F.H.

EXIST.

D.C.D.A.

PROPOSED

BACKFLOW DEVICE

PROPOSED

P.I.V.

PROPOSED

FIRE RISER

P.O. C.

P.O. C.

6

6

'

7

2

.

2

6

 

T

C

7

1

.

7

6

 

F

S

6

9

.

6

3

 

T

C

6

9

.

1

3

 

F

S

7

1

.

4

1

 

F

S

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 
L

I
M

I
T

S

N89°36'29"E

26.57'

6

9

.

9

8

 

F

S

6

9

.

5

7

 

F

L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL GRADING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19562

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUCAMONGA CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9302 PITTSBURGH AVE., SUITE 230

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 909.481.6322

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:     909.481.6320

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1660

AutoCAD SHX Text
1665

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1683.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1660.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1662.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1666.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1670

AutoCAD SHX Text
1675

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
22K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
12K

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C



AS SHOWN

986-2824

08/12/2020

 OF 

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2020

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 19562, IAS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246,

PAGES 33 THROUGH 34, INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

SECTION A-A

SCALE: 1"=5'

10.00'

V
A

R
I
E

S

2
.
0

'
 
-
 
8

.
5

'

PROPOSED 6" CURB

& 18" GUTTER

2%-3.6%

2%

CALTRANS R/W

1' MIN.

EXIST. KEYSTONE

'MSE' RETAINING

WALL, BUILT IN 2018.

11' 8.67'

1.50'

0.5'

0.5'

9.68' 11.50'

PL

0.5'

EXIST. 6" CURB

& 18" GUTTER

SECTION B-B

SCALE: 1"=5'

EXIST. 6" CURB

ONLY
EXIST. CURB

CURB DRAIN

PROP. 6" CURB

PROP. 6" CURB

AND GUTTER

PARCEL 1

IN N OUT

PARCEL 2

EXISTING 6" CURB

& 18" GUTTER

R/W

20' 11'

5' 5.5'

0.5'

SECTION C-C

SCALE: 1"=5'

2%

1% MIN.

4.5% MAX.

20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9302 PITTSBURGH AVE., SUITE 230

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 909.481.6322

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:     909.481.6320

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL GRADING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19562



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2020

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 19562, IAS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246,

PAGES 33 THROUGH 34, INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

VICINITY MAP

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

9302 PITTSBURGH AVE, SUITE 230

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

CONTACT: MARK BERTONE

(909)481-6322

CITY OF UPLAND

CITY OF UPLAND

FRONTIER

THE GAS COMPANY

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

EDISON CO.

SAN BERNARDINO

COUNTY FIRE

DEPARTMENT

WATER:

SEWER

TELEPHONE:

GAS:

ELECTRIC:

FIRE PROTECTION:

THE BEARING OF N89°36'29"EAST ALONG THE CENTERLINE

OF 20TH STREET, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP 19562 P.M.B.

246/33-34, WAS USED AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR

THIS MAP.

BASIS OF BEARINGS

UTILITIES

ENGINEER

BENCH MARK

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

CONTACT: MR. ASH ETEMADIAN

OWNER

GENERAL NOTES

1. ANY EXISTING STRUCTURES ON THE SUBJECT

PROPERTY SHALL BE REMOVED. UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED.

2. THIS SITE WILL MEET ALL ENGINEERING AND NPDES

REQUIREMENTS.

CITY OF UPLAND BENCHMARK NUMBER: 4D-86.  ELEVATION

= 1217.216 (BASED ON NGVD 1929) EST: 7/01/1987.

2" CITY OF UPLAND BRASS DISC SET IN NORTHEAST

CORNER OF PCC BASE FOR STEEL ELECTRICAL

TRANSMISSION POLE # 1819200E, 19 FEET +/- WEST OF THE

CENTERLINE OF CAMPUS AVENUE & 48 FEET +/- SOUTH OF

THE CENTERLINE OF 9TH STREET.

COMPOSITE UTILITY PLAN

11

AS SHOWN

986-2824

08/12/2020

 OF 

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

RETAIL PROJECT

PER SEPARATE PLANS

3

3

'

3

3

'

1

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

1

1

'

20TH          STREET

APN 1044-111-49

PROPOSED

CATCH BASIN

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
6

"
 
S

E
W

E
R

PROPOSED 6" SEWER

E
X

IS
T

. 8
"
 S

E
W

E
R

E
X

IS
T

. 8
"
 S

E
W

E
R

E
X

IS
T

. 2
4
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

E
X

IS
T

. 1
8
"

S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

PROPOSED

FIRE WATER

PROPOSED

DOMESTIC WATER

PROPOSED

FIRE WATER

N
8
5
°1
8
'2
6
"
W

2
3
2
.1

8
'

N
0
0
°
2
3
'
3
1
"
W

2
7

2
.
0

1
'

N89°36'29
"E

109.07'

L

=

2

1

9

.
5

9

'
,

R

=

5

3

3

.
0

0
'

R=533.00'

L=5.75'

APN 1044-111-50

EXISTING

IN-N-OUT SITE

APN 1044-111-48

EXISTING 25' WIDE STORM

DRAIN AND SEWER EASEMENT

TO THE CITY OF UPLAND

PROPOSED

VORTECHS 9000

UNIT

P
R

O
P

. 1
8
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

PROPOSED

CATCH BASIN

L=19.92'

R=467.00'

LOADING AND

UNLOADING

AREA

PROPOSED

F.D.C.

PROPOSED

F.H.

EXIST.

D.C.D.A.

PROPOSED

BACKFLOW DEVICE

PROPOSED

P.I.V.

PROPOSED

FIRE RISER

P.O. C.

P.O. C.

6

6

'

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 
L

I
M

I
T

S

N89°36'29"E

26.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITE UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19562

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUCAMONGA CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9302 PITTSBURGH AVE., SUITE 230

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 909.481.6322

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:     909.481.6320

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1683.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1660.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1662.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1666.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
22K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
12K

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL





 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT  

          
ITEM NO. 8E 

 
 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 
  
TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 
  
FROM: ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
  
PREPARED BY: MIKE POLAND, CONTRACT PLANNING MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-11, SITE 

PLAN NO. 19-08, DESIGN REVIEW NO. 19-14, AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. EAR-0085 TO ALLOW AN 8,825 
SQUARE FOOT BUILDING WITH FIVE (5) COMMERCIAL SUITES ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 20TH STREET, 550 
FEET EAST OF CAMPUS AVENUE. APPLICANT: ASH ETEMADIAN 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission by motion: 
 
1. Find that no further environmental review is required pursuant to California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15162 as the project is 
consistent with the development intensity established in The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan for which a Final Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH#1998051075) was previously prepared and certified, and there are no new 
or more severe adverse impacts than discussed in the prior Final Environmental 
Impact Report. 

 
2. Adopt the attached Planning Commission Resolution thereby approving 

Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08 and Design Review No. 19-
14 subject to findings and conditions attached therein within Planning Area 21 of 
the Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan. 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 2 of 12 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Project Site is located within Planning Area 21 of The Colonies at San Antonio 
Specific Plan which was approved by the City in 2012. Planning Area 21 has a Highway 
Commercial (CH) Designation. Development in this Planning Area can include 
automobile dealerships, hotels, retail uses, restaurants, gas stations, and other 
freeway-oriented commercial uses. The Planning Area’s size and orientation increase 
the exposure of the uses to freeway travelers. 
 
The purpose of The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan is to assist in the 
development of the 447.8-acre project site in a manner that will benefit local 
residents, regional consumers, the general public, and the City of Upland. The 
Specific Plan achieves this goal by establishing land uses and precise 
development/design controls within the limits of the Specific Plan. The customized 
development regulations contained in the Specific Plan address the unique 
characteristics of the site and surrounding properties, as well as the needs of the 
residential, commercial, community, and open space uses proposed for the site. 
 

 
 
PLANNING ENTITLEMENTS 
 
The project would provide for the construction of a commercial building with five (5) 
suites. Two (2) suites would be for retail businesses, while the other three (3) suites 
would be for eating establishments. One of the eating establishment suites would 
have a drive-through lane and pick-up window.  

The following planning entitlement applications are required in order to process the 
applicant’s proposed project. 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 3 of 12 
 

 
1. Conditional Use Permit. - A Conditional Use Permit Application is required for the 

eating establishment that will have a drive-through lane for sales and pick-up in 
accordance with Chapter 7.0/Table 7B (Development Regulations) of The Colonies 
at San Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
2. Site Plan Review. – A Site Plan Review Application is required in accordance with 

the Upland Municipal Code to provide for the review and approval of the 
development project for consistency with the adopted The Colonies at San Antonio 
Specific Plan development regulations, Chapter 7.0. 

 
3. Design Review. – The Design Review Application process is required to promote 

quality architectural design, site planning, and landscape development. The 
process is aimed at improving and augmenting other development control 
included in Chapter 8.0 (Design Guidelines) of the adopted The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan.  

 
4. Environmental Assessment Review. – The purpose of the Environmental 

Assessment Review is for the applicant to inform the City of the basic components 
of the proposed project so that the City may review the project pursuant to City 
policies, ordinances, and guidelines; the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) guidelines; and the City’s Rules and Procedures to implement the CEQA 
Guidelines. 

 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
Per Upland Municipal Code Section 17.43.050E, if one or more planning entitlement 
application is submitted concurrently for a single proposed project, each planning 
entitlement application shall be acted upon concurrently by the highest review 
authority. In this case, the highest review authority is the Planning Commission, 
therefore the Planning Commission will take action on the formal planning entitlement 
applications discussed above for the project. The Planning Commission’s decision is 
final unless the request is appealed to the City Council per Upland Municipal Code 
Section 17.47.040. 
 
SITE AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The 1.40 acre parcel is located approximately 550 feet east of Campus Avenue on 
the south side of 20th Street in the northeast quadrant of the I-210/Campus Avenue 
interchange in the northern portion of The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan area. 
Presently, the site is vacant and free of any above grade structures. 
 
The site is bound by East 20th Street and a rock quarry to the north, an existing In-
N-Out Burger restaurant and a proposed service station, convenience store, quick 
serve restaurant and automated car wash (Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10, Site 
Plan No. 19-07 & Design Review No. 19-13) to the west, the new Ford of Upland 
dealership that is currently under construction is located to the east, and Interstate 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 4 of 12 
 

210 to the south. The site is relatively flat, with no major changes in elevation. 
Groundcover at the subject site consists of exposed soil and localized weed growth. 
 

 
 
Existing land uses and Specific Plan designations on and surrounding the project site 
are as follows: 

 Existing Land Use Specific Plan Designation 
Site Undeveloped. CH (Highway Commercial) 

North East 20th Street and a rock quarry. GM (Gravel Mine) 

South I-210 and Colonies Crossroads 
Commercial Center. 

Auxiliary Interstate Highway & 
CH (Highway Commercial) 

East The new Ford of Upland dealership 
under construction. CH (Highway Commercial) 

West In-N-Out Burger and an 
undeveloped lot. CH (Highway Commercial) 

 
The project would provide for the construction of an 8,825 square foot commercial 
building with five (5) suites. Two (2) of the suites would be for retail businesses, 
while the other three (3) suites would be for eating establishments. One of the eating 
establishment suites would have a drive-through lane and pickup. The proposed 
building will be of wood/stucco construction with a slab-on-grade floor. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
 
As noted above, a Conditional Use Permit Application is required for the eating 
establishment that will have a drive-through window for sales and pick-up in 
accordance with Chapter 7.0/Table 7B (Development Regulations) of The Colonies at 

 

 

PROJECT 
SITE 

 

CUP NO. 
19-10, SP 
NO. 19-07 
& DR NO. 

19-13 

 

20th Street 

 

Holliday Rock 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 5 of 12 
 

San Antonio Specific Plan. Section of the 7.8.10 of The Colonies at San Antonio 
Specific Plan provides specific development standards for drive-through facilities. 
They include: 

General Standards 
 

• Drive-through facilities within consolidated commercial centers shall have an 
architectural style consistent with the theme established for the center and its 
corporate identity.  

• The design and locations of the facility and queuing lane shall not contribute 
to increased congestion on public streets or private property adjacent to the 
facility. 

• The design and location of the facility and queuing lane shall not impede access 
to or exit from project area parking facilities. 

 
Specific Design Requirements 
 

• Drive-through windows and drive-up remote tellers/ATMs shall provide at least 
120 feet of reservoir space for the stacking of vehicles as measured from the 
service window or unit to the entry point into the drive-up lane. 

 
Compliance – Project is providing 180 feet of reservoir space for the stacking 
of vehicles. 
 

• Drive-through windows and drive-up remote tellers/ATMs shall be separated 
from commercial drive aisles which provide direct access to a public street. A 
minimum 25 feet of travel distance shall be provided for drivers after leaving 
a drive-through window or remote teller/ATM before they enter a drive aisle 
that provides direct access to a public street. 
 
Compliance – Project is providing 37 feet of travel distance for drivers after 
leaving the drive-through window before they enter the drive aisle that 
provides direct access to 20th Street.  
 

• Pedestrian paths shall be maintained in such manner to allow the safe and 
convenient passage of persons across drive aisles. Pedestrian pathways shall 
be clearly marked with paint and/or enhanced paving materials and designated 
with adequate and appropriate signage. Pedestrian pathways adjacent to drive 
aisles shall be separated by a raised curb, planter, berm, or other device to 
ensure a safe and adequate separation between pedestrians and motor 
vehicles.  
 
Compliance – Condition No. 30. 
 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 6 of 12 
 

• Order board speakers or intercom systems shall be installed and maintained 
in a manner which diminishes and/or directs noise away from adjacent uses 
and public rights-of-way. 

 
Compliance – Condition No. 12. 

 
• Landscaping shall be installed to screen drive-through aisles from primary 

circulation routes and shall be used to minimize the visual impact of order 
boards and directional signs. 

 
Compliance – Condition No. 16. 

 
Operating Standards 
 

• Drive aisles, landscaped areas, play areas, and parking facilities associated 
with drive through facilities shall be maintained in a neat and orderly manner. 

• Drive-through facilities shall not constitute a nuisance to the Specific Plan area 
and/or adjacent uses due to noise, litter, loitering, smoke or odor. 

• Order board speakers and/or intercom systems shall be operated in a manner 
which does not exceed standards stated in the City’s Noise Ordinance or 
applicable sections of this Specific Plan. 

 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
The project meets all of the City’s Development Code’s standards and the 
requirements of The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan. The development 
requirements identified in the table below are those contained within The Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan. No specific users are proposed. As such, no detailed 
interior plans have been submitted for the eating establishments or the retail uses. 

Development Standards 
 

Development Standards Required Proposed Meets 
Standard 

Minimum Lot Area NR1 1.40 acres Yes 
Maximum Lot Coverage NR1 21.26% Yes 
Landscaping 10% min. 17.7% Yes 
Building Height 55 feet. max 33 feet Yes 
Setbacks2    

Interstate 210 20 feet 140 feet Yes 
20th Street (for building) 25 feet 33 feet Yes 
20th Street (for parking) 15 feet 40 feet Yes 
Interior Property Lines NR1 45 feet min. Yes 

Notes: 1    NR = No requirement 
   2   Setbacks are measured from property lines 

 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 7 of 12 
 

  
 
ARCHITECTURE/DESIGN 
 
The purpose of the Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan Commercial Design 
Guidelines is to broadly establish planning and design parameters that will allow both 
design controls and design flexibility for the future development of nonresidential 
Planning Areas. The Guidelines do not constitute specific development standards, but 
provide a framework for preferred construction design and materials while continuing 
to promote individual creativity and unique architectural styles that will be asset to 
the community.  

The proposed architecture reflects a clean, contemporary style smooth stucco finish, 
through the use of simple massing, varying parapet heights and exterior materials 
that are consistent with the applicable design principles within the Commercial Design 
Guidelines.  A modern dark and light two-tone brown color scheme to provide 
contrast in the different parts of the facade scheme will complement the aluminum 
finish awning overhang entries.  Outdoor lighting will be required to comply with 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 8 of 12 
 

Chapter 17.14 (Outdoor Lighting) of the Upland Municipal Code, including dark-sky 
lighting requirements. 

 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
No landscaping currently exists on the project site. Groundcover at the subject site 
consists of exposed soil and localized weed growth. With the proposed construction 
of the commercial building, the Specific Plan requires the Project provide a minimum 
10 percent landscape coverage. The Conceptual Landscape Plan provides 17.7% 
landscape coverage. 
 
The conceptual landscape plan proposes the installation of a variety of new trees, 
plants, and shrubs along the project perimeter and throughout the site, including 12-
Fruitless Olive Trees (24-inch box), 3-Sonoran Palo Verde Trees (24-inch box), 12-
Sweet Bay Trees (24 inch box), and 5-Western Redbud Trees (24-inch box). 
 
The Fruitless Olive Tree is a distinctive evergreen that grows at a slow to medium 
rate to twenty-five to thirty feet tall and wide, and has an airy appearance. It has 
narrow, gray-green foliage with a light silvery-green on the undersides of the leaves. 
 
The Sonoran Palo Verde Tree is also called Palo Brea. This tree has smooth, blue-
green bark that looks like a leotard clinging to the branches. This tree is more 
sculptural looking. It has fewer lower branches and at 35 feet, is a taller tree. 
 
The Sweet Bay Tree is a slender conical form tree with dark green, highly aromatic 
foliage which is valued as a flavorful culinary seasoning. 
 
The Western Redbud Tree is a small deciduous tree and can reach 15-20 ft. tall and 
as wide. Round green leaves, 2-3 in. wide are heart-shaped at the base. Showy 
clusters of pea-shaped flowers occur in early spring and range in color from light to 
deep magenta. 
 
Ground cover consists of an assortment of low-water use plants and shrubs (1-Gallon 
to 5-Gallon). The ground plane shrubs and groundcovers were selected for color, 
shape, texture, water usage and performance from the property’s existing plant 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 9 of 12 
 

palette. All landscaping is categorized as low or moderate for water usage and will be 
irrigated by a low volume drip system. 
 
PARKING/CIRCULATION 
 
The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan requires 4 parking spaces for every 1,000 
square feet of commercial building area in Planning Area 21. This equates to 1 parking 
space for every 250 square feet.  However, the Applicant has chosen to utilize the 
more restrictive parking requirements specified in the City’s City’ Development Code 
which require 1 parking for every 250 square feet for the retail suites and 1 parking 
space for every 100 square feet for the eating establishments. 
 

Type of Use  Square 
Footage Parking Ratio # of Spaces 

Required 
# of Spaces 

Provided 
Retail 3,000 1/250 12 12 
Eating 
Establishment 5,825 1/100 58.25 71 

Total        8,825 71 83 
 
The Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan (Table 7.E – Commercial Parking 
Adjustments) allows a reduction in the amount of required parking to be reduced by 
1.0 parking spaces per 20 feet of drive-through stacking area that is provided. In 
that the project plan provides 180 feet of reservoir space for the stacking of vehicles 
a reduction in the amount of 9 spaces is permitted. Therefore, the total number of 
required spaces can be reduced from 71 to 62. As a result of this allowable reduction 
the Applicant is providing a surplus of 21 spaces (83-62=21). 
 
The Specific Plan requires commercial buildings up to 100,000 square feet to provide 
one (1) loading space. The requirements for the size of the loading space are that it 
is to be not less than 10 feet in width, 20 feet in length and 14 feet vertical clearance. 
The project plan provides a loading space next to the southeast corner of the building. 
The proposed loading space is 12 feet wide by 45 feet long. 
 
The site will be accessed via a shared driveway from 20th Street to the north. This 
joint driveway will be shared with proposed development to the west. Vehicle parking 
will be located on the south side of the building.  
 
Internal circulation consists of 26-30 foot wide drive aisles. The drive-through aisle 
is 12 feet wide. The circulation system has been reviewed and approved by the San 
Bernardino County Fire Department and Public Works Department. 

TRAFFIC IMPACTS 

When the adjacent In-N-Out Burger Restaurant was approved by the Planning 
Commission on March 22, 2017, the Planning Commission raised questions regarding 
the possibility of installing a traffic signal at 20th Street and Campus Avenue due to 
the new development along 20th Street, east and west of Campus Avenue. The 
Colonies at San Antonio Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) studied and 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 10 of 12 
 

prescribed traffic signals at different locations throughout the Colonies, however, the 
20th Street at Campus Avenue intersection was not one of them. Furthermore, when 
the General Plan update was completed in 2015, a traffic signal was not prescribed 
for this location, either. 

When the EIR’s Traffic and Circulation Analysis was prepared for The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan it analyzed future development buildout along 20th Street, east 
and west of Campus Avenue. The case scenario for development buildout along 120th 
Street consisted of a 150-room hotel, a 40,000 square foot health club, a day-care 
center, two service/gasoline stations, restaurants, and auto sales lots. With all of this 
potential development the Traffic and Circulation Analysis concluded that the area 
near 20th Street and Campus Avenue would operate at a Level of Service (LOS) “C”. 
Level of service (LOS) is a qualitative measure used to relate the quality of motor 
vehicle traffic service. LOS is used to analyze roadways and intersections by 
categorizing traffic flow and assigning quality levels of traffic based on performance 
measure like vehicle speed, density, congestion, etc. LOS “C” means that traffic 
would move at a stable flow, at or near free flow. The ability to maneuver through 
lanes would be noticeably restricted and lane changes require more driver awareness. 
Minimum vehicle spacing is about 220 feet or 11 car lengths. Most experienced 
drivers are comfortable, roads remain safely below but efficiently close to capacity, 
and posted speed is maintained. Minor incidents may still have no effect but localized 
service will have noticeable effects and traffic delays will form behind the incident.  

In approving the In-N-Out Burger Restaurant, the Planning Commission, at the 
request of the Public Works Department, added a condition of approval that specified 
that in the future, based on traffic conditions, a Warrant Study maybe conducted for 
the intersection of Campus Avenue and 20th Street, to determine if or when a traffic 
signal may be needed at that location. Therefore, the Public Works Department has 
recommended the following condition of approval, which has been incorporated into 
the attached Resolution. 
 

129. In the future, based on traffic conditions, if determined by the Public Works 
Director, a Warrant Study will be prepared and considered by the City 
Council for the intersection of Campus Ave and 20th Street, to determine if 
or when a traffic signal or other mitigating measures may be needed. A 
Study may be required and will include an analysis based upon projected 
traffic volumes, derived from existing traffic volumes collected at the 20th 
Street and Campus Ave intersection and surrounding areas, with the 
addition of projected increases in the site generated traffic resulting from 
development along 20th Street. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONEMNTAL QUALITY ACT  
 
The Planning Division has determined that pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, the City certified an Environmental Impact Report 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Traffic_flow


PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 11 of 12 
 

(EIR) on September 24, 2002 (SCH No. 1998051075) in the connection with the 
City’s approval of Specific Plan Amendment No. SPA-7: Modification No. 2, General 
Plan Amendment GPA 00-02, Zone Text Amendment 180, Zone Change ZC 00-01, 
Development Agreement DA 02-01, Master Tentative Tract Map TT16198, Street 
Vacation SV 02-01, Conditional Use Permit CUP 02-04, and Site Plan SP 00-07. 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, no subsequent or supplemental EIR of 
Negative Declaration is required in connection with subsequent discretionary 
approvals of the same project unless: (i) substantial changes are proposed to the 
project that indicate new or more severe impacts on the environment; or (ii) 
substantial changes have occurred in the circumstances under which the project  was 
previously reviewed that indicates new or more severe environmental impacts; or 
(iii) new important information shows the project will have new or more severe 
impacts than previously considered; or (iv) additional mitigation measures are now 
feasible to reduce impacts or different mitigation measures can be imposed to 
substantially reduce impacts. 
 
Staff has evaluated the proposed project and have concluded that the project is within 
the scope of the approved overall project and analysis included in the Final EIR 
identified above and no additional environmental review is required in connection 
with the City’s consideration of Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-
08 and Design Review No. 19-14. Substantial changes to the project or the 
circumstances surrounding the project have not occurred which would create new or 
more severe impacts than those evaluated in the previous EIR. The previous 
environmental review analyzed the effects of the proposed project. Staff further finds 
that the project will not have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 
previous EIR, nor have more severe effects than previously analyzed, and that 
additional or different mitigation measures are not required to reduce the impacts of 
the project to a level of less than significant.  
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
The Project was reviewed by the City’s Technical Review Committee (Planning, 
Building, Public Works, Police, San Bernardino County Fire and Burrtec Waste 
Industries). The Committee recommended that the Project move forward as 
presented to the Planning Commission for final review and approval. 
 
NOTICING 
 
Public hearing notification is applicable. In accordance with Upland Municipal Code 
Section 17.46 all owners of real property within 300 feet of the exterior boundaries 
of the parcel that is the subject of the hearing shall be notified. In this case there are 
less than ten properties within 300 feet of the outer boundaries of the parcel, 
therefore, applicant has extended the notification radius to 600 feet. Upland Municipal 
Code Section 17.46.020B requires that notification shall be extended when less than 
ten properties are within 300 feet of the subject parcel.  
 



PC Staff Report 
September 23, 2020  

Page 12 of 12 
 

A total of 27 public hearing notices were mailed to owners of property within 600 feet 
of the site on September 10, 2020. A public hearing notice was also published by the 
Inland Valley Daily Bulletin on September 11, 2020.  
 
Additionally, the Planning Division on September 10, 2020, posted two (2) true and 
correct copies of the public hearing notice at the Upland City Hall Bulletin Board and 
at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland Municipal Code Section 
17.46.020; and 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The request for Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08 and Design 
Review No. 19-14, are consistent with the requirements of The Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan. The project has been conditioned to meet or exceed all 
applicable development standards through project conditions.  
 
The development of new well-designed commercial building that will be 
complementary to the surrounding commercial land uses in the surrounding area 
providing additional dining, retail and employment opportunities for our residents and 
the region. As such, staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the 
project based on the findings and subject to the conditions contained in the attached 
resolution.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A – Draft Resolution 
Exhibit B – Project Plans 
 
 



 

 

Exhibit A – Draft Resolution 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF UPLAND, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT NO. 19-11, SITE PLAN NO. 19-08, AND 
DESIGN REVIEW NO. 19-14, TO ALLOW A 8,825 SQUARE 
FOOT BUILDING WITH FIVE (5) COMMERCIAL SUITES, 
WITH ONE SUITE HAVING A DRIVE-THROUGH, ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 20TH 
STREET, APPROXIMATELY 550 FEET EAST OF CAMPUS 
AVENUE, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF – 
APN: 1044-111-50. 

 

The City of Upland Planning Commission hereby resolves as follows: 

Section 1: Recitals 

WHEREAS, Mr. Ash Etemadian filed an application for the approval of Conditional 
Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08, and Design Review No. 19-14, as 
described in the title of this Resolution. Hereinafter in this Resolution, the subject 
Conditional Use Permit, Site Plan, and Design Review are referred to as the “the 
applications”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 17.43.050E of the Upland Municipal Code requires that if one 

or more applications are submitted concurrently for a single proposed project, each 
application shall be acted upon concurrently by the highest review authority. In this 
case, the highest review authority is the Planning Commission; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Project Site is located within Planning Area 21 of the Colonies at 

San Antonio Specific Plan. Planning Area 21 has a Highway Commercial (CH) 
Designation. Development in this Planning Area permits retail uses and restaurants; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Technical Review Committee met and reviewed the project 

and referred the project to the Planning Commission for their review; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 10, 2020, the Planning Division mailed a copy of the 

notice of public hearing on the applications to all owners of real property within 600 
feet of the exterior boundaries of the parcel that is the subject of the hearing in 
accordance with Upland Municipal Code Section 17.46.020; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 10, 2020, the Planning Division posted two (2) true and 

correct copies of the notice of public hearing on the applications at the Upland City 
Hall Bulletin Board and at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland 
Municipal Code Section 17.46.020; and 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 2 of 26 
 

 

2 
 

WHEREAS, on September 11, 2020, the Planning Division published the notice of 
public hearing on the applications in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, a local paper of 
general circulation, indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance 
with state law concerning the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 23, 2020, the Planning Commission of the City of Upland 

conducted a duly noticed public hearing on the applications at which time the Planning 
Commission concluded said hearing on that date; and 

 
WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites prior to adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED BY 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UPLAND AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 2: All of the above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Section 3. Findings – Conditional Use Permit: In accordance with Upland Municipal 
Code Section 17.44.040F (Findings for Approval of Conditional Use Permits), and 
based upon the facts and analysis presented in the staff report, public testimony 
received and subject to the conditions listed below, the Planning Commission makes 
the following findings: 
 

1. Finding: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the 
proposed use will be compatible with the existing and future land uses near 
the subject property.  

 
Evidence: The proposed use would be compatible and harmonious with 
development in the same general area and would not be materially detrimental 
to other properties within the area in that the current adjacent uses include 
Interstate 210 to the south, an existing In-N-Out burger to the west, a new 
auto dealership under construction to the east and a rock quarry is located to 
the north. Directly contiguous and to the west is a proposed service station, 
automated drive-thru car wash, convenience store with beer and wine sales, 
and a quick service restaurant.  
 
Therefore, the use is compatible with the planned land use for the location and 
surrounding area, indicating that it will remain compatible for the foreseeable 
future. 
 

2. Finding: The site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, shape, size, 
operating characteristics, and the provision of public and emergency vehicle 
(e.g. fire and medical) access and public services and utilities.  
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 3 of 26 
 

 

3 
 

Evidence: The site is physically suitable for the proposed use in that adequate 
access, parking, utilities and services will be provided to serve the proposed 
businesses. The Police Department, Public Works Department, and San 
Bernardino County Fire Department have reviewed the project proposal and 
do not have any concerns regarding access, public services, or utilities 
provided to the existing neighborhood and surrounding area. 
 

3. Finding: The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, 
and welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the 
proposed use. 
 
Evidence: The proposed use will not have a negative impact on either the 
subject site or neighboring properties given the project conditions of approval. 
The applicant will be required to comply with the Upland Police Department 
and San Bernardino County Fire Department requirements. These conditions 
are intended to help protect the public health, safety, and welfare of patrons 
and surrounding properties. Approval of the proposed use would be in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Upland Municipal Code (UMC), 
including the determination that all findings have been made relative to the 
issuance of a conditional use permit for the proposed project. 
 

Section 4. Findings – Development Plan (Site Plan and Design Review): In accordance 
with Upland Municipal Code Section 17.44.030H (Findings for Approval of a 
Development Plan), and based upon the facts and analysis presented in the staff 
report, public testimony received and subject to the conditions listed below, the 
Planning Commission makes the following findings: 
 

1. Finding: The design and layout of the proposed project will not interfere with 
the use and enjoyment of existing and future neighboring properties and 
structures. 

 
Evidence: The design, layout, size, architectural features and general 
appearance of the proposed project is consistent with the applicable Colonies 
at San Antonio Specific Plan development standards, design guidelines, and 
would maintain and enhance the community's character, provide for 
harmonious and orderly development, and create a desirable environment for 
the occupants, neighbors, and visiting public. 
 

2. Finding: The proposed architectural design makes use of appropriate 
materials, texture, and color, and will remain aesthetically appealing and 
appropriately maintained. 
 
Evidence: The design of the building, including the layout, size, shape, mass, 
height, architectural elements and other design factors are appropriate to the 
size and shape of the lot and are compatible and harmonious with the uses 
and structures on adjacent properties. Also, the building materials and design 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 4 of 26 
 

 

4 
 

features are of a quality and type that will remain aesthetically appealing over 
time without necessitating frequent and unrealistic maintenance or 
replacement. 
 

3. Finding: The proposed landscaping design, including color, location, size, 
texture, type, and coverage of plant materials, as well as provisions for 
irrigation, maintenance, and protection of landscaping elements, will 
complement structures and provide an attractive environment. 

 
Evidence: The preliminary landscape plan proposes the use of plant material 
that provides varied color and texture. The plan shows landscaping that 
includes a variety of plant materials, distinct in color and size, as well a large 
number of new trees all of which will be maintained by the property owner.  
Conditions of approval are included requiring the submittal of Final Landscape 
and Irrigation plans for review and approval. Therefore, the proposed 
landscaping design is sufficient in terms of color, location, size, texture, type, 
and coverage of plant materials, as well as provisions for irrigation, 
maintenance, and protection of landscaping elements, will complement 
structures and provide an attractive environment.   

 
4. Finding: The proposed design will not be materially detrimental to the public 

health, safety, or welfare, or be injurious to the property or improvements in 
the vicinity of the proposed project. 

 
Evidence: The proposed project, together with the conditions applicable 
thereto, will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or 
materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. The 
surrounding neighborhood consists of commercial uses in the Highway 
Commercial (CH) District. The proposed project is an 8,825 square foot 
commercial building similar in size and scale to the other commercial building 
nearby. The construction and operations of the businesses are expected to 
meet all Code standards regarding noise and odor. The project is therefore not 
expected to generate public health, safety or welfare impacts or be detrimental 
to improvements in the vicinity. 
 

Section 5. Environmental Determination: Pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, the City certified an Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) on September 24, 2002 (SCH No. 1998051075) in the connection with the 
City’s approval of Specific Plan Amendment No. SPA-7, Modification No. 2, General 
Plan Amendment GPA 00-02, Zone Text Amendment 180, Zone Change ZC 00-01, 
Development Agreement DA 02-01, Master Tentative Tract Map TT-16198, Street 
Vacation SV 02-01, Conditional Use Permit CUP 02-04, and Site Plan SP 00-07. 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, no subsequent or supplemental EIR of 
Negative Declaration is required in connection with subsequent discretionary 
approvals of the same project unless: (i) substantial changes are proposed to the 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 5 of 26 
 

 

5 
 

project that indicate new or more severe impacts on the environment; or (ii) 
substantial changes have occurred in the circumstances under which the project was 
previously reviewed that indicates new or more severe environmental impacts; or 
(iii) new important information shows the project will have new or more severe 
impacts than previously considered; or (iv) additional mitigation measures are now 
feasible to reduce impacts or different mitigation measures can be imposed to 
substantially reduce impacts. 

Staff has evaluated the proposed project and have concluded that the project is within 
the scope of the approved overall project and analysis included in the Final EIR 
identified above and no additional environmental review is required in connection 
with the City’s consideration of Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-
08 and Design Review No. 19-14. Substantial changes to the project or the 
circumstances surrounding the project have not occurred which would create new or 
more severe impacts than those evaluated in the previous EIR. The previous 
environmental review analyzed the effects of the proposed project. Staff further finds 
that the project will not have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 
previous EIR, nor have more severe effects than previously analyzed, and that 
additional or different mitigation measures are not required to reduce the impacts of 
the project to a level of less than significant.  
 
Section 6. Determination/Conditions of Approval: Based upon the findings and 
conclusions set forth above, this Planning Commission hereby approves the 
applications subject to each and every condition in the Conditions of Approval 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
PLANNING DIVISION 

1. This action approves Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08, 
and Design Review No. 19-14, to allow a 8,825 square foot building with five 
(5) commercial suites on property located on the south side of 20th Street, 550 
feet east of Campus Avenue (APN: 1044-111-50). Two (2) of the suites would 
be for retail businesses, while the other three (3) suites would be for eating 
establishments. One of the eating establishment suites will have a drive-
through lane and window.  

 
2. The applicant is required to sign a Statement of Acceptance of Conditions of 

Approval provided by the Planning Division. The signed Statement of 
Acceptance of Conditions of Approval shall be returned to the Planning Division 
within 15 days of the date of approval by the Planning Commission. 

 
3. This approval shall expire on September 23, 2022, unless Building Permits are 

issued and construction commenced and diligently pursued prior to the 
expiration date. If the project does not move forward by the expiration date 
then a new project approval would be required unless a written request for 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 6 of 26 
 

 

6 
 

extension is submitted to and approved by the Development Services Director 
30 days prior to the expiration date. 

 
4. Construction plans submitted for Building Permits shall be in substantial 

compliance with plans approved by this action on September 23, 2020. Any 
modifications to the use, building, site or project description shall be subject 
to review and approval by the Development Services Director and may require 
a separate Planning Entitlement review process. 

 
5. A copy of the conditions of approval provided herein shall be included in the 

construction documentation package for the Project, which shall be 
continuously maintained on site during Project construction. 

 
6. Approval of this request shall not waive compliance with all sections of the 

Development Code, all other applicable City ordinances, and the Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
7. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Applicant must defend, indemnify, 

and hold City and its elected officials, officers, contractors serving as City 
officials, agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) harmless from liability for 
damage and/or claims for damage for personal injuries, including death, and 
claims for property damage, and with respect to all other actions and liabilities 
for damages caused or alleged to have been caused by reason of the 
Applicant’s activities in connection with Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site 
Plan No. 19-08, and Design Review No. 19-14 (“Project”) on the Project site, 
and which may arise from the direct or indirect operations of the Applicant or 
those of the Applicant’s contractors, agents, tenants, employees or any other 
persons acting on Applicant’s behalf, which relate to the development and/or 
construction of the Project. This indemnity provision applies to all damages 
and claims for damage, as described above, regardless of whether or not the 
City prepared, supplied, or approved the plans, specifications, or other 
documents for the Project. 

 
In the event of any legal action challenging the validity, applicability, or 
interpretation of any provision of this approval, or any other supporting 
document relating to the Project, the Applicant must indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the Indemnitees, and each of them, with respect to all liability, 
costs and expenses incurred by, and/or awarded against, the City or any of 
the Indemnitees in relation to such action.  The City shall have the right to 
select counsel of its choice that the Applicant reasonably approves.  The parties 
hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action. The City will not 
voluntarily assist in any such third-party challenge or take any position adverse 
to the Applicant in connection with such third-party challenge.   



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 7 of 26 
 

 

7 
 

8. If the Development Services Director finds evidence that conditions of approval 
have not been fulfilled or the use has resulted in a substantial adverse effect 
on the health and/or general welfare of uses of adjacent or proximate property, 
or have a substantial adverse impact on public facilities or services, the 
Development Services Director may refer Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, 
Site Plan No. 19-08, and Design Review No. 19-14 back to the Planning 
Commission for review. If, upon review of the matter the Planning Commission 
finds that any of the results above have occurred, the Planning Commission 
may modify or revoke Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11, Site Plan No. 19-08, 
and Design Review No. 19-14. 

 
9. The applicant shall pay off all existing deficit deposit accounts associated with 

processing this permit. The applicant shall provide a receipt to the Planning 
Division, which shows that all discretionary deposit accounts have been paid. 
No Certificate of Occupancy or Final Planning Division Inspection can be 
issued/completed if there are deficit deposit accounts.  

 
10. It shall be the responsibility of the property owner and management to ensure 

that any required permits, inspections and approvals from any regulatory 
agency shall be obtained from the concerned agency prior to the establishment 
of the use. 

 
11. All construction and operational activities on the property shall comply with 

the City of Upland Noise Regulations as set forth in Chapter 9.40 of the Upland 
Municipal Code at all times. 

 
12. Order board speakers or intercom systems shall be installed and maintained 

in a manner which diminishes and/or directs noise away from adjacent uses 
and public rights-of-way. 

 
13. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall submit a Lighting Plan 

showing locations and height of all exterior lighting fixtures with arrows 
showing the direction of light being cast by each fixture for review and approval 
of the Planning Division, Building Division and Police Department.  

 
14. The Lighting Plan shall ensure any exterior night lighting installed on the 

project site is of low intensity, low glare design, minimum height, and shall be 
hooded to direct light downward onto the subject lot and prevent spill-over 
onto adjacent lots. The fixtures will be reviewed for quality, aesthetics, 
illumination values, sustainability values such as LED and shall be decoratively 
and architecturally consistent with the building design. The location, height, 
style and design shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning and Building 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 8 of 26 
 

 

8 
 

Divisions. Lighting shall be incompliance with Section 8.2.9 of The Colonies at 
San Antonio Specific Plan.  

 
15. Prior to the issuance of a grading permits, the Applicant shall prepare a detailed 

landscape plan for the project area which shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Division. The plan shall be certified by a licensed landscape 
architect or a licensed landscape contractor, as required, as taking into account 
the approved preliminary landscape plan.  

 
16. Landscaping shall be installed to screen the drive-through aisle from primary 

circulation routes (E. 20th Street) and shall be used to minimize the visual 
impact of order boards and directional signs. 

 
17. Prior to the issuance of certificates of use and occupancy, the Applicant shall 

install said landscaping and irrigation system and shall have a licensed 
landscape architect or licensed landscape contractor, certify in writing that it 
was installed in accordance with the approved plan. Said written certification 
shall be submitted to the Planning Division. 

 
18. All irrigation systems shall function properly and landscaping shall be 

maintained in a healthy and thriving condition. The maintenance of 
landscaping and the irrigation system shall be permanently provided for all 
areas of the project site, as well as walkways and the portion of public rights-
of-way abutting the project site. Furthermore, the plans shall identify 
responsibility for the continued maintenance. 

 
19. To prevent pollution generated from site specific activities, the Applicant shall 

implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) for eating and drinking 
establishments, including but not limited to, the use and maintenance of 
grease interceptors and the use of a dedicated cleaning area with a drain which 
is plumbed to the sanitary sewer system. All equipment, including floor mats, 
grease filters, grills, garbage cans, etc., shall be cleaned in a wash area that 
is plumbed to the sanitary sewer system (i.e. mop sink or wash water 
containment basin). Wash water from the cleaning of outdoor eating areas, 
“drive-thru” areas, sidewalks, parking lots and dumpster storage areas must 
be contained and disposed of properly and shall not be allowed to enter the 
storm drain system including the gutter and storm-drain inlets. 

 
20. Restaurant tenants with cooking facilities shall be equipped at all times with 

filtering devices to minimize odors and fumes. Details of said devices shall be 
shown on the tenant improvement plans submitted for issuance of building 
permits and shall be subject to review and approval by the Building Official 
prior to issuance of building permits for the tenant improvements. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 9 of 26 
 

 

9 
 

 
21. No signs of any type are approved as a part of this action. Any signs must 

receive a sign permit approved by Planning Division prior to installation. Signs 
shall be consistent with the regulations of Section 7.7 of the Colonies at San 
Antonio Specific Plan. 

 
22. All proposed mechanical units, air conditioning equipment, blowers, make-up 

air units, ducts, etc. shall be shown on the building permit plans. The project 
developer shall effectively screen from view all ducts, blowers, air conditioning 
equipment, and any other mechanical equipment, whether on the structure, 
on the ground, or on the roof, with materials architecturally compatible with 
the building. Screening details shall be shown on the plans submitted for 
issuance of building permits, the adequacy of which shall be determined by the 
Development Services Director. All required screening shall be provided prior 
to occupancy. The construction plans shall include appropriate elevations and 
cross-section drawings demonstrating how such equipment is to be screened 
from view (include dimensions, materials, colors, etc.). 

 
23. All ground mounted utility structures such as transformers and back flow 

prevention valves shall be located out of view from a public street or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or masonry walls. 

 
24. Prior to the release of a Certificate of Occupancy by the City, the Applicant 

shall submit to the City for review by the City Engineer and the Development 
Services Director a shared access agreement. The City Engineer and the 
Development Services Director shall review and approve the appropriate 
documents (e.g., shared access agreement, CC&R’s, etc.) which ensure that 
utilities, access, parking, landscape areas, and drainage will be commonly 
shared and maintained. 

 
25. All driveways shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. 

Generally, the enhanced pavement treatment shall extend from the property 
line (back of the approach apron), into the site, to the first intersecting drive 
aisle or parking space.  

 
26. Bumper guard or wheel stops shall be provided, where necessary, to protect a 

structure or parked vehicle. In lieu of wheel stops, 2 feet of additional area 
may be added to sidewalks or landscape areas to serve as an automobile 
overhang. 

 
27. The owner/developer shall arrange for a final inspection by representatives of 

the Planning Division, Building Division, Public Works Department, Police 
Department and San Bernardino County Fire Department prior to the release 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 10 of 26 
 

 

10 
 

of occupancy.  Any discrepancy between the approved plans and the field 
conditions shall be remedied prior to occupancy such that the field condition 
is consistent with the approved plans. 

 
28. No alcohol use of any type is approved as a part of this action. A separate 

alcohol use request must receive a Conditional Use Permit approved by the 
Planning Commission and the California Department of Alcohol Beverage 
Control prior to inauguration of the use. 

 
29. The Applicant shall submit a design for the onsite trash enclosure for review 

and approval by the Planning Division and the City’s Solid Waste Service 
Provider during building plan check review. The applicant shall work with staff 
to incorporate the trash enclosure within the building’s design. The design will 
be reviewed for aesthetic value and use of quality materials. All outside trash 
and garbage collection areas shall be paved and enclosed on at least three (3) 
vertical sides by solid five (5) foot high wall and on the fourth side by a view 
obscuring gate to screen the containers from view. The trash enclosure shall 
be of a size sufficient to contain all trash containers maintained outside the 
building. The finish and color of the trash enclosure shall be designed to match 
a primary element from the site building style as well as incorporate a 
decorative cover per the approval of the Planning Division. The trash enclosure 
bins shall be kept inside the enclosure except when being unloaded. 

 
30. Pedestrian paths shall be maintained in such manner to allow the safe and 

convenient passage of persons across drive aisles. Pedestrian pathways shall 
be clearly marked with paint and/or enhanced paving materials and designated 
with adequate and appropriate signage. Pedestrian pathways adjacent to drive 
aisles shall be separated by a raised curb, planter, berm, or other device to 
ensure a safe and adequate separation between pedestrians and motor 
vehicles.  

 
31. Prior to issuance of a grading permit the Applicant/Property Owner shall submit 

for review and approval to the Development Services Department a Lot Line 
Adjustment to adjust the common property line between Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers 1044-111-49 and 1044-111-50 to ensure that future development 
does not encroach onto the property line between the adjoining parcels or 
into the adjacent property. The final approved lot line adjustment is required 
to be recorded with the San Bernardino County Assessor-Recorder-County 
Clerk’s Office prior to the issuance of a grading permit. 

BUILDING DIVISION 
 
32. The Project shall comply with the adopted California Model Code (California 

Code of Regulations, Title 24). 
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 11 of 26 
 

 

11 
 

33. Prior to the issuance of any permit a soils report is required to be submitted to 
the Building Division for review and approval. 

 
34. The Project shall provide ADA compliance accessibility to public right-of-way. 

 
35. The Project shall provide ADA compliance throughout the site. 

 
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
36. A water system approved and inspected by the Fire Department is required. 

The system shall be operational, prior to any combustibles being stored on the 
site. Fire hydrants shall be spaced no more than three hundred (300) feet 
apart (as measured along vehicular travel-ways) and no more than three 
hundred (300) feet from any portion of a structure. 

 
37. Prior to any land disturbance, the water systems shall be designed to meet the 

required fire flow for this development and shall be approved by the Fire 
Department. The required fire flow shall be determined by using California Fire 
Code. The Fire Flow for this project shall be: 1500 GPM for a 2 hour duration 
at 20 psi residual operating pressure. Fire Flow is based on an 8,825 square 
foot structure. 

 
38. This standard establishes minimum requirements for installation and 

maintenance of all private fire hydrants and appliances related to an onsite fire 
protection system. 

 
39. Prior to building permits being issued to any new structure, the primary access 

road shall be paved or an all-weather surface and shall be installed as specified 
in the General Requirement conditions, including width, vertical clearance and 
turnouts. 

 
40. Construction permits, including Fire Condition Letters, shall automatically 

expire and become invalid unless the work authorized by such permit is 
commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or if the work authorized by 
such permit is suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days after the time 
the work is commenced. Suspension or abandonment shall mean that no 
inspection by the Department has occurred with 180 days of any previous 
inspection. After a construction permit or Fire Condition Letter, becomes invalid 
and before such previously approved work recommences, a new permit shall 
be first obtained and the fee to recommence work shall be one-half the fee for 
the new permit for such work, provided no changes have been made or will be 
made in the original construction documents for such work, and provided 
further that such suspension or abandonment has not exceeded one year. A 
request to extend the Fire Condition Letter or Permit may be made in writing 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 12 of 26 
 

 

12 
 

PRIOR TO the expiration date justifying the reason that the Fire Condition 
Letter should be extended. 

 
41. An approved Fire Department key box is required.  In commercial, industrial 

and multi-family complexes, all swing gates shall have an approved fire 
department Knox Lock. 

 
42. Permission to occupy or use the building (certificate of Occupancy or shell 

release) will not be granted until the Fire Department inspects, approves and 
signs off on the Building and Safety job card for "fire final". 

 
43. Blue reflective pavement markers indicating fire hydrant locations shall be 

installed as specified by the Fire Department. In areas where snow removal 
occurs or non-paved roads exist, the blue reflective hydrant marker shall be 
posted on an approved post along the side of the road, no more than three (3) 
feet from the hydrant and at least six (6) feet high above the adjacent road. 

 
44. An automatic hood and duct fire extinguishing system is required. A Fire 

Department approved designer/installer shall submit detailed plans with 
manufactures' specification sheets to the Fire Department for review and 
approval. The required fees shall be paid at the time of plan submittal. 

 
45. An automatic fire sprinkler system complying with NFPA Pamphlet #13 and the 

Fire Department standards is required. The applicant shall hire a Fire 
Department approved fire sprinkler contractor. The fire sprinkler contractor 
shall submit plans to the with hydraulic calculation and manufacturers 
specification sheets to the Fire Department for approval and approval. The 
contractor shall submit plans showing type of storage and use with the 
applicable protection system. The required fees shall be paid at the time of 
plan submittal. 

 
46. A flow test report is required to be submitted to establish whether the public 

water supply is capable of meeting your project fire flow demand. You will be 
required to produce a current flow test report from your water purveyor 
demonstrating that the fire flow demand is satisfied. This requirement shall be 
completed prior to combination inspection by Building and Safety. 

 
47. The required fire fees shall be paid to the San Bernardino County Fire 

Department/Community Safety Division. 
 
48. An automatic fire sprinkler monitoring fire alarm system complying with the 

California Fire Code, NFPA and all applicable codes is required. The applicant 
shall hire a Fire Department approved fire alarm contractor.  The fire alarm 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 13 of 26 
 

 

13 
 

contractor shall submit detailed plans to the Fire Department for review and 
approval. The required fees shall be paid at the time of plan submittal. 

 
49. Prior to combustibles being placed on the project site an approved all-weather 

fire apparatus access surface and operable fire hydrants with acceptable fire 
flow shall be installed. The topcoat of asphalt does not have to be installed 
until final inspection and occupancy. 

 
50. Building plans shall be submitted to the Fire Department for review and 

approval. 
 
51. Hand portable fire extinguishers are required. The location, type, and cabinet 

design shall be approved by the Fire Department. 
 
52. In addition to the Fire requirements stated herein, other onsite and offsite 

improvements may be required which cannot be determined from tentative 
plans at this time and would have to be reviewed after more complete 
improvement plans and profiles have been submitted to this office. 

 
53. The referenced project is under the jurisdiction of the San Bernardino County 

Fire Department herein "Fire Department". Prior to any construction occurring 
on any parcel, the applicant shall contact the Fire Department for verification 
of current fire protection requirements. All new construction shall comply with 
the current California Fire Code requirements and all applicable status, codes, 
ordinances and standards of the Fire Department. 

 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
54. The approved conditions shall be retained on the premises at all times and 

produced immediately upon request of the Upland Police Department, and City 
Planning.  

 
55. A 6-month review/inspection shall be conducted to ensure permittee’s 

compliance with all operating conditions.  
 
56. Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee shall be immediate and 

ongoing on the licensed premises, but in no event shall graffiti be allowed 
unabated on the premises for more than 48 hours. Abatement shall take the 
form of removal or shall be covered/painted over with a color reasonably 
matching the color of the existing building, structure, or other surface being 
abated. Additionally, the business owner/licensee shall notify the City within 
24 hours of any graffiti elsewhere on the property not under the business 
owner/licensee’s control so that it may be abated by the property owner.  

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 14 of 26 
 

 

14 
 

57. The Developer, builder, contractors, sub-contractors, and any other persons 
associated with this project shall adhere to the Upland Municipal Code (UMC) 
dealing with unnecessary noises under section 9.40.100. Furthermore, prior to 
the beginning of construction, a sign shall be posted at the entrance of the 
property educating everyone entering as to the authorized construction times 
and failure to comply with such requirements will result in an immediate 
citation for violating the aforementioned UMC section.  

 
58. Units with front and rear drive access shall affix or paint address 

numbering/lettering in a conspicuous location, free from plant obstruction, and 
readily visible to emergency services personnel on both front and rear 
accesses.  

 
59. Each building that has a flat roof shall be required to have the address 

numbering painted on the roof, as close to the center of the roof as possible, 
and at least 15 feet (or as far as possible if less than 15 feet) from roof 
mounted equipment or exhaust stacks, to assist helicopter patrols in quick 
location of the building. Numbering must be at least 12 inches wide, 48 inches 
tall, and be painted in contrast to the background on which it is affixed.  

 
60. Draft stops shall be required between all tenant subdivisions in the same unit 

or building so that persons may not access a tenant unit from an adjacent 
tenant unit via entry down through the roof or up through the drop ceiling.  

 
61. Prior to occupancy all private streets, parking areas, parking lots, and 

driveways shall be dedicated for off-road traffic, fire lane, soliciting, handicap, 
and loitering enforcement. The applicant must submit a written request to the 
City Clerk asking that a resolution from the City Council allow Police 
Enforcement of the above violations on the property. Once the resolution has 
been obtained, a sign shall be erected/posted at all access points stating the 
above listed locations and violations have been dedicated for enforcement by 
the Upland Police Department.  

 
62. Prior to occupancy, the Police Department will conduct an on-site inspection of 

the property, checking proper lighting has been installed throughout the 
property, proper locks on exterior doors and doors leading to the interior are 
in place and functioning properly. In addition, the Police Department will check 
that proper addressing/lettering has been installed.  

 
63. Hinges for outwardly swinging doors or hatchway covers shall be equipped with 

non-removable hinge pins or a mechanical interlock system to prevent removal 
of the door from the exterior by removal of the hinge pins.  

 
64. All hatchways shall be secured from the interior of the building with a sliding 

bolt or bar mechanism.  
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 15 of 26 
 

 

15 
 

65. If the hatchway cover is of a wooden material, it shall be reinforced with at 
least 16-gauge U.S. sheet steel, or its equivalent, on the interior face of the 
cover and shall be attached with screws no more than six inches apart around 
the entire perimeter of the interior face cover.  

 
66. Building design and window placement shall facilitate high visibility to the 

public and police patrol vehicles as well as enabling employees to make 
periodic visual inspections of the premises.  

 
67. The applicant shall submit for review by the Police Department the design and 

specifications for all proposed lighting fixtures proposed for the buildings, drive 
aisles, parkways, parking areas, pathways, and surrounding areas within the 
development. The fixtures shall be reviewed for quality, aesthetics, 
illumination values, sustainability values such as LED and shall be decoratively 
and architecturally consistent with the building design. The number, location, 
height, style and design shall be reviewed and approved by the Police 
Department prior to issuance of building permits.  

 
68. All exterior doors shall be equipped with a lighting device capable of providing 

a minimum of two foot-candle of light at ground level.  
 
69. All exterior lighting lower than 12 feet from the ground level shall be enclosed 

in vandal-resistant covers.  
 
70. Lighting shall be required in all area of public access.  
 
71. All exterior lighting shall be oriented inward onto the project so as not to 

interfere with adjacent residential areas or vehicular traffic on adjacent public 
streets.  

 
72. Public parking areas and access thereto shall be provided with a maintained 

minimum of 2 foot candle power of light on the parking surface, from dusk to 
dawn, or as modified by the Chief of Police, based on documented proof that 
meeting the 2 foot candle power standard is impractical. Lighting shall be 
provided through the use of photo cells; use of low pressure sodium fixtures 
and bulbs is prohibited.  

 
73. Signs prohibiting loitering shall be installed to the satisfaction of the Chief of 

Police. They shall be mounted between six and ten feet above ground. The 
following must be printed on the sign in letters at least two inches tall: 
“PC647(h), UMC10.72.010.” and “NO LOITERING IS ALLOWED ON OR IN 
FRONT OF THESE PREMISES.” The signs shall be posted on the front, rear, and 
sides of the building, and shall be clearly visible to patrons of the licensee. 

 
74. Signs shall comply with all City of Upland sign requirements (UMC 17.15 et 

seq.). No more than 50% of the total window area and clear doors shall bear 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 16 of 26 
 

 

16 
 

advertising or signs of any sort. Window signs shall be placed and maintained 
in a manner so that there is a clear and unobstructed view of the interior of 
the premises from the public sidewalk or entrance to the premises (this applies 
to all windows of this location).   

 
75. A digital video surveillance system is required at the premises. It is 

recommended to have a surveillance video/visual media that shall be 
maintained for a minimum of sixty (60) days and upon request, shall be 
accessible to law enforcement personnel for viewing, copying and collection 
purposes during regular business hours. The system shall be able to make 
license plates discernable. The video system shall cover all ingress and egress 
points of the businesses parking lots, the building itself, and the rear perimeter 
of the building.  

 
76. Provide UPD with contact information of person responsible for maintaining 

video equipment/system and who has access to retrieve and copy surveillance 
video. The surveillance video/visual media system shall be remotely accessible 
to the Upland Police Department.  

 
77. Applicant shall comply with 6404.5(b) of the Labor Code, which prohibits 

smoking within any place of employment.  
 
78. All landscaping must adhere to the 2’ 6’ rule (all ground cover landscaping 

must be maintained no higher than 2’ from ground level and all lower tree 
canopy must be maintained no lower than 6’ in height from the ground level).  

 
79. Any vehicles not parked legally may be cited and/or towed if it is in violation 

of the California Vehicle Code and/or Upland Municipal Code.  
 
80. Violation of any of the aforementioned conditions, may result in revocation of 

the CUP.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT LAND DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSPORTATION 
DIVISION 
 
EASEMENTS 
 
Easements/Agreements 
 
81. Final approval of this project is subject to, and contingent upon, the execution 

and recordation of a reciprocal access agreement.   
 
82. A lot line adjustment shall be recorded before issuance of grading permit. 
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 17 of 26 
 

 

17 
 

83. Prior to recordation, the Owner/Developer shall submit two copies of the 
"before and after" legal descriptions for each affected parcel/lot for plan check 
by the Public Works Department. 

 
84. Concurrently with the recordation of the Lot Line Adjustment, the 

Owner/Developer shall record a Grant Deed transferring ownership and 
describing each new parcel/lot(s) in conformance with State law. 

 
Monuments 
 
85. The Owner/Developer shall comply with Assembly Bill 1414, which was enacted 

into law and effective January 1, 1995.  This bill amended Section 8771 of the 
Business and Professions Code (of the Land Surveyors Act).  The County 
Surveyor requires that two corner records be filed; they are when: 

 
a. Monuments exist that controls the location of subdivisions or 

tracts, streets or highways; or provides survey control.  The 
monuments are located and referenced by a licensed Land 
Surveyor before any streets or highways are reconstructed or 
relocated.  The corner record(s) of the references are filed with 
the County Surveyor. 

 
b. Monuments are reset in the surface of the new construction and 

a corner record is filed with the County Surveyor before recording 
of a Certificate (Notice) of Completion for the project. 

 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

 
86. All deficient public improvements shall be upgraded to current City Standards 

and to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.  
 

87. Asphalt paving and other improvements damaged during construction shall be 
replaced to the City’s satisfaction. 
 

88. All onsite and offsite improvements (pavement areas, drainage facilities, 
landscaped areas, etc.) shown on the plans and/or approved exhibit shall be 
constructed to City Standards.   
 

89. In accordance with California Building Code, Title 24 and the requirements of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), handicap facilities shall be 
constructed and existing facilities shall be reconstructed within the project 
limits, as necessary, in locations specified by the Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer and the Development Services Director. 

 
III UTILITY (WATER – SEWER – ENVIRONMENTAL) 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 18 of 26 
 

 

18 
 

Utility General 
 

90. All utility companies (for non-City owned utilities) shall be contacted to 
establish appropriate easements to provide services to each parcel.  

 
91. All parcels shall be served by utilities, allowing each parcel/lot to function 

separately and independent from one another. 
 

92. The Owner is responsible for research of private and public utility lines (Gas, 
Power, Telephone, Cable, Irrigation, etc.) to ensure there are no conflicts with 
the site. 

 
93. All existing on-site utility lines, if any, that conflict with this project shall be 

relocated or removed to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 
 

94. Composite Utility Plans shall be submitted before the issuance of a Grading 
Permit.  Any easements will be dedicated to the appropriate Utility Company 
as required to accommodate the location and maintenance of each facility. 

 
Undergrounding 
 
95. All developments within the City shall be served by underground utilities.  All 

utility plans (Edison, Telephone, and Cable TV, among others) shall be 
submitted to the Public Works Department for review and approval prior to the 
issuance of any permits for utility work within public right-of-way or public 
easements. 

 
Environmental-WQMP 
 
96. This project is subject to the General Construction Permit for Storm Water 

Discharges.  The Owner/Developer is required to file a Notice of Intent (NOI) 
with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for construction 
activities.  A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) shall be prepared 
and be available at the job site at all times.   

 
97. This project is required to submit a Project Specific Water Quality Management 

Plan (WQMP) (reference the County of San Bernardino “Guidelines for New 
Development and Redevelopment”) for review and approval by the City Of 
Upland, Public Works Department, and Environmental Division. WQMP is 
required to be bounded. Standard paper size for exhibits is 24” x 36”.The 
subject WQMP shall be approved prior to the issuance of grading permit.  

 
98. All projects that are required to prepare a SWPPP must file a letter with the 

SWRCB stating that the construction activity is complete.  A copy of this letter 
must be on file with the City of Upland before occupancy is granted. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 19 of 26 
 

 

19 
 

99. In developing the WQMP, the applicant shall infiltrate or treat projected runoff 
for the new development by an amount equal to or greater than the volume of 
runoff produced from a storm event through incorporation of design elements 
that address one or more of the goals set forth in the subdivisions below. The 
design elements utilized by an applicant may, but are not required to, include 
those provided on the list (A-L). 

 
One or more of the following design elements listed below may be used to 
achieve water quality goals: 

 
A. Maximize permeable areas to allow more percolation of runoff into the 

ground through such means as: 
 

a. Biofilters; 
b. Green strips; 
c. Swales. 
 

The use of permeable materials in lieu of or to replace hardscapes will increase 
the amount of runoff seepage into the ground 

 
B. Maximize the amount of runoff directed to permeable areas and/or    

maximize stormwater storage for reuse or infiltration by such means as: 
 

a. Orienting roof runoff towards permeable surfaces, drywells, 
French drains, or other structural BMPs rather than directly to 
driveways or non-permeable surfaces so that runoff will penetrate 
into the ground instead of flowing off-site. 

b. Grading the site to divert flow to permeable areas. 
c. Using cisterns, retention structures or green rooftops to store 

precipitation or runoff for reuse. 
d. Removing or designing curbs, berms or the like so as to avoid 

isolation of permeable or landscaped areas. 
 

C. Remove pollutants through installation of treatment control BMPs. 
 
D. The WQMP must also include the applicant's plan for the maintenance 

of all BMP’s requiring ongoing maintenance. 
 
E. The WQMP must include the applicant's signed statement accepting 

responsibility for all structural and/or treatment control BMP 
maintenance. 

 
The transfer of property subject to Water Quality Management Plan must 
include as a written condition to the transfer that the transferee 
assumes full responsibility for maintenance of any structural, and/or 
source or treatment control BMPs. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 20 of 26 
 

 

20 
 

 
F. The applicant shall provide a trash and recycling enclosure for the 

development. No other area shall drain to the enclosed area. The trash 
enclosures are to be designed to accommodate any City-mandated 
recycling facilities, subject to review and approval of Public Works 
Director. 

 
The area where a trash receptacle or receptacles are located for use as 
a repository for solid wastes must meet the following Structural or 
Treatment Control BMP requirements: 

 
a. Drainage from adjoining roofs and pavement must be diverted 

away from the trash storage areas. 
b. The trash enclosure area must be covered with a solid roof; to   

prevent rain from entering the area, sewer or storm drain 
conveyance system; screened or walled to prevent off-site 
transport of trash. 

c. Trash bins must have solid covers and be covered at all times 
except while being emptied. 

 
G. The Developer shall comply with the City's SWPPP in accordance with 

the NPDES MS4 permit requirement issued by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (RWQCB). 

 
H. The developer is responsible for ensuring that all contractors are aware 

of all storm water quality measures and that such measures are 
implemented. 

 
Failure to comply with the approved construction Best Management 
Practices will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or 
stop orders. 

 
I. The project plans shall include storm water measures for the operation 

and maintenance of the project for the review and approval of the Public 
Works Director. The project plans shall Identify Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) appropriate to the uses conducted on site that 
effectively prohibit the entry of pollutants into storm water runoff. 

 
J. All on-site storm drains are to be cleaned prior to occupancy and be 

cleaned each year immediately before the beginning of the rainy season 
(October 15). 

 
K. Sidewalks, parking lots, and other paved areas must be swept regularly 

to prevent the accumulation of litter and debris. If pressure washed, 
debris must be trapped and collected to prevent entry into the storm 
drain system. No cleaning agent may be discharged to the storm drain. 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 21 of 26 
 

 

21 
 

 
L. Landscaping shall be properly maintained and shall be designed with 

efficient irrigation practices to reduce runoff, promote surface filtration, 
and minimize the use of fertilizers and pesticides, which can contribute 
to runoff pollution. 

 
M. The developer is responsible for ensuring that all contractors are aware 

of all storm water quality measures and that such measures are 
implemented. 

 
Failure to comply with the approved construction Best Management 
Practices will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or 
stop orders. 

 
N. A structural control, such as an oil/water separator, sand filter, or other 

approved equal, is to be installed on site to intercept spills and pre-treat 
storm water prior to discharge to the public storm drain. The design, 
location, maintenance schedule and maintenance responsibility are 
subject to Public Works Director's approval. 

 
100. A trash bin for organic waste is required and must be provided by this project. 

 
101. A Waste Management Plan (WMP) is necessary to demonstrate compliance 

with the Municipal Code 13.28.620 that requires projects to salvage, reuse or 
recycle at least 50% of construction and demolition debris generated by the 
project. This code was adopted to assist the City of Upland in meeting the 
State mandated diversion requirement of 50% of all waste generated. The 
WMP Form "A" shall be provided by the Land Development Department prior 
to issuance of a Building Permit. The WMP Form "B" shall be completed and 
approved by the Land Development Department prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
102. The Owner/Developer shall obtain approval from the Public Works 

Department for a non-domestic waste wastewater discharge permit in 
accordance with Section 13.32.200 of the Upland Municipal Code. The 
Owner/Developer shall also: 
 

a. Provide an appropriate pretreatment facility that meets the 
Standards of the City of Upland including sewer inspection 
manholes. 

b. Construct a grease/oil and/or sand interceptors to the 
satisfaction of the Public Works Director 

c. Provide exterior plumbing to allow for the addition of a 
grease/sand and oil interceptor at a future date 

 
Sewer 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 22 of 26 
 

 

22 
 

 
103. Proposed on-site sewer laterals, water services and drainage facilities shall be 

maintained by Owner/Developer. 
104. City staff will inspect all newly installed sewer mains with the TV camera before 

acceptance of the line for public improvements. 
 
105. Extend any sanitary sewer and water line facilities as necessary to serve the 

entire development, including the payment of any sewer and water connection 
fees as determined by the Public Works Director. 

 
106. Sanitary sewer connections are subject to review, approval, and conditions of 

the Public Works Director. 
 
107. All sewer facilities shall be installed outside any driveways and drive 

approaches, and shall be in accordance with the Public Works Department 
Standards. 

 
Water 
 
108. On-site protection hydrant(s) and water systems shall be installed in 

accordance with the Upland Fire and Public Works Department Standards. 
 

109. Approved Backflow Device(s) shall be installed and inspected, in accordance 
with the Public Works Department Standards. 

 
110. All water facilities shall be installed outside any driveways and drive 

approaches, and shall be in accordance with the Public Works Department 
Standards. 

 
111. All new and upgraded developments shall meet the requirements of Chapter 

13.08 “Municipal Water System”, Article VII, of the Upland Municipal Code. 
This Code pertains to water system connection fees, water additive fees, and 
the transfer of water stock to the City of Upland. 

 
GRADING - STORM DRAIN - EROSION CONTROL 

 
112. A hydrology/hydraulics analysis is required to the satisfaction of the Public 

Works Director.  Any offsite drainage, which may impact this development, or 
additional drainage created by this development, shall be addressed in 
accordance with the mitigation measures required in the hydrology report 
before issuance of any permits. 

 
113. All drainage shall be directed on-site to the points so indicated upon the subject 

plan. 
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 23 of 26 
 

 

23 
 

114. Temporary drainage controls may be required during construction phases as 
directed by the Public Works Director. 

 
115. All catch basins and Storm Drain Inlet Facilities shall be stenciled with the 

appropriate “No Dumping” message.  
 

116. A Geotechnical Report (no older than one year) shall be submitted for review 
before the issuance of a grading permit. Reports older than one year are not 
accepted. 

 
117. Grading plan shall be prepared and shall conform to the requirements of 

California Building Code (CBC), latest edition. Said grading plan shall propose 
all applicable recommendations contained in the project’s geotechnical report.  

 
118. An erosion control plan shall be required as directed by the Public Works 

Director. 
 
119. No permanent building construction shall commence until rough grading is 

certified and a building permit issued by the Building Division. 
 
120. Owner is required to prepare Water Conservation Plan for its grading and 

construction operations in compliance to water conservation mandate by the 
State of California. Use of reclaimed water is highly encouraged. 

 
121. Dust Control operations shall be performed by the Contractor at the time, 

location and in the amount required and as often as necessary to prevent the 
excavation or fill work, demolition operation, or other activities from producing 
dust in amounts harmful to people or causing a nuisance to persons living 
nearby or occupying buildings in the vicinity of the work.  The Contractor is 
responsible for compliance with Fugitive Dust Regulations issued by the Air 
Quality Management District (AQMD). 

 
122. Control of dust shall be by sprinkling of water, use of approved dust 

preventives, modifications of operations or any other means acceptable to the 
Engineer, City of Upland, the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), 
the AQMD, and any Health or Environmental Control Agency having jurisdiction 
over the facility.  The Engineer shall have the authority to suspend all 
construction operations if, in their opinion, the Contractor fails to adequately 
provide for dust control. 
 

LANDSCAPING 
 

123. All landscaping works proposed for this development shall comply with the City 
of Upland Municipal code Ch. 17.12. 

 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 24 of 26 
 

 

24 
 

124. Any landscaping proposed within a City utility easement is subject to approval 
by the Public Works Director and Development Services Director. 

 
125. Landscaping and irrigation plans shall be submitted for City review and 

approval.  
 
126. All landscape and irrigation systems, located in the public parkways, shall be 

connected to a water supply system that is metered to the property owner.  
 
127. All developments require a tree-planting scheme. Plant trees a minimum of 

five feet from other utilities, a minimum of ten feet from driveways, water 
meters, water lines, sewer lines, traffic and directional signs, and fire hydrants, 
a minimum of fifteen feet from street lights, and a minimum of thirty feet from 
street corners. 

 
128. The project frontage shall be fully landscaped, including an automatic irrigation 

system in accordance with a plan subject to review and approval by the 
Development Services Director and the Public Works Director. Drought tolerant 
and water efficient irrigation system shall be required. Parkway landscaping 
shall be maintained by the Owner/Developer. 

 
GENERAL ENGINEERING 

 
129. In the future, based on traffic conditions, if determined by the Public Works 

Director, a Warrant Study will be prepared and considered by the City Council 
for the intersection of Campus Ave and 20th Street, to determine if or when a 
traffic signal or other mitigating measures may be needed. A Study may be 
required and will include an analysis based upon projected traffic volumes, 
derived from existing traffic volumes collected at the 20th Street and Campus 
Ave intersection and surrounding areas, with the addition of projected 
increases in the site generated traffic resulting from development along 20th 
Street. 

130. Owner is required to arrange for a PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING with the 
Public Works Department 72 hours in advance before any permitted work can 
commence. 

 
131. Public improvement plans and grading plans shall be submitted for plan check 

to the Public Works Department as a complete package.  A complete package 
includes sewer, water, grading, drainage, and any appropriate reports and 
back up documents.  Incomplete submittals shall be rejected. 

 
132. All plans (including Landscaping Plans) depicting any work to be plan checked 

by Public Works shall be prepared on 24”x36” on City Standard title block.  This 
includes street, sewer, water grading, storm drain, grading, erosion control, 
private street design, and landscape plans.  



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 25 of 26 
 

 

25 
 

 
133. As-built plans (including sewer, water, and storm drain and grading plans) 

shall be submitted. Electronic drawing files on compact disc (CD’s) shall be 
submitted to the City for file in the format acceptable by the City. 

 
134. All Ordinances, Policy Resolutions, and Standards of the City in effect at the 

time this project is approved shall be complied with as a condition of approval. 
 
135. No certificate of occupancy, or any other final clearance needed prior to 

occupancy, shall be given until all other conditions are met. 
END OF CONDITIONS 

 
Section 7.  Inconsistency: If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution is 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution.  
 
Section 8.  Certification: The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall certify to 
the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and his certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of September, 2020. 
 
      
 
 
        

_________________________________ 
                                                                         Robin Aspinall, CHAIR 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PC Resolution 
September 23, 2020  

Page 26 of 26 
 

 

26 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________  
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of September, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:   
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
                                                                   Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 
 



 

 

Exhibit B – Project Plans 

 



IN N OUT

2
2

K

U
N

L
.
 
8

7

1
2

K

D
I
E

S
E

L

1
0

K

U
N

L
.
 
9

1

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

FORD
PARCEL 4

APN 1043-432-44

BUILDING NO.                           SIZE              USE                          PARKING EQUATION          REQ. NO. SPACES          PROVIDED

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED:            83 PARKING SPACES

HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACES REQUIRED:  83 SPACES- 4 REQUIRED PER CODE.   PROVIDED 4 SPACES

SITE PLAN & PARKING SUMMARY

CLEAN AIR VEHICLE PARKING REQUIRED PER CA GREEN BLDG CODE: 2 REQUIRED, 8 PROVIDED (2 REQ TO BE EV CHARGE)

MOTORCYCLE PARKING PER UPLAND MUNICIPAL CODE: 1 REQUIRED, 1 PROVIDED.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS PARCEL 3 OF PARCELS MAP NO. 19562, IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AS PER
PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246, PAGES 33 & 34 INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

0'-0"

22'-0"

10'-0"

1

D

2

B

1

A

3

B

4

B

6

*

4

B

16

*

12

C

1

A

5

B

1

D

1

A

1

B

6

*

4

B

16

*

4'-8"

17'-0"

24'-0"

31'-0"

33'-0"

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

16

*

1

B

6

*

1

D

1

A

3

B

1

D

12

C

16

*

1

A

5

B

1

D

1

A

5

B

3

B

0'-0"

21'-0"

4'-8"

18'-6"

12'-8"

31'-0"

33'-0"

17'-0"

1.

2.

3.

4.

A.

7/8" SMOOTH STUCCO

5.

OVERHEAD WITH GLAZING ROLLUP DOOR6.

3'x7' HOLLOW METAL DOOR

3'x7' ANODIZED ALUMINUM DOOR WITH 1/4"

TEMPERED GLASS AND 10" KICK PLATE

7.

WINDOWS ANODIZED ALUMINUM FRAME AND 1/2"

TEMPERED CLEAR GLASS

8.

9.

B.

C.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS DHURRIE BEIGE #SW7524 (MAIN

WALLS)

10.

SIGNAGE BY OTHERS UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

12"H ALUMINUM FINISH AWNING  OVERHANG

11.

STUCCO EXPANSION JOINTS

SHERWIN WILLIAMS KESTREL WHITE #SW7516 (TRIM)

12.

10"H SMOOTH FINISH TRIM

36"H TOP CORNICE SMOOTH FINISH

24"H TOP CORNICE SMOOTH FINISH

6"H SMOOTH FINISH TRIM

13.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS RAINSTORM #SW6230 (AWNNG)

METAL TRELLIS WITH 4X10 BEAMS AND 2X6

RAFTERS

14.

METAL TRASH ENCLOSURE GATE15.

D. SHERWIN WILLIAMS DRY DOCK #SW7502 (TOWER &

POP OUTS)

PRECAST CONCRETE VENEER (NATURAL COLOR)16.

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

16

*

1

B

1

A

5

B

1

A

3

B

1

D

12

C

1

A

5

B

1

D

1

A

5

B

13

*

7

A

3

B

0'-0"

21'-0"

4'-8"

18'-6"

23'-0"

31'-0"

33'-0"

12'-8"

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

5

B

1

A

1

A

4

B

1

D

16

*

0'-0"

23'-0"

4'-8"

18'-6"

12'-8"

31'-0"

33'-0"

1.

2.

3.

4.

A.

7/8" SMOOTH STUCCO

5.

OVERHEAD WITH GLAZING ROLLUP DOOR6.

3'x7' HOLLOW METAL DOOR

3'x7' ANODIZED ALUMINUM DOOR WITH 1/4"

TEMPERED GLASS AND 10" KICK PLATE

7.

WINDOWS ANODIZED ALUMINUM FRAME AND 1/2"

TEMPERED CLEAR GLASS

8.

9.

B.

C.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS DHURRIE BEIGE #SW7524 (MAIN

WALLS)

10.

SIGNAGE BY OTHERS UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

12"H ALUMINUM FINISH AWNING  OVERHANG

11.

STUCCO EXPANSION JOINTS

SHERWIN WILLIAMS KESTREL WHITE #SW7516 (TRIM)

12.

10"H SMOOTH FINISH TRIM

36"H TOP CORNICE SMOOTH FINISH

24"H TOP CORNICE SMOOTH FINISH

6"H SMOOTH FINISH TRIM

13.

SHERWIN WILLIAMS RAINSTORM #SW6230 (AWNNG)

METAL TRELLIS WITH 4X10 BEAMS AND 2X6

RAFTERS

14.

METAL TRASH ENCLOSURE GATE15.

D. SHERWIN WILLIAMS DRY DOCK #SW7502 (TOWER &

POP OUTS)

PRECAST CONCRETE VENEER (NATURAL COLOR)16.

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 
In

c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er





2
2

K

U
N

L
.
 
8

7

1
2

K

D
I
E

S
E

L

1
0

K

U
N

L
.
 
9

1

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

FORD
PARCEL 4

APN 1043-432-44

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er





E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

V

C

L

E

A

N

 

A

I

R

V

A

N

 

P

O

O

L

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

E
V

C
L
E

A
N

 A
IR

V
A

N
 P

O
O

L

P
A

R
K

IN
G

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

F

F

Q
Q

Q
Q

Q Q Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q
Q

QQQ

Q

Q

Q

Q
T

C

F

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



N.T.S.N.T.S.N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

N.T.S.

N.T.S. N.T.S.

QUICK COUPLERXERI-BIRD-8

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

SHRUB PLANTING TREE PLANTING

CONTROL BOX

XERIGATION CONTROL VALVE

XERI-BIRD-2N.T.S.ELECTRIC MASTER VALVEN.T.S.

IRRIGATION TRENCH DETAIL N.T.S.

Irrigation Schedule - Maintenance Period

Irrigation Schedule - Established Plants

DRIPLINE BELOW GRADE N.T.S.

N.T.S.SHRUB/G.C. SPACING

FINISH GRADE

LINE FLUSHING

VALVE #TLSOV

VALVE BOX SEE

SPECS

8"

1/2" STEEL MESH

3/4" GRAVEL SUMP

BRICK SUPPORTS

(THREE)

8"

1" ABOVE FG

TECHLINE

17mm TUBING

S
E

E

S
P

E
C

S

8
"

N.T.S.MANUAL FLUSHING VALVE DETAIL

C
J
C

 D
e
s
ig

n
, 

In
c
.

C
ol

on
ie

s
Ca

m
pu

s 
Ce

nt
er



VICINITY MAP

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

9302 PITTSBURGH AVE, SUITE 230

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

CONTACT: MARK BERTONE

(909)481-6322

CITY OF UPLAND

CITY OF UPLAND

FRONTIER

THE GAS COMPANY

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

EDISON CO.

SAN BERNARDINO

COUNTY FIRE

DEPARTMENT

WATER:

SEWER

TELEPHONE:

GAS:

ELECTRIC:

FIRE PROTECTION:

THE BEARING OF N89°36'29"EAST ALONG THE CENTERLINE

OF 20TH STREET, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP 19562 P.M.B.

246/33-34, WAS USED AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR

THIS MAP.

BASIS OF BEARINGS

UTILITIES

ENGINEER

BENCH MARK

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

CONTACT: MR. ASH ETEMADIAN

OWNER

GENERAL NOTES

1. ANY EXISTING STRUCTURES ON THE SUBJECT

PROPERTY SHALL BE REMOVED. UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED.

2. THIS SITE WILL MEET ALL ENGINEERING AND NPDES

REQUIREMENTS.

CITY OF UPLAND BENCHMARK NUMBER: 4D-86.  ELEVATION

= 1217.216 (BASED ON NGVD 1929) EST: 7/01/1987.

2" CITY OF UPLAND BRASS DISC SET IN NORTHEAST

CORNER OF PCC BASE FOR STEEL ELECTRICAL

TRANSMISSION POLE # 1819200E, 19 FEET +/- WEST OF THE

CENTERLINE OF CAMPUS AVENUE & 48 FEET +/- SOUTH OF

THE CENTERLINE OF 9TH STREET.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS PARCEL 3 OF PARCELS MAP NO. 19562, IN

THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF

CALIFORNIA AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246, PAGES 33 & 34

INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY

RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY

CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN

LEGEND

A.C. PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

RMA GROUP, INC.

12130 SANTA MARGARITA COURT

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

CONTACT: GARY WALLACE

REFERENCE REPORT:

NO. 15-H80-001

DATED: JANUARY 13, 2016

GEOTECHNICAL

21

AS SHOWN

986-2824

08/12/2020

 OF 

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2020

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 3 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 19562, IAS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246,

PAGES 33 THROUGH 34, INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

GAS STATION PROJECT

PER SEPARATE PLANS

1

6

7

0

1
6
7
1

1

6

6

9

1

6

7

0

1

6

7

2

1
6
7
1

1

6

7

0

1
6
6
9

1
6
7
2

1

6

7

1

1
6
7
0

1667

1670

1669

1668

1667

1669

1667

1668

1669

1

6

6

9

1

6

7

1

(72.34) TC

(71.84) FL

(72.25) TC

(71.75) FL

(72.15) TC

(71.65) FL

(72.02) TC

(71.52) FS

(71.90) TC

(71.40) FS

(72.95) TC

(72.45) FS

(72.60) TC

(72.10) FS

(72.55) TC

(72.05) FS

(72.30) TC

(71.80) FS

(72.95) TC

(72.45) FS

(72.68) TC

(72.18) FS

(72.60) TC

(72.10) FS

(72.78) TC

(72.28) FS

(73.00) TC

(72.50) FS

(73.45) TC

(72.95) FS

73.90 TC

73.40 FS

(72.55) TC

(72.05) FL

(72.75) TC

(72.25) FL

GB

GB

(

7

1

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

8

.

3

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

2

.

7

'

(

7

1

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

7

.

2

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

3

.

8

'

(

7

1

.

1

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

9

.

0

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

2

.

0

'

(

7

1

.

1

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

9

.

1

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

2

.

0

'

(

7

0

.

6

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

6

.

3

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

4

.

0

'

(

7

0

.

6

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

5

.

9

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

4

.

6

'

(

7

0

.

5

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

5

.

0

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

4

.

5

'

(

6

9

.

5

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

4

.

1

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

5

.

1

'

(

6

9

.

1

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

3

.

0

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

6

.

1

'

(

7

0

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

1

.

5

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

8

.

0

'

(

7

0

.

0

0

)

 

T

W

(

6

2

.

3

)

 

E

G

W

A

L

L

 

H

T

.

=

 

6

.

6

'

(

7

1

.

8

8

)

 

T

C

(

7

1

.

2

1

)

 

F

L

(

7

3

.

5

2

)

 

T

C

(

7

2

.

8

5

)

 

F

L

0.56%

(

7

2

.

0

6

)

 

T

C

B

V

C

M

O

V

E

V

C

(

7

1

.

6

2

)

 

T

C

1

.

2

2

%

B

V

C

(

7

0

.

9

8

)

 

T

C

(

7

0

.

7

2

)

 

T

C

(

7

0

.

0

5

)

 

F

L
M

O

V

E

V

C

(

7

0

.

5

5

)

 

T

C

0

.

5

0

%

(

7

0

.

1

5

)

 

T

C

(

6

9

.

4

8

)

 

F

L

E

C

R

(

7

2

.

5

3

)

 

T

C

(

7

1

.

8

6

)

 

F

L

0

"

C

F

(

7

3

.

7

0

)

 

F

S

0

"

C

F

(

7

3

.

8

2

)

 

F

S

(

7

3

.

8

9

)

F

S

2
.
1
%

2

%

7

0

.

9

4

 

T

C

6
6
'

3
3
'

3
3
'

1
1
'

2
2
'

2
2
'

1
1
'

20TH          STREET

(73.59) TC

(73.09) FS

EXISTING FORD OF

UPLAND SITE

EXISTING 25' WIDE STORM

DRAIN AND SEWER EASEMENT

TO THE CITY OF UPLAND

PROPOSED

PYLON SIGN

EASEMENT

APN 1044-151-05

APN 1044-111-49

PROPOSED

PYLON SIGN

EASEMENT

7

1

.

3

5

 

F

L

7

1

.

8

7

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

7

 

F

L

7

2

.

0

0

 

T

C

7

1

.

5

0

 

F

L

7

1

.

5

4

 

T

C

7

1

.

0

4

 

F

L

71.10 TC

70.60 FL

7

1

.

6

3

 

T

C

7

1

.

1

3

 

F

S

7

1

.

6

4

 

T

C

7

1

.

1

4

 

F

S

7

1

.

8

8

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

8

 

F

S

7

1

.

4

8

 

T

C

7

0

.

9

8

 

F

S

7

0

.

4

9

 

F

L

0.50%

0

.

5

0

%

0
.
5

0
%

7

0

.

2

4

 

F

L

2
.
8
7
%

1

.

0

0

%

1
.
0
0
%

7

1

.

8

8

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

8

 

F

S

6

9

.

0

7

 

T

C

6

8

.

5

7

 

F

L

6

8

.

4

0

 

T

C

6

7

.

9

0

 

F

L

7

0

.

4

2

 

T

C

6

9

.

9

2

 

F

S

7

0

.

9

2

 

T

C

7

0

.

4

2

 

F

S

7

0

.

4

6

 

T

C

6

9

.

9

6

 

F

S

7

0

.

3

6

 

T

C

6

9

.

8

6

 

F

S

7

0

.

2

6

 

T

C

6

9

.

7

6

 

F

S

6

9

.

7

1

 

T

C

6

9

.

2

1

 

F

S

7

0

.

4

1

 

T

C

6

9

.

9

1

 

F

S

7

0

.

9

6

 

T

C

7

0

.

4

6

 

F

S

7

0

.

1

0

 

T

C

6

9

.

6

0

 

F

S

6

8

.

2

6

 

T

C

6

7

.

7

6

 

F

L

6

9

.

1

9

 

T

C

6

8

.

6

9

 

F

S

6

8

.

7

7

 

T

C

6

8

.

2

7

 

F

S

1

.

5

0

%

1.17%

7

1

.

5

2

 

T

C

7

1

.

0

2

 

F

S

7

1

.

3

2

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

2

 

F

S

7

0

.

9

2

 

T

C

7

0

.

4

2

 

F

S

2.00%

2.00%

0
.5

0
%

0
.5

0
%

1

.

6

2

%

1
.
8
9
%

2
.
8
0
%

2
.
8
0
%

2
.
8
0
%

2
.
3
4
%

7

0

.

4

7

 

T

C

6

9

.

9

7

 

F

S

7

1

.

8

9

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

9

 

F

L

7

1

.

5

5

 

T

C

7

1

.

0

5

 

F

S

7

2

.

6

7

F

L

7

2

.

6

5

 

F

S

4
.
3
3
%

7

2

.

3

2

 

T

C

7

1

.

8

2

 

F

L

7

2

.

2

6

 

T

C

7

1

.

7

6

 

F

S

1.50%

2
.
0
0
%

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
6

"
 
S

E
W

E
R

72.02 FF

71.35 PAD

6

8

.

3

7

 

F

L

7

1

.

1

9

 

F

S

7

1

.

0

7

 

F

S

7

1

.

8

8

 

T

C

7

1

.

3

8

 

F

S

7

1

.

5

8

 

T

C

7

1

.

0

8

 

F

S

7

1

.

3

9

 

T

C

7

0

.

8

9

 

F

S

1
.5

4
%

6

9

.

5

8

 

T

C

6

9

.

0

8

 

F

S

2.00%

7

1

.

2

0

 

T

C

7

0

.

7

0

 

F

S

E
X

IS
T

. 8
"
 S

E
W

E
R

E

X

I

S

T

.

 

8

"

 

S

E

W

E

R

P
R

O
P

. 1
8
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

7

1

.

4

6

 

T

C

7

0

.

9

6

 

F

S

E
X

IS
T

. 1
8
"

S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

1
.9

4
%

PROPOSED

FIRE WATER

PROPOSED

DOMESTIC WATER

1
.
7
%

1
.
7
%

N
8
5
°1
8
'2
6
"
W

2
4
2
.3

0
'

N89°36'29
"E

109.07'

N
0
0
°
2
3
'
3
1
"
W

2
0

3
.
3

8
'

L=9
3

.8
3
'

,

R

=

1

1

4

.
0

0

'

L

=

4

8

.

4

6

'

,

R

=

6

1

'

APN 1044-111-50

EXISTING 25' WIDE STORM

DRAIN AND SEWER EASEMENT

TO THE CITY OF UPLAND

PROPOSED

VORTECHS 9000

UNIT

E
X

I
S

T
.
 
2

4
"
 
S

T
O

R
M

 
D

R
A

I
N

E
X

IS
T

. 2
4
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED

LOADING AND

UNLOADING

AREA

EXIST.

D.C.D.A.

PROPOSED

BACKFLOW DEVICE

PROPOSED

F.D.C.

PROPOSED

FIRE RISER

PROPOSED

P.I.V.

P.O. C.

P.O. C.

6

9

.

6

3

 

T

C

6

9

.

1

3

 

F

S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
L

I
M

I
T

S

L=5.75'

R=533.00'

6

9

.

9

8

 

F

S

6

9

.

5

8

 

F

S

7

0

.

9

2

 

F

S

71.12

 FS

7

1

.

1

9

 

T

C

7

0

.

6

9

 

F

S

N89°36'29"E

26.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUCAMONGA CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9302 PITTSBURGH AVE., SUITE 230

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 909.481.6322

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:     909.481.6320

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL GRADING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19562

AutoCAD SHX Text
1660

AutoCAD SHX Text
1665

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1683.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1660.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1662.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1666.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1670

AutoCAD SHX Text
1675

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
22K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
12K

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B



AS SHOWN

986-2824

08/12/2020

 OF 

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2020

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 3 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 19562, IAS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246,

PAGES 33 THROUGH 34, INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

SECTION A-A

SCALE: 1"=5'

10.00'

V
A

R
I
E

S

2
.
0

'
 
-
 
8

.
5

'

PROPOSED 6" CURB

& 18" GUTTER

2%-3.6%

2%

CALTRANS R/W

1' MIN.

EXIST. KEYSTONE

'MSE' RETAINING

WALL, BUILT IN 2018.

PROPOSED 6"

CURB ONLY

2%

6.5'±

PL

SECTION B-B

SCALE: 1"=5'

FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT

30' ±

PROP. VALLEY

GUTTER

EXISTING 6" CURB

& 18" GUTTER

R/W

20.5' 11'

5' 5.5'

0.5'

SECTION C-C

SCALE: 1"=5'

2%

1% MIN.

4.5% MAX.

20TH STREET

11.50'

PROP. 6" CURB

PROP. 6" CURB

AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9302 PITTSBURGH AVE., SUITE 230

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 909.481.6322

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:     909.481.6320

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL GRADING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19562



VICINITY MAP

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

9302 PITTSBURGH AVE, SUITE 230

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

CONTACT: MARK BERTONE

(909)481-6322

CITY OF UPLAND

CITY OF UPLAND

FRONTIER

THE GAS COMPANY

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

EDISON CO.

SAN BERNARDINO

COUNTY FIRE

DEPARTMENT

WATER:

SEWER

TELEPHONE:

GAS:

ELECTRIC:

FIRE PROTECTION:

THE BEARING OF N89°36'29"EAST ALONG THE CENTERLINE

OF 20TH STREET, AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP 19562 P.M.B.

246/33-34, WAS USED AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR

THIS MAP.

BASIS OF BEARINGS

UTILITIES

ENGINEER

BENCH MARK

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

CONTACT: MR. ASH ETEMADIAN

OWNER

GENERAL NOTES

1. ANY EXISTING STRUCTURES ON THE SUBJECT

PROPERTY SHALL BE REMOVED. UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED.

2. THIS SITE WILL MEET ALL ENGINEERING AND NPDES

REQUIREMENTS.

CITY OF UPLAND BENCHMARK NUMBER: 4D-86.  ELEVATION

= 1217.216 (BASED ON NGVD 1929) EST: 7/01/1987.

2" CITY OF UPLAND BRASS DISC SET IN NORTHEAST

CORNER OF PCC BASE FOR STEEL ELECTRICAL

TRANSMISSION POLE # 1819200E, 19 FEET +/- WEST OF THE

CENTERLINE OF CAMPUS AVENUE & 48 FEET +/- SOUTH OF

THE CENTERLINE OF 9TH STREET.

COMPOSITE UTILITY PLAN

11

AS SHOWN

986-2824

08/12/2020

 OF 

ADMG, INC.

10995 INDIANA AVENUE

RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA 92503

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE CITY OF UPLAND, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO,

MADOLE & ASSOCIATES, INC.

RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2020

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PARCEL 3 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 19562, IAS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 246,

PAGES 33 THROUGH 34, INCLUSIVE, OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

GAS STATION PROJECT

PER SEPARATE PLANS

6
6
'

3
3
'

3
3
'

1
1
'

2
2
'

2
2
'

1
1
'

20TH          STREET

EXISTING FORD OF

UPLAND SITE

EXISTING 25' WIDE STORM

DRAIN AND SEWER EASEMENT

TO THE CITY OF UPLAND

PROPOSED

PYLON SIGN

EASEMENT

APN 1044-151-05

APN 1044-111-49

PROPOSED

PYLON SIGN

EASEMENT

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
6

"
 
S

E
W

E
R

E
X

IS
T

. 8
"
 S

E
W

E
R

E

X

I

S

T

.

 

8

"

 

S

E

W

E

R

P
R

O
P

. 1
8
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

E
X

IS
T

. 1
8
"

S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

PROPOSED

FIRE WATER

PROPOSED

DOMESTIC WATER

N
8
5
°1
8
'2
6
"
W

2
4
2
.3

0
'

N89°36'29
"E

109.07'

N
0
0
°
2
3
'
3
1
"
W

2
0

3
.
3

8
'

L=9
3

.8
3
'

,

R

=

1

1

4

.
0

0

'

L

=

4

8

.

4

6

'

,

R

=

6

1

'

APN 1044-111-50

EXISTING 25' WIDE STORM

DRAIN AND SEWER EASEMENT

TO THE CITY OF UPLAND

PROPOSED

VORTECHS 9000

UNIT

E
X

I
S

T
.
 
2

4
"
 
S

T
O

R
M

 
D

R
A

I
N

E
X

IS
T

. 2
4
"
 S

T
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED

LOADING AND

UNLOADING

AREA

EXIST.

D.C.D.A.

PROPOSED

BACKFLOW DEVICE

PROPOSED

F.D.C.

PROPOSED

FIRE RISER

PROPOSED

P.I.V.

P.O. C.

P.O. C.

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
L

I
M

I
T

S

L=5.75'

R=533.00'

N89°36'29"E

26.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUCAMONGA CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMPUS  AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-210

AutoCAD SHX Text
19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 19TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9302 PITTSBURGH AVE., SUITE 230

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA. 91730

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: 909.481.6322

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX:     909.481.6320

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITE UTILITY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19562

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
22K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 87

AutoCAD SHX Text
12K

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10K

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL. 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUB / TEL




	AGENDA
	Supplemental Language
	4. Minutes of 8/12/2020
	8A. Conditional Use Permit No. 19-07
	8A.a. Revised Draft Resolution
	8A.b. Revised Project Plans
	8A.c. Packet Excerpt from PC meeting on 8/12/20
	1a. Draft Resolution
	1b. Vicinity Map
	1c. General Plan and Zoning Map
	1d. Project Plans
	1e. Fairytale Castle Day Care Parent Handbook
	1f. Traffic Impact Analysis


	8B. Zoning Code Amendment ZA-20-0001
	8B.a. Draft Resolution
	8B.b. Ordinance
	8B.c. ADU Memorandum, dated Jan. 10, 2020

	8C. Local Register No. LR-20-0001
	8C.a. Draft Resolution
	8C.b. Vicinity Map
	8C.c-1 PC Minutes 3/22/200
	8C.c-2. PC Minutes 5/31/2000
	8C.c-3. PC Resolution No. 4185
	8C.d. Historic Resources Record
	8C.e. General Plan Designation
	8C.f. Zoning Designation
	8C.g. Section 17.26.100
	8C.h. Property Photographs
	8C.i. Upland Heritage Support Letter

	8D. Conditional Use Permit No. 19-10
	8D.a. Draft Resolution
	8D.b. Project Plans

	8E. Conditional Use Permit No. 19-11
	8E.a. Draft Resolution
	8E.b. Project Plans




